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As at 6 March 2019, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, age 72, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
worked as a professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company
listed in the PRC, namely Founder Technology Group Corporation,
and a director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely Founder Holdings
Limited, and has work experience in international trade, finance,
asset management and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was
honoured with many awards, including being selected as the young
entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China, and won the
first prize of national golden award for enterprise initiators in the 4th
National Technology Industrialist Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 52, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking University
in the PRC with a master’s degree in international relations and
has over 27 years of experience in the information technology
industry and investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman,
chief executive officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the
Company’s substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000,
Mr. Kui was the president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the
Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, age 50, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu
is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003,
Mr. Xu was the president of a system integration company and
has extensive experience in computer systems integration of the
financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 55, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s
degree in law. He has over 27 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also a director of HSL. Prior to
joining HSL in 1999, he had worked for several companies in the
PRC and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li has also
been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company and a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 24 February
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 52, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in international economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr.
Xu had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
He has over 27 years of experience in corporate management of
enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 56, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 27
years’ experience in auditing, corporate advisory services as well as
financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently
an executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a
major red chip company) and an independent non-executive
director of KWG Property Holding Limited, both of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 62, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm,
Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public
in Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience
in law both in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a member
of the Inland Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and
has been appointed as a China-appointed Attesting Officer since
January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, age 64, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas
at Austin, United States of America with a bachelor’s degree in
Statistics and Operations Research. Mr. Chang possesses more than
23 years of experience in electronic payments industry in Southeast
Asia, Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang was the Senior
Vice President, Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc. (“VISA”)
in Singapore. He was previously VISA’s Greater China General
Manager, Japan General Manager, and senior country manager for
Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines and Indochina. He joined the
Group in 2009 as a Non- Executive Director and was re-designated
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 February 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Liao
Lizhi, Mr. Liang Jing Jing, Mr. Zhao Yue Hui, Mr. Li Li and Ms. Hui
Lok Yan were the Company’s senior management.

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 39, is the president of BETTI S BR AR (“VBIll
OPCQ"). He graduated from Hubei University of Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Technology. He joined the Group
in 2008. He has over 12 years of experience in third-party payment
industry management.

LIAO LIZHI

Mr. Liao, age 46, is the general manager of Hunan Hisun Mobile
Pay IT Ltd. He graduated from Renmin University of China with
a bachelor’s degree in Corporate Management and received a
master’s degree in Business Management from Sichuan University.
He joined the Group in 2005. He has over 12 years of experience
in the communication industry.

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 37, is the president of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited. He graduated
from Central South University with a bachelor’s degree in
Telecommunications Engineering and received a master’s degree
in Engineering Project Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University. He joined the Group in 2003. He has over 15 years of
experience in the information technology industry.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, age 54, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou
PAX Electronic Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang
University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and received a
master’s degree in engineering from Tongji University. He has over
17 years of experience in corporate management. He joined the
Group in 2000.

Ll

Mr. Li, age 43, is the president of Mega Hunt Microelectronics
Limited. He graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and a master’s degree in engineering. He also
received a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School. He joined the
Group in 2010. He has over 21 years of experience in the integrated
circuit design industry.

HUI LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 40, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager
of an international public accountancy firm.

ﬂl

SEEEAR

REFEREAH ek s BIRELA 25
oA BB A YA RFHRE LI AEERR
RAREEE AR

ey

R 395 REETTN SN ERAE ([BETT1]) 48
Ho-MmEERPILTERE FHEE ﬁ%ﬂzm?if—iuo
FR_EEN\FNALREE - FREB=FZMTEE
BHEES T F&5%-

}i

B

B 4658 RNFERGAREERRINERARAE
RIE-RBENTEARAE HAELEEEELTE
i WEMINASER T TEHERBLEM -HR_-F
TRAFMAREE - FRBETEIEER T K

a8 e
&S 375 RILREBSEESRMERARE
HoWEERTEAS ﬁﬁi@ﬁlﬁ%ﬂ:ﬂﬁ i

PERBRERFIHEEEBEA T EBELTSM - R
TER=FMAREE- f)ﬁw BHRIMREITE T ®E
BEt+HFELR-
1z

A 5450 AN EEETRITAR A FITIRE
ﬁ HREMINIAS  FHEIBELTEN  WEER

BAREBTSBELTEM - FRECETEFBER 5
iﬁﬁ BRZETTFMALREE-

Fv

FRE 35 RABEREFRIN (L) ERA
ARE REENBFEAR BETIRSLMIRER
TR TESTRERIHSkaEERARLRH
EEETEM RN T —TFMAREE WAL
RERRAHTE T HER— +—F &8

it &

ARt 405 RANRRZ R ER IS E R R QA
WE-FEXNBETXAR FEIREESLE
- HFHLTRRBBEAMATRESR R
ZLEFEMAREER A HEERARSFETZ
IR o



Dear Shareholders,

During Year 2018, consolidated revenue amounted to HK$4,662.0
million, as compared to HK$2,910.0 million in Year 2017.
Such increase was mainly contributed by the continued strong
growth of the payment processing solutions segment during the
year. Operating profit totaled HK$258.5 million, a 14% down
as compared to Year 2017. Decrease in operating profit of the
Group for YEAR 2018 was primarily due to (i) the share option
expenses of approximately HK$201.4 million under the payment
processing solutions segment and information security chips and
solutions attributable to the share options granted by subsidiaries
of the Company during the year; and (ii) the absence of a one-off
gain of approximately HK$63.3 million recorded in YEAR 2017
resulting from the disposal of subsidiaries of the Company. The
Group's share of results from an associated company, PAX Global
increased by 28% as compared to last year. Profit for the year
totaled HK$337.3 million as compared to HK$389.5 million in
YEAR 2017. With regard to our balance sheet, the total assets as at
31 December 2018 amounted to HK$6,632.5 million, as compared
to HK$5,657.5 million as at 31 December 2017. Among which
short term bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$2,683.1 million.

Our payment processing solutions segment maintains its growth
momentum in Year 2018. Segmental turnover amounted to
HK$3,744.9 million, a 89% up as compared to last year. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$397.0 million, as compared
to HK$260.7 million in Year 2017. By the end of Year 2018, the
total accumulated number of domestic merchants exceeded 4.2
million and the transaction volume in December of 2018 was
over RMB170 billion. On 12 February 2019, the Company, the
management shareholders of VBill OPCO, our payment processing
solutions segment subsidiary, ELECTRUM B.V. (the “Investor”), VBill
(Cayman) and VBill OPCO entered into a subscription agreement
(“Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which the Investor will
conditionally subscribe for, and be allotted, an aggregate of up
to 15% of the issued ordinary shares of VBill (Cayman) (“VBill
Shares”) on a fully diluted basis, at an aggregate subscription price
of up to RMB588,000,000. The Directors are of the view that the
proposed subscription offers a good opportunity to our payment
processing solutions segment as it will provide funding for further
business expansion, thereby reinforcing its comprehensive strength
and growth potential. Besides, the introduction of the Investor
is expected to bring strategic benefit. Through establishing and
enhancing the cooperative relationship between the Company and
the Investor, whose ultimate beneficial owner is a reputable private
fund, such relationship is expected to allow our payment processing
solutions arm to leverage on the experience and reputation of such
reputable private fund to further develop its business network and to
create future funding opportunity.
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Financial solutions segment and platform operation solutions
segment were generating stable turnover to the Group during the
year. The decline in segmental operating profit from these two
segments was mainly due to (i) fair value losses on financial assets
through profit or loss; (ii) increase in other operating expenses due
to additional resources placed to a number of new projects under
development; and (iii) increase in R&D expenses. To leverage on
our strengths in the traditional customer market, we will continue
to invest in and target new opportunities for product innovation and
business development in the areas of e-commerce, payment and
internet finance.

Driven by the significant growth of the payment market in China,
the information security chips business expanded rapidly in Year
2018. Segmental turnover amounted to HK$291.6 million, a 65%
up as compared to last year, primarily due to drastic increase in the
sales of security micro-controller (MCU). Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$19.7 million as compared to HK$26.4 million
in Year 2017. Decline in segmental operating profit in spite of an
increase in segmental turnover was mainly due to (i) increased R&D
expenses as compared to last year; and (ii) share option expenses of
approximately HK$6.1 million under the information security chips
and solutions segment attributable to the share options granted in
July 2018.

Notwithstanding that Year 2018 was another challenging year to
our electronic power meters and solutions segment, tender result
gradually improved as compared to Year 2017. While the State Grid
continues to promote new technological development, especially
the DLT698.45 object-oriented interchangeable data exchange
protocol, we expect our already well progressing DLT698.45
protocol related products will provide us certain advantages in the
tender exercises in the year of 2019.

With our strong financial position, management will remain focused
on financial and operation disciplines and take hold of the various
opportunities for the Group’s business growth in Year 2019. On
behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity to
express our utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers,
business associates and most valued shareholders for their
continuous trust and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
OUTLOOK

AND BUSINESS

Review of business performance of the Group during the Reporting
Year and the Group’s business outlook are disclosed in the section
headed “Business Review” of the Report of the Directors in this
Annual Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group reported total assets of
HK$6,632.5 million (2017: HK$5,657.5 million), which were
financed by total liabilities of HK$2,061.2 million (2017:
HK$1,493.9 million) and equity of HK$4,571.3 million (2017:
HK$4,163.6 million). The net asset value was HK$4,571.3 million
(2017: HK$4,163.6 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$1.646 as at 31 December 2018 as compared to HK$1.499 per
share as at 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$2,681.5 million (2017: HK$2,541.5 million) and short term
borrowing of HK$10.2 million (2017: HK$9.6 million). The net
cash position as at 31 December 2018 was HK$2,671.3 million
as compared to HK$2,531.9 million as at 31 December 2017. The
gearing ratio (defined as total borrowing divided by total capital)
was 0.2% (2017: 0.2%). The gearing ratio is considered healthy and
suitable for the continuing growth of the Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank borrowing of
HK$10.2 million (2017: HK$9.6 million) and banking facilities of
approximately HK$18.2 million (2017: HK$19.2 million). The bank
borrowing was charged at an interest rate of 5.24% per annum
(2017: 4.57%). As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowing and
banking facilities were secured by the leasehold land and buildings
of a subsidiary of the Company, with a net carrying amount of
HK$2.9 million (2017: HK$3.1 million) and HK$7.5 million (2017:
HK$9.0 million), respectively.

Approximately HK$1,909.6 million, HK$380.3 million, HK$195.8
million, HK$193.2 million and HK$2.6 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US
Dollar, Japanese Yen and Macanese Pataca (“MOP”) respectively as
at 31 December 2018.
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Approximately HK$1,820.7 million, HK$317.9 million, HK$211.5
million, HK$188.8 million and HK$2.6 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US
Dollar, Japanese Yen and MOP respectively as at 31 December
2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2018.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan
for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2018.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in US Dollars, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollars. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group’s
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi or Japanese Yen may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A) Performance Guarantee Agreement with a customer

(B)

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance of
a service project by a subsidiary of the Group with a surety of
not more than HK$60,000,000 and to indemnify the customer
against any third-party claim of intellectual property right
infringement resulting from the acts of the said subsidiary. As
at 31 December 2018, the Company did not recognise any
liability in relation to the Performance Guarantee Agreement
as the Directors of the Company consider the possibility of
reimbursement not probable.

Guarantee Agreement with subsidiaries of the Group

In 2017, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
(“2017 Guarantee Agreement”) with its wholly-owned
subsidiary (“Subsidiary A”). Pursuant to the 2017 Guarantee
Agreement, the Company shall guarantee to repay any due and
unsettled debts of Subsidiary A of up to US$6,000,000 incurred
in relation to such manufacturing orders placed by Subsidiary
A against a named manufacturer, should it cease or fail to
honour its payment obligations. As at 31 December 2018,
the Company did not recognise any liability under the 2017
Guarantee Agreement as the Directors consider the possibility
of reimbursement is not probable.

In respect of the further increasing credit limit of manufacturing
orders placed by Subsidiary A and another wholly-owned
subsidiary (“Subsidiary B”) of the Company against the
aforesaid manufacturer, the Company entered into a new
guarantee agreement dated 3 July 2018 (“2018 Guarantee
Agreement”) with Subsidiary A and Subsidiary B. Pursuant to
the 2018 Guarantee Agreement, the Company shall guarantee
to repay the due and unsettled debts of Subsidiary A and/
or Subsidiary B individually and/or collectively of up to
US$10,000,000 incurred in relation to such manufacturing
orders placed by Subsidiary A and/or Subsidiary B individually
and/or collectively, should each of them individually and/or
collectively cease or fail to honour its payment obligations.

The 2017 Guarantee Agreement was terminated on 3 July
2018 and the entirety of the Company’s and the aforesaid
manufacturer’s rights, obligations and liability thereunder,
if any, was effectively transferred to the 2018 Guarantee
Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of the 2018
Guarantee Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2018.

o B Z W i B A

HREE

A B—EEFITURRERGE

(B)

RZZ—RF AREH—BFRFI L RRER
ek ([REERBR]) - BRERBERBZ®
AARRERANEE —FHHB AR E R
BITRBAENARPREER  BRSETEGB
60,000,000/ 7T + 3 [/ = 3L A Ll fi 8 A Bl1E3L
B=HABEENTITASIBMRERZEFIEL
BE-RNZE-N\E+_A=+—H ARQFIL
EERATMBBRAERBROAE  RETIA
NAEERBREREZTEM TS -

HEAEBMNEB AR LERGZR

RZT—tF ARalBEE BB QR ([H
BARIAD I ERBE (2 —EFERHB
#]) BEBEZT - FERIBE MEHEAGA
EIESAREBITENRER AR ABREER
B8~ RIARE I Pl 23 P T B BB RT BB TS|
BMARNEBRREEES RESTHB
6,000,000 L - R=E—N\F+=—A=+—H"
RARWAREREMBE S —FERBED
BE REDESRARIREZJEETR-

BRE—SIEINBEBARARAAR S —BEE
WEBAR ([MBARB])HATMEER T A
BRI 2 (S EREE - AR FEME A RAKRM
BRARBIIVEHA-T-NE+A=BZHE
R (22— N\FERRZE]) - BREZF—N
FRERBH WHBERRANR, HHEARB A
R/ SRR REBITENRET AR
A REBEEMBATAN B LR BE?
R/ RE it BEET B AT S B mE R &,
S HERGE RO R AREEES  RESTBA
10,000,000 7T

T FERBEN T \FLA=ZHEE
BE - MARR R Bl SGERERN - NEBRTZ
ERERGLAT (MR ERRBEA-T—/\F
R AZRN —F— \FRRHEZGER
Ko fefth o

B EXEEEN R N\F+_A=+—H K
SEYEEAERLAEE.

11



12

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Management Discussion and Analysis

ﬁﬁiﬂ@z.ﬂ“ﬁ} i

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2018 was 2,700. The breakdown of employees by division is as
follows:

==

AEBER-T-N\F+-A=+—BZREEKA
2,700 A < f B HFIEH T

Payment processing solutions XNRZPEBERT R 1,016
Information security chips and solutions BERRERF MR F 109
Platform operation solutions FRELMRAR 828
Financial solutions SRR T R 480
Electronic power meters and solutions BRAEERRBARR 220
Others HAh 12
Corporate office 15D 35
2,700
The Group ensures that its employees’ remuneration packages are ~AEEEREESFHEFEL2HMBAAHRFEN-ES

comprehensive and competitive. Employees are remunerated with
fixed monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses.
The Group also operates certain share option schemes for the
purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating the employees,
details are set out in the Share Capital and Share Options section
of the Report of the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected
employees to attend external training courses that suit the needs of
the Group's businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group's
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as
an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding
of the Group’s current financial performance. Additionally, as
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to
investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The principal activities of the Group are provision of payment
processing solutions, sales of information security chips and
solutions, provision of platform operation solutions, provision
of financial solutions and sales of electronic power meters and
solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 92.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year (2017: Nil).

RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer
given there will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement
of the shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) to be held on
Thursday, 2 May, 2019 will be Thursday, 25 April, 2019. All transfers
of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Share
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 25 April, 2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in notes 29 and 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating
talented employees in order to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme (the
“Participants”) include any full-time employees, executive and non-
executive Directors of the Company or any subsidiary or associated
companies. The Scheme became effective on 29 April 2011 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date. Further details of
the Scheme can be found in the circular of the Company dated 28
March 2011.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme, and any other share option schemes of the Company
in issue, shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its
Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all exercised and/or outstanding options
granted to each Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue in any 12-month
period. Any further grant of options in excess of the aforesaid 1%
limit shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the
Company with such Participant and his/her associates abstaining
from voting.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 Shares were available for
issue under the Scheme, representing 9.63% of the total number of
Shares in issue.

The exercise period of the options granted is determinable by the
Directors, and such period shall commence on the date of the offer
of the options (the “Offer Date”) and expire on the last day of such
period which must not exceed 10 years.
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There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and no performance target needs to be
achieved by the grantee before the option can be exercised.

A share option shall take effect when duly accepted by the
Participant and the Company receives from the grantee a total
remittance of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the Offer Date, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (ii) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five Trading Days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

No share option of the Company has been granted, exercised
cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this report.

Share Option Scheme of VBill OPCO

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (“VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme”), which complies with Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules, for VBill OPCO on 15 January 2018 which
became effective on 5 February 2018. The purpose of the VABill
OPCO Share Option Scheme is to enable VBill OPCO to grant
options of equity interest of VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO Options”) to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to VBill OPCO and its subsidiaries
(“VBill OPCO Group”). Eligible participants of the VBill OPCO
Share Option Scheme include any directors, supervisors, general
managers and other employees of any member of VBill OPCO
Group. Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the VBill OPCO
Share Option Scheme will be effective for a period of 5 years from
the date of grant of options, i.e. 5 February 2018. Further details of
the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme can be found in the circular
of the Company dated 19 January 2018 and the announcement of
the Company dated 5 February 2018.
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The total registered capital of VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO Registered
Capital”) which may be contributed by grantees upon the exercise
of all options to be granted under the VBill OPCO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of VBill OPCO shall
not in aggregate exceed RMB19,990,000, being 10% of the VBill
OPCO Registered Capital as at the date of approval of the VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from the Shareholders.

The maximum VBill OPCO Registered Capital contributed and to
be contributed upon exercise of the VBill OPCO Options granted
to each participant of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding VBill OPCO Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the VBill OPCO
Registered Capital, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
with such participant and his close associates (or his associates
if such participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
For options granted or to be granted to a substantial Shareholder,
an independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1% of the Shares in issue
and HK$5,000,000 in aggregate value based on the closing price of
the Shares on the date of each grant. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit is subject to Shareholders” approval at general
meeting, with the Participant concerned and all core connected
persons of the Company abstain from voting.

The exercise period of the VBill OPCO Options granted is to be
determined by the board of directors of VBill OPCO, commencing
on the date of the grant and expiring within 5 years therefrom.

There is no minimum period for which a VBill OPCO Option
must be held nor any performance targets to be achieved by a
grantee before a VBill OPCO Option can be exercised subject to
VBill OPCQO'’s board of directors’ discretion, on a case-by-case
basis or generally, to impose such conditions, such as minimum
performance targets and other terms as they consider appropriate.

A VBill OPCO Option shall take effect when the grantee returns the
letter of acceptance and VBill OPCO receives from the grantee a
total remittance of RMB1.00 as consideration for the grant.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price to be
determined by the board of directors of VBill OPCO in its absolute
discretion at the time of the grant of the VBill OPCO Option, with
reference to factors which may include the business performance,
value of VBill OPCO Group and individual performance of the
grantee, but in any event, the subscription price shall not be less
than the net asset value of the interests of VBill OPCO subject to the
VBill OPCO Option calculated from the latest audited accounts of
VBill OPCO.
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The subscription price of VBill OPCO Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of VBill
OPCO on the Stock Exchange, the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing
date of VBill OPCO must be not lower than the new issue price
(if any). In particular, any VBill OPCO Options that would have
been granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of VBill OPCO would be subject to
this requirement.

On 5 February 2018, among others, the grant of VBill OPCO
Options to Mr. Shen Zheng (“Mr. Shen”), Mr. Li Huimin (“Mr. Li")
and Mr. Guo Yi (“Mr. Guo”) was approved by the Shareholders at
the special general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Shen is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill OPCO
and a director of certain members of the VBill OPCO Group. Mr.
Li is the chief executive officer of VBill OPCO and the supervisor
of a member of the VBill OPCO Group. Mr. Guo is the senior
vice president of VBill OPCO. Each of Mr. Shen and Mr. Li is a
connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. None of Mr.
Shen, Mr. Li and Mr. Guo is a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company or an associate of any of them.

The subscription price of the VBill OPCO Options granted was
RMB12.51 for every RMB1.0 in the VBill OPCO Registered Capital.
The amount of enlarged VBill OPCO Registered Capital subject to
the VBill OPCO Options granted were respectively RMB13,629,500
for Mr. Shen, RMB6,814,750 for Mr. Li and RMB6,814,750 for Mr.
Guo, representing approximately 6%, 3% and 3% respectively of
the enlarged VBill OPCO Registered Capital, upon full exercise of
their respective VBill OPCO Options. The grantees may exercise
their VBill OPCO Options within three years from the date on which
the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme took effect (i.e. 5 February
2018).

No VBill OPCO Share Option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2018. As at the date of this
report, VBill OPCO Options in the amount of RMB27,259,000
remain outstanding, representing 12% of the enlarged VBill OPCO
Registered Capital.
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Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company, VBill OPCO, Mr.
Shen, Mr. Li, Mr. Xue Guangyu and Ms. Ge Xiaoxia, VBill (Cayman)
and ELECTRUM B.V. had entered into a subscription agreement on
12 February 2019, pursuant to which the parties, among others,
conditionally agreed that VBill (Cayman) shall adopt a share option
scheme and grant options (“VBill (Cayman) Options”) to Mr. Shen,
Mr. Li and Mr. Xue and Mr. Guo, such that upon the full exercise
of the VBIll (Cayman) Options, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li and Mr. Xue will
in aggregate will hold such number of shares of VBill (Cayman)
representing approximately 10.8% of the shares of VBill (Cayman)
in issue on a fully diluted basis, upon which the VBill Share
Option Scheme will be cancelled. Further details of the proposed
cancellation of the VBill Share Option Scheme can be found in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 February 2019.

Share Option Scheme of Megahunt

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(“Megahunt Share Option Scheme”), which complies with Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules, for Mega Hunt Microelectronics (Beijing)
Limited (“Megahunt”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, on 4 July 2018 (“Date of Grant”) which became effective
on 10 August 2018. The purpose of the Megahunt Share Option
Scheme is to enable Megahunt to grant options of equity interest
of Megahunt (“Megahunt Options”) to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to Megahunt. The Board of Megahunt considers that Megahunt
Share Option Scheme will provide the selected participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in Megahunt
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of
equity interests in Megahunt for the benefit of Megahunt and its
shareholder(s) as a whole. Eligible participants of the Megahunt
Share Option Scheme include the directors or senior management
of Megahunt or its subsidiaries. Further details of the Megahunt
Share Option Scheme can be found in the circular of the Company
dated 11 July 2018 and the announcement of the Company dated
10 August 2018.
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The total registered capital of Megahunt (“Megahunt Registered
Capital”) which may be contributed by the grantees upon exercise
of all Megahunt Options to be granted under the Megahunt Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of Megahunt
will be HK$1,500,000, being 10% of the Registered Capital of
Megahunt as at the date of approval of the Megahunt Share Option
Scheme by Shareholders (“Megahunt Scheme Mandate Limit”),
unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the Shareholders.

The maximum Megahunt Registered Capital contributed and to
be contributed upon exercise of the Megahunt Options granted
to each participant of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding Megahunt Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Megahunt
Registered Capital, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
with such participant and his close associates (or his associates
if such participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
For options granted or to be granted to a substantial Shareholder,
an independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1% of the Megahunt
Registered Capital. Any further grant of options in excess of such
limit is subject to Shareholders’” approval at general meeting, with
the participant concerned and all core connected persons of the
Company abstain from voting.

The exercise period of the Megahunt Options shall be determined
by the board of directors of Megahunt at the time of making the
offer of the Megahunt Options and in any event shall expire within
8 years from the relevant date of grant.

Although it is not a general requirement under the terms of
Megahunt Share Option Scheme for any minimum period for which
any Megahunt Option must be held or any performance targets
which must be achieved before any Megahunt Option granted can
be exercised, the board of directors of Megahunt has discretion on a
case-by-case basis or generally to impose such conditions, including
(i) minimum periods for which the Megahunt Option must be held;
and/or (ii) minimum performance targets that must be reached
before the Megahunt Options can be exercised in whole or in part;
and/or (iii) such other terms as may be imposed at the discretion of
the board of directors of Megahunt on the Megahunt Options where
appropriate.

A Megahunt Option shall take effect when the grantee returns the
letter of acceptance and Megahunt receives from the grantee a total
remittance of RMB1.00 as consideration for the grant.
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The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price to
be determined by the board of directors of Megahunt in its absolute
discretion at the time of the grant of the Megahunt Option with
reference to factors which may include the business performance,
value of Megahunt and individual performance of the grantee.

The subscription price of Megahunt Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of
Megahunt on the Stock Exchange, the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to
the listing date of Megahunt must be not lower than the new issue
price (if any). In particular, any Megahunt Options that would have
been granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of Megahunt would be subject to
this requirement.

On 8 August 2018, the grant of Megahunt Options to Ms. Song Jie
(“Ms. Song”), Mr. Liu Zhan-li, (“Mr. Liu”), Mr. Yang Lei (“Mr. Yang”)
and Mr. Li Li, (“Mr. Li") was approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting of the Company. Ms. Song is a director
and the financial controller of Megahunt. Mr. Liu is the technology
director of Megahunt. Mr. Yang is the deputy general manager of
Megahunt. Mr. Li is a director, the legal representative and the
general manager of Megahunt. None of the aforesaid grantees is a
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company
or an associate of any of them.

The subscription price of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme
granted was approximately RMB13.33 for every HK$1.00 in the
Megahunt Registered Capital. The amount of enlarged Megahunt
Registered Capital subject to the Megahunt Share Options granted
were respectively RMB2,000,000 for Ms. Song, RMB7,000,000 for
Mr. Lui, RMB7,000,000 for Mr. Yang and RMB24,000,000 for Mr.
Li, representing approximately 0.83%, 2.92%, 2.92% and 10%
respectively of the enlarged Megahunt Registered Capital.

30%, 30% and 40% of the Megahunt Options granted to the
respective grantees shall be vested on the first, second and third
anniversary respectively, from the Date of Grant. The Grantees may
exercise his or her vested Megahunt Options within the period
commencing from the respective vesting day and ending on (i) the
eighth anniversary from the Date of Grant; or (ii) the date on which
such Megahunt Options ceases to be valid, whichever is earlier.
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No Megahunt Option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2018. As at the date of this report,
Meghunt Options in the amount of RMB3,000,000 remain
outstanding, representing 16.67% of the enlarged Megahunt
Registered Capital.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as calculated under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to HK$27,188,000
(2017: HK$115,979,000). The Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2017: HK$1,290,857,000)
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 228.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS

Turnover EBITDA*
3 EBITDA?
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+E —E-N\E —T+E
Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
iz TR TR TR T
Payment processing solutions INRGRBERTE 1 3,744,922 1,979,939 884,448 432,375
Information security chips and solutions z %?%U)ﬁ* &ﬁjt}?&ﬁ% 2 291,567 177,224 26,475 26,867
Platform operation solutions TRBERATR 3 209,636 209,683 (24,148) (9,346)
Financial solutions SREASE 4 311,549 295,328 12,054 23,942
Electronic power meters and solutions R EEMMIEARE 5 105,347 250,960 (23,920) 1,692
Others Hfh - - (12,262) (948)
Segmental results Lk 4,663,021 2,913,134 862,647 474,582
Less: Inter-segment tumover RS E L (1,067) (3,156) - -
Total ast — 4,661,954 2,909,978 862,647 474,58
Depreciation e (297,496) (179,040)
Amortisation B 434) (8,950)
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial asset BOTESABGZ EHEEL
at fair value through profit or loss NPE(BR) W (16,273) 16,605
Employees” incentive programme of subsidiaries WEAR kSRR 2 B (201,447) -
Segmental operating profit PEELET 346,997 303,197
Unallocated other income AALEMBA 5,145 5,161
Unallocated cor?orate expenses AOEBERX (93,641) (71,443)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR KA - 63,262
Operating profit g 258,501 300,177
ve a2
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT | A% R & W22 3k
2018 2017
ZE-\E 25
HKS'000 HKS'000
BT TEL
Revenue WA 4,661,954 2,909,978
Cost of sales HERA (3,404,203) (2,165,949)
Gross profit EF 1,257,751 744,029
Other income e A A 43,804 46,721
Other (losses)/gains, net Hin (B58) /W38 A (16922) 21,139
Selling expenses HERX B (96,829) (113,394)
Administrative expenses TRER B (687,992) (461,580)
Employees’ incentive programme of subsidiaries WEAR 2 ES 252 B (201,447) -
Credit impairment loss EERESE (39,954) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME A A s C - 63,262
Operating profit & 258,501 300,177
Finance costs i (89) 9
Share of result of an investment accounted for using the equity method & Z BREZEE D 171,753 134,531
Gain on dilution of interest in an investment accounted for using IA# Z AiRE D
the equity method - 113
Profit before income tax BRFASBATE M 430,165 434,812
Income tax expense FEHREY (92,875) (45,298)
Profit for the year FREF 337,290 389,514
Profit attributable to: ERER:
- Owners of the Company —ARAREA 278,175 346,144
- Non-controlling interests —rhER 59,115 43,370
337,290 389,514
Earnings per share for profit attributable to ARAEANER HKS per share HK$ pers share
the owners of the Company: BH 2 BREF KET FRET
Basic £x 0.100 0.125
Diluted &3 0.095 0.124

Represents earnings/(losses) before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes employees’ incentive programme of subsidiaries
and fair value (losses)/gains on financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.
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As at 31 December

R+=A=+-AH
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi zE THERT THET
ASSETS =3
Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and leasehold land BRENE -NE BERREUAREELH E 747,258 540,904
Intangible assets BREE 1,884 1,985
Investments accounted for using the equity method PAEREAR KA F 1,931,188 1,823,245
Available-for-sale financial assets AREESREE G - 178,385
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income BAFEAALBEARE 2 EREE G 895 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRATEFABRZZEREE H 273,745 96,187
Inventories BE I 162,275 95,407
Trade and bills receivables MRS R BN R J 149,178 278,319
Other financial assets at amortised cost and other current assets REHRAHE B EREER J
A RBEE 131,625 66,890
Loan receivables ERER K 536,295 2,205
Amounts due from investments accounted for using the equity method YA EARZ R E 2R L 15,116 16,289
Short-term bank deposits REBEITER 1,583 16,153
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBE2EEY 2,681,475 2,541,482 —
Total assets BEH4E 6,632,517 5,657,451
EQUITY i £
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Company ADAREEABEERR RS
Share capital RA 6,942 6,942
Reserves f# 4,371,271 4,052,400
4378213 4,059,342
Non-controlling interests FERER 193,062 104,203
Total equity ERAHE 4,571,275 4,163,545
LIABILITIES a8
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHAR 109 163
Trade and bills payables N AES M 251,043 239,199
Payables for payment processing solutions business SRR G RIEFRFH REB R TE M 266,710 292,587
Other payables and accruals HAb e B R ER B M 1,376,874 848,409
Amounts due to investments accounted for using the equity method FER AR E AR RE 2 FR L 114,190 57,755
Current income tax liabilities EHTEAR 42,069 46,197
Borrowing R 10,247 9,596
Total liabilities ELE 2,061,242 1,493,906
Total equity and liabilities BEREELE 6,632,517 5,657,451
HKS$ per share HKS$ per share
SRBT BRET
Net assets per share BREEFE 1.646 1.499
A =
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ~ FBAZGRE R SR B R

For the year ended 31 December
HET-A=1+-RLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E “T—tfF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TET

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities Be%BHE/ (MR RLFH 699,043 (153,447)

Net cash used in investing activities REZHFMARSFE (469,991) (273,374)

Net cash generated from financing activities BETHFEREFE 15,371 12,808

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents RERREZEMWEN/ (L) FE 244,423 (414,013)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNZRERREEEY 2,541,482 2,804,978

Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash equivalents BeRBRLSEYZEL (BB) Mas (104,430 150,517
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRAZRERAEEEY 2,681,475 2,541,482 ——
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (“YEAR 2018"), the
consolidated turnover of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) amounted
to HK$4,662.0 million, representing an increase of 60% when
compared with the year ended 31 December 2017 (“YEAR 2017").
Profit for the year totaled HK$337.3 million as compared to
HK$389.5 million in YEAR 2017.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$6,632.5 million, when compared with
HK$5,657.5 million as at 31 December 2017. As at 31 December
2018, net current assets amounted to HK$1,606.1 million, when
compared with HK$1,522.7 million as at 31 December 2017.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(1) Payment processing solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* 3k
EBITDA? EBITDA?
Employees’ incentive programme  — [ @A F 2~
of a subsidiary e 8 52E) =T 3
Operating profit A

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes employees’ incentive programme of a
subsidiary

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$3,744.9 million, as
compared to HK$1,979.9 million in YEAR 2017. By end of
YEAR 2018, there were over 4,200,000 accumulated active
domestic merchants and the monthly transaction volume in
December 2018 exceeded RMB170 billion. The increase in
segmental operating profit was mainly due to increased scale
of transaction operations. Despite the employees’ incentive
programme of a subsidiary expenses of approximately
HK$195.3 million under the payment processing solutions
segment attributable to the share options granted in February
2018 (Please refer to the circular of the Company dated 19
January 2018 and the announcement of the Company dated 5
February 2018 for further details.), segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$397.0 million, 52% up as compared to
HK$260.7 million in YEAR 2017.

Bt #5El R

REZE—T— \F+_A=+—HBLFE ([ZF—N

FED mERE(PE)ARAR ([RAF]) RHE

WEAT ([AREE ) 2476 &35 /R4,662,000,00078

EBEECT—tFT A=+ BLEFE(=ZE

—tiﬁ 1)IEIN60% © FF A MG $5337,300,00098
7T T = —+FE A /A389,500,00078 T ©

NF+—A=+—H ¥
*t¢+—ﬂ
—N\F+=

MEEAERME N=ZT—
EHA(E 56,632,500,0008 7T MR —Z
=-+—HA81A5,657,500,000/8 T ° A~

A=+—8" mu%ﬂﬁ%x?fﬁi%,606,100,000/%75 S
—+tF+=A=+—HEAIA1,522,700,000/ T °
DRI EEE
1) IARGEEBEBRAR
T EXRHIEE
2018 2017 Change
—E-N\HF —tF EE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)
FET FAET
3,744,922 1,979,939 +89%
884,448 432,375 +105%
195,300 - N/A 3 A
397,001 260,657 +52%

* REINDEPZEER

fOIEARETRIE X TR EREHENARN RTEeRE
—FRME AR Z R 8 KR &

AR E 58 A3,744,900,0008 7T T —ZE—+4F
[E8/51,979,900,0008 T - HE - — N\FE
R REHE BB AR P 20 184,200,000~ - =
- N\F+ZAREXRSTEAARKE700(85T
DEEE B FIENE B RN ZEERNREER
il @ER ZT— N\FZ ARDHBREMR
SNRGEEBRIRDE —HRBRAFZ
&2 8 881 2159 £ 49195,300,000/8 7T (3 —2b5F
15 BREARFBPA-ZT—N\F—A+1H
ZBEHEAANRBEA-ZT— )/ \F-_AHEBZA
) D EBEAE A H FI34397,000,000/8 7T 8. —F
—+4F[Z260,700,0007% 7T _ F+52% ©



(2) Information security chips and solutions

Key performance indicators

Turnover* R
EBITDA? EBITDA?
Employees’ incentive programme  —EH B AR 2
of a subsidiary 1B B 82 Eh=t 2
Operating profit &R

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes employees’ incentive programme of a
subsidiary

During the year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$291.6
million as compared to HK$177.2 million in YEAR 2017,
increase by more than 65%. Sales of mag-stripe card security
decoder chips was stable while that of security micro-
controller (MCU) increased drastically. Segmental operating
profit amounted to HK$19.7 million, as compared to HK$26.4
million in YEAR 2017. Decline in segmental operating profit
in spite of an increase in segmental turnover was mainly due
to (i) increased research & development (“R&D”) expenses as
compared to last year; and (ii) employees” incentive programme
of a subsidiary expenses of approximately HK$6.1 million
under the information security chips and solutions segment
attributable to the share options granted in July 2018 (Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 11 July 2018 and
the announcement of the Company dated 10 August 2018 for
further details).

2

BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Report of the Directors

B

EERERRRBRAHE

FERBEEE
2018 2017 Change
—E-N\F —E—+tF o
HK$'000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FTET THBTT
291,567 177,224 +65%
26,475 26,867 1%
6,147 - N/A A~ A
19,699 26,390 -25%

* REIMNDEFZEER

EARFTAE S BUR TERMEAAN RTEE
—FRME AR 2 R B ERH &

FR- 5 EEERA291,600,0008 7T M=
—+FE 8 A177,200,0007 7T * FRIEFR1B65% ©
IR ME@RB S MESEREETE L2
BT HIZS R I ERERIRE EF o DR R T B
19,700,0005% 7T+ T — & —+4FZ 81/526,400,000
BT RE DS LN HIACEEF T E
ZHMOAEREZBREF LA RGHIRZE—N
FLARLHOBREMNME B L0 MERS
ENEz —HWBARZEEEEHEMZYH
6,100,000% 7T (& —F5F15 B2 M A F B &
AT N\FtA+—AZBHIARRBEA
—E-N\FENATBZAMH) -
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(3) Platform operation solutions

4)

Key performance indicators

Turnover* R

EBITDA? EBITDA?

Fair value (losses)/gains on BAFEFABRZ
financial asset at fair value TREEZ A TE
through profit or loss (&), Was

Operating (loss)/profit e (B8 ,8H

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and

amortisation, and excludes fair value (losses)/gains on financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

In YEAR 2018, we continued to provide high-quality and
efficient supporting services, such as product development,
business operation and system maintenance, to the
E-commerce Base of China Mobile, the IVR Base of China
Mobile and the Animation Base of China Mobile. During the
year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$208.6 million as
compared to HK$206.5 million in YEAR 2017. Segmental
operating loss amounted to HK$42.7 million, as compared to
a segmental operating profit of HK$4.0 million in YEAR 2017.
Segmental operating loss was primarily attributable to (i) fair
value losses on financial assets through profit or loss amounted
to HK$16.3 million; and (ii) increase in other operating
expenses due to additional resources placed to a number of
new projects under development such as online health care
services, online educational programmes etc.

Financial solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* e
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit i

* Turnover from external customers

(3) FEEEMARAR
FEXRHEIEE
2018 2017 Change
—E-N\E —E—tF 23
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)
THERT FET
208,569 206,527 +1%
(24,148) (9,346) N/A 3 A
(16,273) 16,605 N/A 3 A
(42,696) 4,043 N/A i A

* REINBEPZEEER

fEARRTFIESH R TEREERTRT) RTERE
BAFEFABSZeREAEZ ATE(BIE), K

—NFE BOEERTZEEEEL - F
%aEJJIVR%im&EP%EJ@J,x%mM ﬁ%ﬁ%fxﬁw’]
TR WERMAE EFCEREGHEE
FR DS ER A208,600,0008 L ==
—+4F & 81 /5206,500,0007 T » 7> FE 4K & 518
42,700,0008 7T I —ZE—tFEF A A B
& % 74,000,000 7T © D FBAE Z BB E ZHR)
BRAFEFABRZERMEEC AFEESEA
16,300,000/ 7T+ M ()[R Z{EIF B AFTIEE (10
B ERERY B ERERRE)RAEIINER
SH ARSI

@) EBMBRFR

FEXREET
2018 2017 Change
—E-N\F —T—tF HE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FERT TET

311,549 295,328 +5%
12,054 23,942 -50%
11,776 14,862 -21%

o REINDEFPZEERE



(5)

During the year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$311.5
million, as compared to HK295.3 million in YEAR 2017.
Segmental operating profit totaled HK$11.8 million, as
compared to HK$14.9 million in YEAR 2017. Decrease in
segmental operating profit was mainly due to an increase in
R&D expenses during the year.

Electronic power meters and solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* L
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating loss REER

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$105.3 million, a 58%
drop as compared to YEAR 2017. Decrease in turnover was
mainly due to decline in shipment level as compared to
YEAR 2017. Shrinkage of volume and size of tenders awarded
in YEAR 2017 posed severe challenges to the operating
environment during the year. Segmental operating loss
amounted to HK$26.4 million, as compared to HK$1.7 million
in YEAR 2017.

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

Revenue and other revenue

The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$4,662.0 million,
representing an increase of 60% over YEAR 2017. Such
increase was mainly contributed by increase in segmental
turnover of our payment processing solutions segment. Please
also refer to Notes (1) to (5) above on segmental performance.
Other revenue for YEAR 2018 mainly represented interest
income.

)
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FR 5 IEEETA311,500,0008 T M=
—-EF [ 81 /5295,300,0007 7T © 7 FE AL & i F
& F£ 511,800,000 0 M= —tFEFA 5
14,900,000 7T - D REAE & B Fm D> £ ER N F
IR B I S 3 DN T ER

BREFTEERRBRAE

T EXRBETE

2018 2017 Change
—E-N\F —E—tF i)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FHET FET
105,347 250,960 -58%
(23,920) 1,692 N/A A~ A
(26,424) (1,688) N/A 3 A

* REINDEPZEEE

DEEEEEA105,300,0008 7 B -_E—+FE
TP#58% c EEFE N NEEZHREEER-F
—tEERVAS . —E—HFEERPESE
TR AR 7 6 2 AOAS S IR 3% T R BR U D B8
DB 5 £26,400,00008 7T T — 2 —+ 4
FE B11A1,700,000/8 7T °

BERMBREEIIRR

A) WAREAUYA

4R A TR 54,662,000,0008 7T B - E—+L4F
FEHEIN60% ° BRI EBEARI MR FEER
RFRASFEZ DEBEEFIR AT - B2 M X
HEEMZEG) A ERBR - —E— NFEEMKA
FEZAFEHA-
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(B)

©

Cost of sales and operating expenses
Increase in cost of sales was primarily due to increase in
turnover of the payment processing solutions segment.

Increase in operating expenses during the year was primarily
due to (i) increase in employee benefit expenses given: (a)
employees’ incentive programme of subsidiaries expenses of
approximately HK$201.4 million under the payment processing
solutions segment and information security chips and solutions
segment; and (b) increase in average headcounts and average
salaries; (ii) increase in R&D expenses; (iii) increase in credit
impairment loss and (iv) change from a net foreign exchange
gain in YEAR 2017 to a net foreign exchange loss in YEAR
2018.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Amount in YEAR 2017 represented the gain on the disposal
of Merchant Support Co., Ltd. (“MS”), a then wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, completed in June 2017.

(D) Share of profit of and gain on dilution of interests in

(E)

(F)

investments accounted for using the equity method

The Group's shares of results of PAX Global Technology Limited
(“PAX Global”), an associated company of the Company, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

As an ordinary shareholder of Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(“Cloopen”), an associated company of the Company, the
Group’s share of loss exceeded its interest in the ordinary
shares of Cloopen, and there was no overall financial impact on
the consolidated income statement from the investment for the
year.

Investment properties, property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land

Balance mainly represented fixed assets of payment processing
solutions and electronic power meter and solutions segments.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Balance mainly represented the Group’s interests in PAX
Global. As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Group’s
33.1% effective interest in PAX Global was approximately
HK1,030.1 million and the fair value of the investment was
lower than its carrying value. An impairment test is performed
to determine the recoverable amount of the investment. The
recoverable amount, which was assessed by an independent
valuer on a value-in-use basis calculated by a discounted cash
flow model, exceeds the carrying value as at 31 December
2018.

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

(F)

HERFREERX
HERAENERHNIR S EERTTED
B ERRIE AR

FREERIIEINEZHR)EB RN A E
m-mEERMNAIEINNREES: @R
RGBEBAFT RS BRI zz%fa)#&%@&
FEMBEZHBRARZEEREFERZLY
201,400,000 7T : Rb)yFH AR FHTEHE
H0 s GBS RESTIE AN+ (ii){E ERE B 1R 10 K (iv)
H-Z—+FEINERSFREES T \FE
HNEBBRIFREME

HE B L Bz W

—tHFEZEFRELERANAERLE
¥ /& 2 B]Merchant Support Co., Ltd. ([MS ]) 2 1&
@ RHEREER Tt FRATK

B LR EA R REFAREZBE W
=

AEERERARBZBEATAETREMERE
RAF (TEERK] BBRORBRA EM) 25

==
e

£ Cloopen Group Holding Limited ([ Cloopen 1)
(RARARZBENT) 2 BBBAR - AEEE
IEEERRBE I Cloopen i@k 2 #esh - %18 1%
BRAFEREEGEWaR I ERBUETE -

REWE -NE BERREARBE L

BRI ERNR SRR RIANERE
AREMMBRTRNBZEEEE-

LR EARZRE

EHRFTEBAEBENRAERR ZESE-
WNZZE—N\E+-_A=+—8 AEER
AERNKZIBI%NEREZ 2 AFENE
1,030,100,000& 7T - Mm% & A FEE R HER
AE#ETRENREEEERE ZTEK
BN N\F+_A=+—H #HE
MG ERNERE A EEEET G RARER
SREEAFE 2N E S BAREE -
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(H

~
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The Group's effective interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen,
calculated based on all issued and outstanding ordinary shares
of Cloopen which are held by the Group, was 50.5%. As at
31 December 2018, the Group’s share of loss of Cloopen
exceeded its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, and
there was no overall financial impact on the consolidated
income statement from the investment for the year. As at 31
December 2018, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was zero and the fair value
of the Group’s interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was
approximately HK$410.8 million.

The Group is optimistic about the future prospects of PAX
Global and Cloopen and will continue to demonstrate
prudence and resilience in assessing its investment strategy
towards the enhancement of shareholders’ value. Details of the
performance of these investments are set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial information.

Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income/available-for-sale financial assets
As at 31 December 2018, the financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income included interest in
an unlisted equity investment in the PRC of HK$0.9 million.
The decline in available-for-sale financial assets was due to
a change in accounting policy. Please also refer to Note (H)
below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

The balances represented (i) the fair value of the Group's
interest in the convertible series C preferred shares of Cloopen
of HK$102.8 million; (ii) the fair value of the Group's interest
in the convertible series D preferred shares of Cloopen of
HK$39.0 million; (iii) the fair value of trading securities listed in
Hong Kong of HK$2.0 million; and (iv) the fair value of interest
in a venture capital fund of HK$129.9 million (which was
reclassified to financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
in 2018 due to the change in accounting policy).

On 28 February 2018, Main Access Limited (“Main Access”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as one of the
subscribers, entered into a share subscription agreement to
subscribe for 2,434,015 series D preferred shares of Cloopen at
the consideration of US$5 million. Completion of the Series D
Subscription Agreement took place on 19 March 2018. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 February
2018 for further details.

(G)

(H)
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R AN E B AT#Cloopen® B B 8 17 & 817
FESNE AR ETE - A & B R CloopenZ EFR
EARER R505% RZE—N\F+=A
=+—H  KREEE Cloopen/E1EHBMAHE R
CloopenZ Bk < #ew - MZBIRERAKEF
EHGENaRITEEENETEZE N2
—N\FFTZA=+—8 FEEMCloopen
B2 EmREERST - MALER Cloopen
2 &R 2 T {E 49 /410,800,000
5o

AEE Y H B IRk M Cloopen 4 2R Al = 15
LERET WRESFERERMAGER
BRE UEAKRREBE - AAZSRER
B FHBENGE M IEE R E21 -

BRAVFEFAHMEEARE2SREE T
HHEESHERE
R-ZE—-NE+-A=+—H RAFE:T
AEEEKE emEERERFRIEL
TR A% & 2 7 25900,0008 70 A] K E &
BEERL ARSI BERERME-ER
B 2B T UM REH)

RATEFAERZZEREE
IR (A EE R Cloopen CHR I AT AR 1E 5L AR
2 T M A F1E102,800,0007 7T ¢ (i) A S B R
Cloopen DRV A AR B IR 2 =8 A A
39,000,000 7T : (i) E B LT EZBHFHATF
{B2,000,000/8 7T : M(WRBIRE S 2 mH A
B129,900,000/8 7T (£ SRR G T HERE
R \FEEFDEARATEFABRZZ
SREE)

RZE—N\FZAZ+NH ARAZENBR
A]Main Access Limited ([ Main Access |) (1E&52
B2 )T LR REE = - ASRAE2,434,015
& Cloopen DRFIE AR - B /55,000,000% 7T ©
DEIREHHEN - \F=A+NE=E
Ko — S BAHARTRBAEZE N
FZAZTN\BZ R
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() Inventories n %8
The amount mainly represented inventories of electronic power %%E‘IRTE?E@EEJFEEDDD&ﬁ@?)&ﬁ%’ﬁiﬁiﬁ/\&%
meters and solutions segment and information security chips ZEGR RBRFRAENTE - FR - 815
and solutions segment. During the year, HK$1.3 million was 1,300,000/%75)31{’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&i@ﬁﬂ@ﬁZﬁfﬁﬁ‘ﬁ°
recorded for provision on inventories with respect to slow-
moving and obsolete stocks.
(J) Trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at () EWERRREKREE REBEXLSTTEZ
amortised cost and other current assets HtteRMEERAEMARDEE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Trade receivables (Note (i)(a)) FEUBR 3% (AT et (i)a)) 148,173 270,240
Bills receivables (Note (i)(b)) PR IR (HaEi)b)) 11,468 13,902
Less: provision for impairment of ;WK IR B B
receivables (10,463) (5,823)
149,178 278,319
Other receivables, prepayments and H o EUFRIE AR A R R @
deposits (Note (i) (K72 i)) 131,625 66,890
Total =H 280,803 345,209
Note (i): Afaza :

(@) The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180

@ AEE-RETESEBAZEEHHOZ180AT

days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on Fo I 2RBEAFEAY 2 BUIRRRROTT
invoice date was as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHER THBTT
Current to 90 days ENEAZ=90H 109,685 188,974
91 to 180 days 912180H 2,919 27,060
181 to 365 days 1812365H 8,335 19,564
Over 365 days 3658 B+ 27,234 34,642
148,173 270,240

Decline in trade receivables under all ageing classes was mainly due
to decrease in account receivable balances under the electronic power

meters and solutions segment.

(b) Bills receivables belonged to the information security chips and
solutions segment and electronic power meters and solutions segment.

BRI T Z RUBRTUR A I E BN BT &
EmMBERARDET 2 YRR FER -

b BURERBEBBWNMEELZ2ER RBATRAFUARE
BERtBERURBRTRDE



(K)

(L)

Note (ii):

The increase in balance was mainly due to increase in VAT receivables from
the payment processing solutions segment and electronic power meters and
solutions segment.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are amounts due from customers under the
payment processing solutions segment in the ordinary course of
business, unsecured and primarily denominated in RMB.

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the payment
due date is as follows:

(K)
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Fitati -

ERIENEEARKESINRSEEBRANENRARE
BERtBE M MR RO 2 B ER MRS AR -

FEW & &K

R E R RN BB ESERTRIEN R FHEIE
RN R BRREPHIA BHEFIRREE
BREBAARKTHE

RIBZAN A Z ERE KRR TN :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Current VAR 553,676 2,059

1 to 3 months past due A —E=={E A 9,365 146

Over 3 months past due BHER =1 A LA I 6,061 -

Loan receivables, gross JEWRE k45 569,102 2,205
Less: provision for impairment of W A E R 2 RE R

loan receivables (32,807) -

536,295 2,205

Non current JEENHA 479 -

Current BDHA 535,816 2,205

536,295 2,205

Amounts due from/to investments accounted for using
the equity method

The amounts due from/to investments accounted for using the
equity method represent payables from/to PAX Global and
Cloopen and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018. Amounts
due from/to investments accounted for using the equity method
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(L) Y EAUESEEARZIRE 2R

FEULFE AR E AR 2 08 7 FUBIER =T
—\EF+ZA=1+—BER FENEEBRHIAR
Cloopen &2 E KB A 7),2 5118 - FEUL/FEAS LA %R
EARZIRE 2 HEAEER RERIRERE
o
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(M) Trade and bills payables, payables for payment

M) BNERREEMRE XAXZEEHRE

processing solutions business and other payables and REBR 2 BARBEARH MRS RERER
accruals IR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER THET
Trade payables (Note (i)(a)) &R TR (BTt (i)@)) 247,878 218,178
Bills payables (Note (i)(b)) e (Bt b)) 3,165 21,021
Payables for payment processing XNRGEBBRFTREBZ
solutions business (Note (ii)) X RE L] (/Wuf(//)) 266,710 292,587
Other payables and accruals (Note (i)~ H At FER R & JEFT 5K
(K17t (ii)) 1,376,874 848,409
Total BEF 1,894,627 1,380,195
Note (i): HizEa) -

(a)

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.
The ageing analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice
date was as follows:

@ BHERETZEEHRIEIS0BTE - EERER
FZ A EMIRRERER DTN T -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FET

Current to 90 days ENEAZ=90H 205,694 141,038
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 2,663 33,096
181 to 365 days 181%2365H 17,774 30,344
Over 365 days 365H A 21,747 13,700
247,878 218,178

Increase in trade payables aged between 0 to 90 days was
mainly due to outstanding balances from the payment processing
solutions segment; partially net off by a decrease in outstanding
balance from the electronic power meters and solutions segment.

Decline in trade payables aged between 91 to 180 days and 181
to 365 days was mainly due to decrease in outstanding balances
from the electronic power meters and solutions segment.

Bills payables belong to the electronic power meters and solutions
segment.

BRI TOE90H 2 FEIERS i‘?JD?E;thﬁAiﬁ
RGERILFRT DA REBEHITEC

%&Eﬁiﬁ;?uu&ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ'f"‘%ﬁzfﬂgﬁﬁ
R ©

BRERT91 B 21808 RN T181 HE365H 2 FE
H@E RO BEHN B EERRART R
R RIEBARADTE

0 EHEESBRELHEERRRANENH-



Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment

processi

ng solutions business. The amounts are generally due for

settlement with these customers within 30 days.
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Fitati -

BRBRIER XN R P RIERATT REBRNEP 2508
RSB - RIN0ANEZETPETEE

Note (iii): Bt it i) -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations*  fE&H B TR AN iR IR 30+ 273,934 219,370
Deposits and receipt in advance** R E N T8 5T W R FRIE < 790,958 445,287
Accrued subcontracting cost FEET D B 115,888 114,631
Others*** H Aty rex 196,094 69,121
1,376,874 848,409

sk

The increase in accrued staff costs and pension obligations was
mainly due to the increase in year end bonus as compared to
last year.

The increase in deposits and receipt in advance was mainly due
to increase in deposits and guarantees received from merchants
and agents under the payment processing solutions business.

The increase was mainly due to increase in other payables on
fixed assets acquisition and other accrued handling fees payable
by the payment processing solution segment.

sk

fest B TR RS UG I B iR E A FAAL
FIICAIBNFREL

BE RIREREGIRE INE B AR R Z IR
HEEBREMP RREMRERZ Re RRESIEINA
o

R 2 B e N BB R 3 A5

ETERHNEEE
RN N E A REt FABE A

R B BILERRTT
o
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(A) 2B Cloopen DZ B8 & I%

KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(A) Subscription for Series D Preferred Shares of Cloopen

34

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
28 February 2018, Main Access, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, held on 28 February 2018 as one of the
subscribers, entered into a share subscription agreement (the
“Series D Subscription Agreement”) with (i) Cloopen Group
Holding Limited (“Cloopen”), an investment of the Company
accounted for using the equity method, two subsidiaries of
Cloopen, namely Cloopen Limited and Anxun Guantong
(Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (“Anxun”), Beijing Ronglian
Yitong Information Technology Co. Ltd. (“Ronglian”) (a
company which Anxun exercises control and enjoys economic
benefits through contractual arrangements, together the
“Cloopen Group”); (ii) the founding shareholders, namely Mr.
SUN Changxun and Mr. LI Xiaoguang and their respective
investment holding companies, namely Cloopen Co., Ltd.
and Slivo Co., Ltd.; and (iii) other subscribers. Pursuant to the
Series D Subscription Agreement, Main Access conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 2,434,015 series D preferred shares
of Cloopen at the consideration of US$5 million. Upon
completion of the Series D Subscription Agreement, Cloopen
would have issued an aggregate of 12,462,157 series D
preferred shares, representing approximately 6.02% of the
enlarged issued share capital of Cloopen, to all subscribers of
the series D preferred shares, including Main Access (assuming
21,119,408 ordinary shares of Cloopen having been reserved
for issuance to officers, directors, employees or consultants
of Cloopen pursuant to its employee share option plan (the
“ESOP shares”) would be allotted and issued), and Cloopen
Group would have raised US$25.6 million (before deducting
expenses) in this series D preferred shares issue pursuant to the
Series D Subscription Agreement. As at 28 February 2018 and
immediately before completion of the Series D Subscription
Agreement, the Group was interested in approximately 27.34%
equity interest in Cloopen (assuming all the ESOP shares and
convertible preferred shares would be allotted and issued).
Completion of the Series D Subscription Agreement took place
on 19 March 2018 and the Group's equity interests in Cloopen
was approximately 26.87% immediately subsequent thereto
(assuming all the ESOP Shares and convertible preferred shares
are allotted and issued).

Immediately after completion of the Series D Subscription
Agreement and as at the date of this report, the Cloopen Group
has remained and remains an investment of the Company
accounted for using the equity method.

BRMARRBHA_T—NF_AZF+N
BZAHAHEE R \F_A=F+N
H-A272EME 2R FIMain Access (1E
RABBH 2 —)BOARRIAEREARZ
—I53#% & Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(ICloopen ]) * Cloopeni FEIffi & A 7] (B1E
BA(FB)ERAR REAEE (LR
RERRA ([RA]) LR SBESR
MAERAR ([REB]) (—F'ﬁiﬁi@mﬂzﬂ#
EE!ILTT@E? HETZHELBENRZ R

%l ([Cloopenfe 1) ) : (ii)&ll#* A% == (Eﬂ
%”* éﬁfjﬁi)&?ﬂ”ﬁ:?ﬁil%&fﬂii? B2
H &R AT BlCloopen Co., Ltd. KSlivo
Co., Ltd.) : K(inE th R 7 5] L R0 R B8
W% (IDRIRERZE]) - RIBEDFR I RHE
&% - Main AccessB & 1+HR E 782,434,015
M Cloopen DZEJFIE %t % - L 1& %5,000,000
FE 7T DR 5 R 17 7 58 B - Cloopeni
EMDRINMELKR 2 FRAREE  B%EMain
Access ({2 m*ﬁ?ﬁCloopenEEﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁ'%
BRUBETTERABE EF EEXE
& ) Cloopen 21 119408Hx R (TEE
REARERTBIAR M | ) AL B B AT ) BITAH
12,462,157XDF 518 F i - #8°E 1 Cloopen
AR B BT IR AR 496.02% * T Cloopentk E
KERBEDRSRE RN —EEDRIIE
5 % 3 17 Hh #1525,600,0003 7T (7 H1F5 BA
XA R T N\F_AZ+N\BEREED
YRR TR - N E B R Cloopen 2 AR
ArEm A #9027 34% 5 (BRRIEEE
RE R AE ST &I AR 1) B AT $E A8 e IR A JE T 35 S
#17) - DRIRBHRERN _T—N\F=H
THBETK - hEREEE  ZREE R Cloopen
WA 2R 526.87% (REFMBEE
BB AR ST B AR 1 I PTHA RSB ot AR I P 3% % 3
1) °

ZBEDRF RHE 1 a se g R AR E B A
Cloopentk Bl — B BT #0 B A R RIAEZEA
Rz —IAIRE -



(B) Purchase of E-payment terminal products from PAX

Global Group

In connection with the business of provision of payment
processing solutions, the Group from time to time purchases
E-payment Terminal products from PAX Global and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “PAX Global Group”).

During the 12-month period preceding 31 July 2018 and
the period from 1 August 2018 to 31 December 2018
(“Relevant Period”), the Group purchased from PAX Global
Group E-payment Terminal products in an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$151.2 million and HK$140.2 million
respectively (inclusive of tax payable by the Group).

The Group provides E-payment Terminal products to its
merchant customers and in return receives a fee. The E-payment
Terminal products the Group purchased from PAX Global
Group during the Relevant Period have been recorded as
fixed assets while the relevant depreciation charges have been
recorded as cost of sales in the financial statements of the
Group.

During the Relevant Period, relevant members of the Group
and PAX Global Group have from time to time entered into
individual agreements in respect of the relevant sales and
purchases of E-payment Terminal products.

The prices payable for the E-payment Terminal products were
agreed between the Group and PAX Global Group at arm'’s
length by reference to the prevailing market prices of products
with similar specifications at the relevant time. The Group
generally settles the purchase cost with PAX Global Group
every six months. Reference is made to the announcements
of the Company dated 1 August 2018 and 2 January 2019 in
relation to the purchases.
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopted
contract based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as a foreign
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQ") in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which
are material to the Group.

1. EBETREEHBERAT (“Just-In Mobile”) and its
subsidiaries: BE{TIT X AR 2 7 (“VBill OPCO”)

1.1 Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners
Just-In Mobile is a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 4 June 2002.

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile are Mr. Zhou
Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na Wei (40%). Since 28 May
2010, a contractual arrangement has been made between
Just-In Mobile, the registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile
and #ETEEHEW (LE)BMRAF (“JIM Shanghai”),
which allows JIM Shanghai to exercise control and enjoy
economic benefit generated from Just-In Mobile.

JIM Shanghai is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JIM Holdings
International Company Limited (“JIM Holdings”) which
was acquired by the Company on 19 March 2010 and has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since
then.
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1.2 Description of OPCO’s business

1.3

Just-In Mobile and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the value-added telecommunication business (1 {E®E =
Z7%) with major focus on payment related solutions and
services, the provision of payment processing solution in
the PRC.

Contractual Arrangement was adopted by the Company in
the above businesses as value-added telecommunication
business (12{EE %) has been restrictive to foreign
direct investment under the PRC law (being that foreign
shareholding must not exceed 50%).

Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of
the Contractual Arrangements

Management Consulting and Services Agreement

Just-In Mobile and JIM Shanghai entered into the
Management Consulting and Services Agreement, pursuant
to which Just-In Mobile agreed to engage JIM Shanghai as
its exclusive management consultant and service provider.
Accordingly, JIM Shanghai shall provide services to Just-
In Mobile on (i) R & D of the computer software with new
and high technology; (ii) R & D of the computer software
by other customers’ requirement; (iii) maintenance of
the computer software and technical support; (iv) R & D
and maintenance of the network technique; (v) technical
training; and (vi) provision of staff. Pursuant to the
Management Consulting and Services Agreement, Just-
In Mobile would pay JIM Shanghai a consulting fee that
equals to 95% of Just-In Mobile’s business income relating
to the services provided above after deducting its operating
cost. The consulting fee should be paid monthly or yearly
as requested by JIM Shanghai. The Management Consulting
and Services Agreement shall be effective from the date of
signing for a term of thirty (30) years.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered
into the Cooperative Framework Agreement, pursuant to
which JIM Shanghai has agreed to provide various services,
including management consulting services, to Just-In
Mobile. The Cooperative Framework Agreement shall be
effective from the date of signing for a term of thirty (30)
years, unless terminated by JIM Shanghai. Mr. Zhou and
Mr. Na have also undertaken that in the event JIM Shanghai
has to pay any consideration to them under the Share
Option Agreement, they must return any consideration
received thereunder to JIM Shanghai.
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Proxy Agreement

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile (namely
Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na) and JIM Shanghai entered into the
Proxy Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na
agreed to authorise persons designated by JIM Shanghai
to exercise all of their rights and powers as shareholders
of Just-In Mobile. Persons designated by JIM Shanghai
will act on their behalf on all matters pertaining to Just-
In Mobile and, to the extent permissible under applicable
PRC laws and the Articles of Association of Just-In Mobile,
exercise all of their respective rights as shareholders of
Just-In Mobile, including but not limited to the following
rights: (i) rights to attend shareholders” meetings; (ii) rights
to exercise voting rights in all shareholders’ meeting; (iii)
rights to sign on minutes or resolutions of shareholders’
meetings or other legal documents and (iv) rights to file
documents with the relevant companies registry. The Proxy
Agreement shall be effective from the date of signing for a
term of ten (10) years, unless extended by the parties.

Share Option Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and Just-In Mobile entered
into the Share Option Agreement, pursuant to which
Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na granted to JIM Shanghai and/or
any other party designated by JIM Shanghai irrevocable
options to purchase their equity interests in Just-In Mobile,
entirely or partially, at an aggregate consideration for
the entire equity interests which equals to the total share
capital of Just-In Mobile or the value of the equity and/
or assets of Just-In Mobile, whichever is lower. However,
the consideration shall not be less than the minimum
purchase price permitted by PRC laws and regulations.
The Share Option Agreement shall be effective for an
indefinite term from the date of the agreement, until it is
terminated (i) upon transfer of the entire equity interests
of Just-In Mobile to JIM Shanghai and/or any other party
designated by JIM Shanghai according to the Share Option
Agreement; (ii) due to restraint under the PRC laws that
transfer of the equity of Just-In Mobile in accordance with
the Share Option Agreement is impossible; and (iii) upon
JIM Shanghai exercising the pledge under the Equity Pledge
Agreement which results that the whole equity interests
in Just-In Mobile are no longer held by Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na in full. Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na have also undertaken that
in the event JIM Shanghai has to pay any consideration to
them under the Share Option Agreement, they must return
to JIM Shanghai any consideration they receive.
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Equity Pledge Agreement

Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and JIM Shanghai entered into the Equity
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na agreed to pledge all of their respective equity interests
(together with their derivative interests) in Just-In Mobile
to JIM Shanghai to secure their payment obligations under
the Loan Agreement and Just-In Mobile’s obligations
under the Cooperative Framework Agreement. Pursuant
to the Equity Pledge Agreement, if there is any breach of
obligations on the part of Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and/or Just-In
Mobile as prescribed under the Equity Pledge Agreement,
JIM Shanghai shall be entitled to exercise its right of pledge
against the said equity interests. In addition, pursuant to
the Equity Pledge Agreement, each of Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na undertook to JIM Shanghai, among other things, not
to transfer, dispose of their respective equity interests in
Just-In Mobile or to create any encumbrance thereon
without JIM Shanghai’s prior written consent. The Equity
Pledge Agreement shall be effective from the date of the
agreement, until two (2) years after completion of all
the obligations on the part of Just-In Mobile under the
Cooperative Framework Agreement.

Loan Agreements

Each of Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered into a Loan
Agreement with JIM Shanghai, pursuant to which
JIM Shanghai agreed to lend RMB4,200,000 and
RMB2,800,000 to Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na respectively in
order to satisfy the funding needs of Just-In Mobile. Both
of the two loans under the two Loan Agreements are for a
term of ten (10) years from the date of signing and can be
extended by mutual consent.

Dispute resolutions

Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, any dispute
arising from the interpretation and implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements between the parties should first
be resolved through negotiation, failing which any party
may submit the said dispute to the China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in Shanghai
for arbitration in accordance with its arbitration rules.
Arbitrators may award remedies over the shares or land
assets of Just-in Mobile, grant order for the conduct of
business or order the winding up of Just-in Mobile. The
results of the arbitration shall be final and binding on all
relevant parties.
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1.4 Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements
The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$3,954.6 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the JIM
Group as at 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$3,060.3
million and HK$907.5 million respectively.

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The Group relies on the Contractual Arrangements to control
and obtain the economic benefits from Just-In Mobile, i.e. the
OPCO, which may not be as effective in providing operational
control as direct ownership. In addition, if the PRC government
would regard the agreements under the Contractual
Arrangements to establish the structure for addressing the
aforesaid foreign ownership restriction for foreign investment
in the value-added telecommunication business in the PRC as
not in compliance with applicable PRC laws and regulations, or
future changes in policies, rules, regulations and interpretation
thereof, the Group could be subject to severe consequences,
including the nullification of the Contractual Arrangements
and the relinquishment of the Group's interest therein. The
Company will closely monitor the relevant PRC laws and
regulations relevant to the Contractual Arrangements and will
take all necessary actions to protect the Company’s interests in
the OPCO.

Material change

On 22 January 2016, JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou
and Mr. Na entered into a new set of underlying contracts
(“Existing JIM Control Documents”) of the Contractual
Arrangements with a view to aligning the contents with the
latest requirements of the Stock Exchange.
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On 12 February 2019, the Company, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li,
Mr. Xue Guangyu and Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (the “Management
Shareholders”), ELECTRUM B.V. (the “Investor”), VBill (Cayman)
and VBill OPCO entered into a subscription agreement
(“Subscription Agreement”) for the subscription of shares of
VBill (Cayman) by the Investor. As part of the restructuring
as contemplated under the Subscription Agreement, (i) the
registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile (i.e. Mr. Zhou and
Mr. Na), a wholly-owned foreign enterprise to be incorporated
and wholly-owned by VBill (Cayman) (“WFOE”) and Just-In
Mobile will enter into a set of control documents (“New JIM
Control Documents”) at the first completion of the Subscription
Agreement, upon which the Existing JIM Control Documents
will be terminated; and (ii) the registered shareholders of VBill
OPCO (i.e. Just-In Mobile, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li, Mr. Xue and Ms.
Ge), the WFOE and VBill OPCO will enter into a set of control
documents (“VBill Control Documents”) at the first completion
of the Subscription Agreement. The New JIM Control
Documents and the VBill Control Documents (collectively
the “New Control Documents”) will replace the Existing JIM
Control Documents for the Company to exert management
control over and receive economic benefits from the group of
Just-In Mobile and VBill OPCO.

Since each of Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na (registered shareholders
of Just-In Mobile), Mr. Shen, Mr. Li, Mr. Xue and Ms. Ge
(registered shareholders of VBill OPCO) are connected
persons of the Company at subsidiary level, the transactions
contemplated under the New JIM Control Documents and
VBill Control Documents respectively will constitute connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company will apply
to the Stock Exchange for a waiver (“Wavier Application”)
pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules from (i) fixing
the term of the New JIM Control Documents and VBill Control
Documents for a period of not exceeding three years pursuant
to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) setting a maximum
aggregate annual cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing
Rules for (x) the services fees payable by Just-In Mobile to the
WFOE and the amount of loans to be made available by the
WFOE to Just-In Mobile (as contemplated under the New JIM
Control Documents), and (y) the services fees payable by VBill
OPCO to the WFOE and the amount of loans to be made
available by the WFOE to VBill OPCO (as contemplated under
the VBill Control Documents). The Company will appoint an
independent financial adviser to advise the independent board
committee to be constituted by the Board as to the relevant
issues under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Report of the Directors

B

“E-AF-_A+-H AQF BEE R
EEXTFRERBEELZT ([BRERE]) -

ELECTRUM B.V. ([#% & A ) ~ VBIll (Cayman)FF&
TREE—MHRORERZ ([ROZERRE]) -

NAA BBIEE ARIEVBIll (Cayman)i& 15 © 1E AR
NRBREIETZEAS D (BEELETZE
SRR (((BRASAERBELE) - ZAR A
ALz B A % (TWFOE ) LA R A VBIll
(CaymanZE A ) HEEE1THN B R TR
MREHERI L — XSRS ((TEES
TR L) R RITEEETTIRGIE
BHGERIE  RDBETTIN 2 B (BIEELTT

BRSPS A BESEAE R B 1) - WFOEK B
TSR B R SER R D SR B i 5] L — =5 )
Metpeg ([BETTRHESIE R ) - FTEE LT TR
M RBEITRHE Sk (S B A TSt
el AR A RBRIBITEESLITIESIER
# o ETE RSN EE AT REETTN R E

RN

HMRALERBLE (BEEETZELRE)
B B Bt R B AL (BEITHZE
RRE)ENBAREEAAARNBEEAL:
BAE ETR RS 14AE - FTE BT
MEETREESIME R EE T RETHR S5 B
BRARRNRER S RIFEMER S - A AR
AR 3R BISE14A 10216 M B X Fr e 3575
T EIEM#E ([FEmE]) - 0RE LR
FIAALAEHE T EE 1T R Rk R BB TS
TR A RIRE ATBBR= FER
(iR A5 _E AR BIEE14A 536 H BB AT TN
WFOER) fR 7% 8 X WFOERt M EE A 1TIRIEME
FEEE (TEEATTIERERERETE) &Y
B&1T15 FE ST WFOERY BR 75 B & WFOE#R BB 1T 1+
REMER SR (BEITHEHIE G E#ETTE)
RERETE LRERE - ANRRBLRTBLYE
BEEUR MRS HAZTBE ITNEBET 1A
EHEEERUNBYEERESREER -

41



HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Report of the Directors

AR

42

As at the date of this report, the Company is in the process of
furnishing the Waiver Application. A summary of the terms
of the New Control Documents, the background of the New
Control Documents, the risk factors involved in adopting the
contractual arrangements, together with other information
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules will be
announced by the Company separately.

Since adoption of the New Control Documents and the
termination of the Existing JIM Control Documents are subject
to a number of conditions, including without limitation the
grant of the waiver by the Stock Exchange, the adoption of the
New Control Documents and the termination of the Existing
JIM Control Documents may or may not materialise. For details
of the foregoing material changes to the existing Contractual
Arrangements, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 12 February 2019.

Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements

As at the date of this report, there is no unwinding of any
of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangement are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Payment processing solutions

By the end of 2018, the overall transaction size of payment business
continued to grow steadily, with the accumulated number of active
domestic merchants under VBill exceeding 4.2 million and the
annual accumulated transaction volume reached over RMB1,630
billion. Driven by the convenience and accessibility of mobile QR
code payment, payment processing solutions segment maintained
its strong momentum throughout the year. The transaction size
increased by more than 40% compared with last year while the
merchants base grew by over 60%. Together with the advancement
of product features and wider adoption of innovative channel, total
segmental revenue has grown by 65%, while income from non-
payment processing segment has also increased steadily.

Through the innovative Xinlianmeng channel, we have recruited a
large number of sales personnels in China to provide strong driving
forces for the expansion of the micro merchants market in second
and third-tier cities. Meanwhile, we have, based on the smart
payment platform, built an open platform for service providers,
offering omni-channel payment solutions to various software
service providers and system integrators having payment demand,
including bank cards, QuickPass, WeChat, Alipay. Evolving into the
most comprehensive offline payment platform, the smart payment
platform will offer scenario-based payment and settlement services
to an exclusive network of small to medium-sized micro merchants.

Our fintech business has expanded nationwide. Following
more than a year of research on risk model, our risk prevention
capability have been enhanced through a systematic approach
and the amount of loans granted have accumulated to over
RMB930 million. During the year, our supply chain financial
asset management platform has utilized blockchain technology
to complete the deployment of SAAS structure and introduced
smart contract, attracting core enterprises, financial institutions and
operating enterprises. Leveraging on the accumulated technology
and risk control capability over recent years, we have successively
obtained a number of awards from various associations, institutions
and media. We ranked the number one acquirer in terms of the
number of offline small-sized micro merchants and the second
best acquirer in terms of overall scenario-based strength. Along
with the progressively increasing supervision by the regulatory
authorities of China, VBill will increase its effort in the establishment
of various compliance systems, including anti-money laundering,
and strengthen operational control and risk prevention. We believe
that the Company will be able to offer less costly, more efficient and
diversified payment and fintech services to a wider user base in the
future.
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Information security chips and solutions

Driven by the rapid development of the payment market in China,
the information security chips business continuously expanded in
the first half of 2018. However, the market stabilized and we faced
more intense competition in the second half of 2018. The annual
sales volume increased significantly, among which, the sales of
mag-stripe card security decoder chips remained stable while that
of security micro-controller (MCU) achieved remarkable growth.
It is expected that the market will stabilize in 2019, nonetheless,
the growth may be affected by the central bank policies targeting
the payment market. Other research and development projects
are progressing smoothly and cost reduction initiatives of various
products are rolling out in an orderly manner.

Platform operation solutions

We have been positioning as a service provider of high-quality
technology and products and business operation related to the
communication, payment and e-commerce industries. Since 2018,
the Company has successfully renewed the operational supporting
services contracts with E-commerce Base of China Mobile, the
IVR Base and the Animation Base of China Mobile. Meanwhile,
with our employees’ concerted effort, we successfully completed
the operational supporting services and gained high recognition
from Mobile in 2018. Looking ahead, we will continue to provide
operational supporting services to “package (F1%2)” business, IVR
voice business and animation business of China Mobile and strive
to stabilize the incomes from supporting services. We will carry
on exploring the market and industry other than domestic mobile
operators, in particular, the overseas mobile payment market. In
2019, we look forward to the successful expansion of the overseas
mobile payment technology service project. Moreover, we will
strive to open up an entirely new market in three to five years to
expand the share of revenue outside the communication industry,
thereby achieving sustainable and steady business growth.
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Financial solutions

In 2018, in respect of traditional customers markets, major tasks
such as the operation of Huishang Bank’s next-generation core
banking system and the phase | operation of Dah Sing Bank’s next-
generation core banking system as scheduled. In addition, we won
the bid for various projects such as the downward core shifting of
China CITIC Bank, batch optimization consultation of Shandong
City Commercial Banks Alliance and data transfer of Nanyang
Commercial Bank (China). On the basis of consolidating the
traditional customers market, new business expansion focuses on
the following four aspects: (1) active expansion of new customers
for traditional business lines; (2) expansion of product lines other
than the traditional business lines; (3) continuous expansion of
financial services market beyond banking customers, including the
market of insurance and financial corporations; and (4) preparation
of business layouts for Hong Kong virtual banking needs. During the
year, we entered into the letter of intent with three clients in relation
to the virtual banking core business system construction.

Electronic power meters and solutions

In 2019, it is expected that the total tender volume of State Grid
electricity meters and electricity consumption data collection
devices will approximate that of 2018 and the market situation
will remain challenging. The State Grid continues to promote
new technological development, in particular, DLT698.45 object-
oriented interchangeable data exchange protocol. In respect of the
tender of State Grid in 2018, the product qualification must comply
with such protocal to be eligible for bidding. In 2019, more of our
products are expected to qualify for tender based on the existing
products that are already available eligible for bidding. Currently,
the State Grid Power Research Institute is conducting the research
on and constructing the GB standards for IR46 electronic power
meter. We have been closely and actively monitoring the latest
technological development of the State Grid.

Principal Risk and Uncertainty

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from
a small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.
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Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes
in market conditions, technological advancements, developing
industry standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences
for our new products and/or services. If we are unable to respond
to these changes promptly or unable to continually enhance our
existing products and launch new products to the market in a timely
manner, our business performance may be adversely affected. Also,
any unauthorised use of our intellectual property by third parties
could harm our business and competitive position.

The industries in which we operate in the PRC are subject to
extensive industry standards and government regulations, failing
compliance of which may adversely affect our operation and sales.
Regarding our payment processing solutions business in the PRC,
we are currently operating under three main payment licenses,
namely national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses, which will expire in June 2022. Any failure to
renew these licenses could disrupt our business operations and our
sales may be materially and adversely affected.

The Group has been operating certain lines of businesses
which adopted contract-based arrangements and/or structures
(“Contractual Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the
Group, as foreign investor, to control and benefit from the PRC
operating companies (“OPCQ”) in the foreign restricted businesses
in the PRC. However, such arrangements may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the PRC government authority would
continue to regard these Contractual Arrangements as being in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future
would not affect the Contractual Arrangements and the relevant
business operations. Details of the Contractual Arrangements
are set out in section headed “Information on the Contractual
Arrangements” in the Report of the Directors on page 36.

Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risks,
such as currency fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks,
and liquidity risks in the normal course of the Group’s business.
Particulars of financial risk management of the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There has been no violation, breach of or incompliance with
applicable laws and regulations such as the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and other applicable
local laws and regulations in various jurisdictions in which the
Group operates that had a significant impact on the Company.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related discretionary bonus. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as incentives or rewards.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully
understands this principle and thus maintains close relationship
with the customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term need.
Due to the nature of the business, the Group did not have any major
supplier that has significant influence on its operations.

However, the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operative
relationship with the suppliers.
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DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development
to be an objective. Under the dividend policy adopted by the
Company, dividends may be declared from time to time and be
paid to shareholders provided that the Group is profitable and
without affecting the normal operations of the Group. In summary,
the declaration of dividends and the dividend amount shall be
determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Board taking
into account the following factors:

e the Group's financial performance;

J the liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;
and

o any other factors that the Board may consider appropriate.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws the number nearest to
not less than one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting, provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years.

Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung and Mr. Kui Man Chun, an Executive
Directors, Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger, an Independent Non-
Executive Director, will retire from office by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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As Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger, being appointed as an Independent
non-Executive Director in September 2004, and have served the
Company for more than 9 years during the term of his appointment,
his further appointment shall be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by Shareholders in accordance with the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company or the
Group was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director (with meetings as ascribed to it under the Listing
Rules) had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into or subsisted during or at the end of the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 4 to 6.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and was in force
throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity
against liabilities, including liability in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her
offices, subject to terms and conditions set out in the policy.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571)
(“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of Director EENZ BAER
Kui Man Chun RES 28,650,000 (L)*
Xu Wensheng wXHE 4,566,000 (L)*
Li Wenjin FNE 6,400,000 (L)*
Xu Changjun hEE 16,563,000 (L)*
Note:

(i)  These shares are held by Mr. Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun Limited, a
company which Mr. Kui Man Chun hold a 99.16% interest, and Rich Global
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares.

** The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2018, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors, the Chief Executive of the Company nor their associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders (other than a Director, or the Chief
Executive) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Ordinary share of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of shareholder
BRREE,/ 2 AR
Rich Global Limited (“RGL")*** -
Hi Sun Limited (“HSL")*** (Note 1) (#1i£1) -
Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 2)
REBERE (Fri2) 28,650,000(L)*

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”) -
Mr. Che Fung (Note 3)
BIETE (H53) -

Notes:

*k

Representing HSL's interests in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its
control of 100% shareholding in RGL.

Representing Mr. Kui Man Chun'’s (i) deemed interests in the Company’s
share capital by virtue of his control of 99.16% shareholding of HSL; and
(ii) personal interests in the Company’s share capital as disclosed in the
preceding section.

Representing Mr. Che Fung'’s interests in the Company’s share capital by
virtue of his control of 100% shareholding in Ever Union, which holds
beneficial interests in 334,314,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

The Letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2018, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary
shares.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng were directors of HSL
which were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company
had not been notified by any persons, other than a Director or the
Chief Executive of the Company, who had any interests or short
positions in any Shares or underlying shares of the Company and its
associated which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or
which were as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions which constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are outlined below. The Group has
complied with all the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

(a) Framework agreement with Ronglian Yitong
On 9 May 2016, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with Beijing Ronglian
Yitong Information Technology Co. Ltd. (“Ronglian Yitong”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to engage Ronglian Yitong
and Ronglian Yitong agreed to provide or procure the provision
of, on a non-exclusive basis, technical and support services in
relation to platform operation and such other technical support
services that may be agreed between the Group and Ronglian
Yitong and its subsidiaries from time to time and/or their
respective members for a term commencing from the date of
the Framework Agreement to 31 December 2018.

During the year, Mr. Zhang Hui (“Mr. Zhang”), who is a
director of two subsidiaries of the Company and a connected
person of the Company at subsidiary level under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, was one of the registered shareholders
of Ronglian Yitong holding 45.8% shareholding in Ronglian
Yitong. Therefore, Ronglian Yitong, being an associate of Mr.
Zhang, was a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under the
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”). Subsequent to the completion of Mr. Zhang's
transfer of 18.927% equity interest in Ronglian Yitong to Mr.
Sun Changxun in 19 March 2018 pursuant to an agreement
dated 28 February 2018, Ronglian Yitong ceased to be
an associate of Mr. Zhang and as a result the transactions
contemplated under the Framework Agreement ceased to be
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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Since Ronglian Yitong was a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Zhang
during the year and (i) the Board has approved the Continuing
Connected Transaction; and (ii) the Independent Non-Executive
Directors have confirmed that the terms of the Continuing
Connected Transactions were fair and reasonable, on normal
commercial terms or better, in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, and in the interests of the Company
and Shareholders as a whole, the Continuing Connected
Transactions were exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules and are only
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The cap on the total contract value for the Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Framework Agreement
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB60,000,000, RMB66,000,000 and
RMB69,000,000 respectively and the actual total transaction
amount for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB42,387,786.

Please also refer to an announcement (“CCT Announcement”)
of the Company dated 9 May 2016 and note 36 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements in relation to the
Continuing Connected Transactions.

During the year, the Board and the finance department of the
Company have followed through and collected data on the
Continuing Connected Transactions by adopting the following
procedures which have been reviewed by the audit committee
of the Board:

(1) periodic checks on the pricing terms to ensure they are
compliant with the Framework Agreement; and

(2) periodic reports on the total transaction amounts to ensure
the annual caps were not exceeded.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”) have
reviewed the above internal control measures taken by the
management and are of the view that such internal control
measures are adequate and effective to ensure that the
Continuing Connected Transactions entered into during the year
were compliant with the pricing policies stipulated under the
Framework Agreement. The INEDs have further opined that the
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) on normal commercial terms or better;

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
and

(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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(b)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Board confirms that the
auditor has issued an unqualified letter confirming the matters
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing rules in respect
of the Group’s continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as being in order. A copy of this
letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange.

Deemed Disposal — Grant of VBill OPCO Options under
the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 January 2018, VBill OPCO conditionally agreed to grant
VBill OPCO Options pursuant to the VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme to the three grantees to subscribe for up to
approximately 12% of the enlarged VBill OPCO Registered
Capital at the exercise price of RMB12.51 for every RMB1.0 in
the enlarged VBill OPCO Registered Capital exercisable for a
period of 3 years from date when the VBill OPCO Share Option
Scheme became unconditional. Mr. Shen (one of the grantees)
is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill OPCO and
a director of certain members of the VBill OPCO Group and
Mr. Li (one of the grantees) is the chief executive officer of VBill
OPCO and the supervisor of a member of the VBill OPCO
Group. Hence, each of Mr. Shen and Mr. Li is a connected
person of the Company at subsidiary level. Assuming that all
the grantees exercise the options in full, the grantees will,
in aggregate, own approximately 12% of the enlarged VBill
OPCO Registered Capital and the Group’s interest in the
VBill OPCO will be diluted from approximately 80.04% to
approximately 70.44%, the grant of the VBill OPCO Options
therefore constituted a connected transaction and a deemed
disposal under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (“Deemed
Disposal”).

(b)

ARRZBMCEZERAERBHE_—T—/\
FHZA=+T—HLEFENHEREXSEN
BE BERSER (BERIERBEN) F
30005 (FMERT) [FXHEBEIHEERASN
ZEREZR| RRIEEE S ARHEN (B
BFA) 74055 [BNEE (EMMRRAND) Fradiss
BRIERX SR BE ] 1T  EF SR
BEE L —HERBE RN RIELHR
AIFB14AS6IRIER ABARERE—T—N
FHA=t-BULFEZREEERSZ
EERFARBF ARRCABRZARRHES
28 BK AF

REHESE - REBETHBRESERY
BE1T 1 B8 AR A

WA RRBAE_T—N\F—ATHAZA
MR EE - BTN B IR R BARIRRE T T BB IR
AT B[R = B A L BET T B AR - DURACHE
REETREMBRAF B ARBIOTHITERA
RE12.5170 RIS PETT S A &2 40
12% * 7% 5 B AR AT A BET T BB A AT B B 1R
1§ 2 BAEsT = S HIR T T(E - BB S A (AR A
2 AT EEREETSEFAKRMEIT
EEETHRERRIZES MBLE (EEAZ
—) BT 2 ITERARE MBETT N SR E — R B
REIZEE - EL - REAE R L AR ARE
B ARBE 2 BEAL - BEEEEARE
TT{ERERRIE - IR A S LA SR APETT
AR AR AI12% » AR E @R BET T RIAERS 5
4980.04% B = 4770.44% - 1BAE E R BIE14A
Z ENBETMNEREGER - BRER S IR
EHESE ([RIELEFEE]) -



Since the exercise of the VBill Options is not at the Company’s
discretion, the Deemed Disposal will be classified as if the
VBill Options had been exercised at the time of the grant.
As certain of the applicable percentage ratios of the Deemed
Disposal are above 5% but all applicable percentage ratios are
less than 25% and the total consideration to be paid by the
three grantees is above HK$10,000,000, the Deemed Disposal
constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company which
is only subject to notification and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As Mr. Shen and Mr. Li are connected persons of the Company
at subsidiary level and the transaction contemplated by the
Deemed Disposal is on normal commercial terms or better,
the Deemed Disposal constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company which is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as (i)
the Board of the Company has approved the transactions
contemplated by the Deemed Disposal and (ii) the independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms of the
transactions contemplated by the Deemed Disposal were fair
and reasonable, the transactions were on normal commercial
terms or better and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, please also refer to the section titled
“Share Option Scheme of VBill OPCO” in this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, total cost of purchase of electronic funds transfer
point-of-sale (“EFT-POS”) terminals from PAX Global Technology
Limited (“PAX Global”) amounted to approximately HK$194.2
million, and was regarded as capital in nature. As at 31 December
2018, the Company held approximately 33.09% interest in PAX
Global and Mr. Li Wenjin, currently serving as an Executive Director
of both the Company and PAX Global, was interested in 2,890,000
shares of PAX Global representing approximately 0.26% of the
issued share capital of PAX Global.
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The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year.

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 5%
— five largest customers combined 10%

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had interests in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a) Subscription agreement and deemed disposal

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 12 February 2019, the
Company, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li, Mr. Xue and Ms. Ge, ELECTRUM
B.V. (the “Investor”), VBIill (Cayman) and VBill OPCO entered
into a subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Investor will be entitled to subscribe
for, and be allotted, an aggregate of up to 15% of the issued
ordinary shares of VBill (Cayman) (“VBill Shares”) (on a fully
diluted basis immediately after the Second Capital Increase
Completion (as defined below)) at an aggregate subscription
price of up to RMB588,000,000.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, subscription of the
VBill Shares by the Investor will be completed in two tranches.
1,263 VBill Shares will be subscribed by and allotted to the
Investor, representing approximately 11.21% of the issued
VBill Shares upon completion of the first subscription (“First
Capital Increase Completion”) at the subscription price of
RMB378,000,000. The First Capital Increase Completion
is conditional upon, among other things, completion of
the restructuring of various existing group of companies in
accordance with the Subscription Agreement. The First Capital
Increase Completion is expected to take place 10 business
days after the date of issuance of a notice of satisfaction of the
last condition to be satisfied which cannot be later than the
longstop date (being 30 June 2019) or such other date agreed
among the parties to the Subscription Agreement.
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Consideration for the second subscription will be determined
with reference to the actual net profit figure of VBill OPCO in
accordance with the Subscription Agreement and completion
of the second capital subscription (“Second Capital Increase
Completion”) is expected to take place on a date no later than
the later of (a) 15 business days after the First Capital Increase
Completion or (b) 15 business days after the date on which the
audited consolidated financial statements of VBill OPCO for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is delivered to the Investor (or
such other date as agreed among the parties to the Subscription
Agreement). The final subscription price payable by the Investor
and the final number of VBill Shares to be allotted and issued to
the Investor is therefore subject to adjustment upon the Second
Capital Increase Completion.

Immediately before the First Capital Increase Completion, VBill
(Cayman) will be owned as to 80.04% by the Company, 9.96%
by Delia and Grace Technology Limited, a special purpose
vehicle wholly-owned by Mr. Shen for holding the VBill Shares
for himself (“Shen Holdco”), 4.80% by Kapok Technology
Limited, a special purpose vehicle wholly-owned by Mr. Li for
holding the VBill Shares for himself (“Li Holdco”), 3.20% by
Yuteng Technology Limited, a special purpose vehicle wholly-
owned by Mr. Xue for holding the VBill Shares for himself (“Xue
Holdco”) and 2.00% by Just Pay Technology Limited, a special
purpose vehicle wholly-owned by Ms. Ge for holding the VBill
Shares for herself (“Ge Holdco”). Immediately after the First
Capital Increase Completion, VBill (Cayman) will be owned
as to approximately 71.07% by the Company, approximately
11.21% by the Investor, approximately 8.84% by Shen Holdco,
approximately 4.26% by Li Holdco, approximately 2.84% by
Xue Holdco and approximately 1.78% by Ge Holdco.

Immediately upon the Second Capital Increase Completion
and on the assumption that the number of VBill Shares needs
to be adjusted, the Company’s shareholding in VBill (Cayman)
may be diluted to the largest possible extent of approximately
68.03% (assuming the Investor has subscribed for 15% of the
issued VBill Shares on a fully diluted basis). After completion
of the transactions contemplated under the Subscription
Agreement, the Company will be deemed to have disposed of a
maximum of approximately 12.01% interest in VBill (Cayman)
(ie. from 80.04% to 68.03%), but VBill (Cayman) will remain as
a subsidiary of the Company.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined under
the Listing Rules) under the Listing Rules in respect of the
Deemed Disposal under Subscription Agreement exceeds 5%
but all applicable percentage ratios are less than 25%, the
Deemed Disposal under Subscription Agreement constitutes
a discloseable transaction of the Company and is therefore
subject to the notification and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. However, as the
grant of Put Option (described hereunder) constitutes a
major transaction of the Company and is subject to the
notification, announcement, circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules,
the Company will convene a special general meeting (“SGM”)
for the Shareholders to consider, and if appropriate, approve
the transactions contemplated in the transaction documents
including the Subscription Agreement.

Due to the relationship between the parties, each of Mr. Shen,
Mr. Li, Mr. Xue and Ms. Ge (“Management Shareholders”,
together with Shen Holdco, Li Holdco, Xue Holdco and Ge
Holdco, each of which being an associate of Mr. Shen, Mr.
Li, Mr. Xue and Ms. Ge respectively) is a connected person
of the Company at subsidiary level. The entering into of
the Subscription Agreement between the Company and the
Management Shareholders, and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but are exempt from
the circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

Further details of the Subscription Agreement and the Deemed
Disposal are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12
February 2019.
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(b) Shareholders’ Agreement and grant of Put Option

Upon the First Capital Increase Completion, the parties
will enter into a shareholders’ agreement (“Shareholders’
Agreement”) in respect of the management and ownership
of VBill (Cayman), pursuant to which, among other things,
VBill (Cayman) will grant a put option to the Investor and the
exercise of which will be subject to the terms and conditions of
the Shareholders” Agreement (“Put Option”).

As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined under
the Listing Rules) under the Listing Rules in respect of the
grant and exercise of the Put Option (the exercise of which
is not at the discretion of the Company) exceeds 25% but
all applicable percentage ratios are less than 75%, the
grant and the exercise of the Put Option constitutes a major
transaction of the Company and is therefore subject to the
notification, announcement, circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
The Company will convene the SGM for the Shareholders
to consider, and if appropriate, approve the grant of the Put
Option.

Further details of the Shareholders” Agreement set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 February 2019.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF VBILL OPCO

As disclosed in the section titled “Share Option Scheme of VBill
OPCO” in this annual report, the Company has adopted the VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme which became effective for a period
of 5 years from 5 February 2018 and VBill OPCO Options in the
amount of RMB27,259,000 representing 12% of the enlarged VBill
OPCO Registered Capital have been granted to three specified
participants, including connected persons of the Company at
subsidiary level, as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the VBill OPCO Group, as approved by the
Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held on
5 February 2018.

Further details of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme can be
found in the aforesaid section, the announcement and circular
of the Company dated 15 January 2018 and 19 January 2018
respectively.

Please refer to the sections titled “Connected Transactions”, and
“Subsequent Events” for further details.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF MEGAHUNT

As disclosed in the section titled “Share Option Scheme of
Megahunt”
the Megahunt Share Option Scheme which became effective
on 10 August 2018 and Megahunt Options in the amount of
HK$3,000,000 representing approximately 16.67% of the enlarged
Megahunt Registered Capital have been granted to three specified

in this annual report, the Company has adopted

participants, including connected persons of the Company at
subsidiary level, as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Megahunt, as approved by the
Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company held on
10 August 2018.

Further details of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme can be found
in the aforesaid section, the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 4 July 2018 and 11 July 2018 respectively.

Please refer to the section titled “Connected Transactions” for further
details.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate,
and participate as required, in a defined contribution retirement
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in accordance with the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485)
under which employer and employees are each required to make
regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF Scheme,
subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary
contributions additional to the Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an
employee are fully and immediately vested in the employee once
paid to the trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return
derived from the investment of the Mandatory Contributions is
also fully and immediately vested in the employee. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the accrued benefits derived from the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject to other applicable
provisions of law.

PR ERE S e ]

MDA FIR [JRFEER R B —SATEE A
ARIBRMKAIBEERESE ER S —\FN
B+ARES ERREARRR-_E—N\FNA+H
FEITHIIRERIF RIS _EHEE - A283,000,00078 TTHYIK
MEERERRE (FEE R ERAIRAIEE MR AR L
16.67%) ERTF=RIEELHEE (BIEARBWBA
AIEEMBEAL) FABSHIMEETRSE
£ BB BBk 28 -

KB BRI RE— B R 28 Lt
B -ARBRHES AT —\FLANBA K=
—N\FEtA+— BB REK -

ERX S| —fhe

BRgE—THE F2H [HE

RkE5HE

BEEZMBRRAZMBEEERIEQL
B0 (34858 ) L Z FEBRHFURIAGHE] ([958
TEE) B BREREBARKRSEERADN
5 /OpHr = AR AR R EIF A9 E ISR ISR (158 )
MEHSR]) - ARBRAKFH L TRIDERETE BB
TRATA SR BIE R IME B B

RE&E
%Jr

nm

H*>

h N 1R B S RO R Bl I R msia 25 81X
FEANRIR BRI RBIME B - moR IR
KREEENEIRERBRIEHE L ANGRENES -
REMN6SHREN  FHA TR RRTIERE IR A
SR @S IEHRELN 2 REEN - HARR
IR EL 38 FUER IR



In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group is required to contribute
to certain retirement benefit schemes in favour of the employees
in the PRC an amount equal to approximately 7% to 20% of
their respective yearly wages. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those
workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from the
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the Group's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed
that the Company has maintained at all times the sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three year and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

This Report of the Directors shall comprise all such cross-references
herein contained to other parts of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all operations and that its
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices
and standards, the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year ended 31
December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted trading guidelines regulating directors’
and senior management’s transactions concerning securities of the
Company, on terms no less exacting than the required standard as
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors of the Company
and the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in Model Code and the Group's trading
guidelines through the year and up to the date of this Report.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves power for decisions concerning all major
matters which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or substantial
shareholder(s), appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board
papers and relevant information, as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
to assist in the performance of directors duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the senior management’s powers, the scope of delegations
and relevant arrangements are periodically reviewed to ensure they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Reporting to and prior
approval of the Board are necessary before the senior management
enters into any material transactions and assuming significant
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time and an updated list of all directors
identifying their role and function is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
fixed contract term subject to re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and the CG code.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election.

Further appointment of any Independent Non-Executive Director
having served for more than 9 years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules
and regulations, and the Group’s governance and internal control
policies. The Company also arranges and funds suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings
for the Directors in the form of seminar and provision of training
materials. A summary of training received by the Directors during
the relevant period according to the records provided by the
Directors is as follows:
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Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

TEER EERER

Name of Directors BEEps H At AE B = RESE A
Executive Directors: HITES:

Cheung Yuk Fung REIE /
Kui Man Chun REF /
Xu Wensheng (E3¢: v
Li Wenjin EXE /
Xu Changjun wEE /
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFYITES:

Tam Chun Fai 2 R /
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER /
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIEE /

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy, under which the
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors in the Board members’ selection process,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board members’ appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

During the reporting period, the Company has a solid slate
of Directors with diverse perspectives and varied educational
background and expertise made-up, from extensive knowledge
of the information technology industry and electronic payment
industry, experience in international trade, finance and corporate
management, to professional qualifications in the legal and
accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in his
respective field of expertise for at least 20 years, all of whom share
and acquire the talent and competence to drive the industry so as to
bring sustainable growth to the Company.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four Regular Board meetings were held during the year for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance
and respectively the final results for the year ended 31 December
2017, quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March
2018, interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September 2018,
and considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the four
regular quarterly Board meetings (not including other ad hoc
meetings of the Board held from time to time and any other
meeting(s) of members of the Board in compliance with the CG
Code), meetings of the Audit Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting, Risk
Management Committee and general meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Audit Nomination

Committee Comnmittee

Meetings Meeting

ENERE REZRE

Name of Directors EEpg =] =

Cheung Yuk Fung REE N/A N/A

TR TER

Kui Man Chun RER N/A N/A

TEf TER

Xu Wensheng (3¢ N/A N/A

T TER

Li Wenjin FXE N/A 1n
TiEam

Xu Changjun HEE N/A N/A

TER TER

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RiE 2/2 N/A

@A

Tam Chun Fai EIRIE 212 1n

Leung Wai Man, Roger R2ER 22 11

Note:  Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller, Joint Company

Secretary and member of Risk Management Committee of the Company
attended two Risk Management Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.
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Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the intended date of meetings. Reasonable
notice is, as permitted by the Company’s Bye-laws under relevant
circumstances or otherwise agreed, given for other Board and
committee meetings.

The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been
responsible for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking
into account any matters the Directors may propose to include,
ensuring that all Directors are given opportunity to include matters
in the agenda and approving the agenda. In order to enable the
Directors to make informed decision, agenda and accompanying
board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
appraised of the latest developments and/or financial position of the
Company. The Board and the individual Directors also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further
enquires or when they require further information in addition to
those volunteered by the senior management.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping the
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
records sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors” inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or
Director are dealt with at a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which independent non-executive Directors having no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any
of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) having
material interests in the transactions shall abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving such
transactions in which such Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive are
clearly defined and not performed by the same individual to ensure
a balanced power and authority and no concentration of power.
During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung acted as the Chairman, and
Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and established corporate
governance procedures. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board's affairs, taking the lead to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture
to facilitate effective contributions and encourage the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient
discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The role of the Chief Executive focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. The Chief Executive is also responsible for developing
strategic plans and formulating the organisational structure,
monitoring control systems and internal control procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range
of business and financial expertise, experiences and, through
participation in board meetings, offer independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts. Through taking the lead
where potential conflicts on interests arise, serving on the Board
committees, examining the Company’s performance in achieving
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring performance
reporting, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.
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During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have also
attended the annual general meeting(s) of the Company, details of
which are set out in page 66, enabling them to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board and
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

In respect of the reporting period, the Company has received from
each of the three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tam Chun Fai, Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger and Mr. Chang Kai-
Tzung, Richard, written annual confirmations of their respective
independence pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Risk Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference, setting out its authority
and duties, requiring them to report back to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by legal
or regulatory requirements). To provide transparency, the terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company'’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites and hard copies of which are
available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors except the Risk Management
Committee and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee as at the date of this report is set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard*
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Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)*

Xu Wensheng”

Li Wenjin®

Hui Lok Yan*

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

~ Executive Director

*  Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable and timely request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

During the Reporting Year, the main duties of the Audit Committee
include the followings:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant
or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
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(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system,
management system and associated procedures; and

risk

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has access to information necessary
to fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk
assessment and risk management.

The written terms of reference which describing the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code and “A Guide for The Formation of An
Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2018 to review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control
and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function of the Group, the auditor’s independence and objectivity.
The Audit Committee has also met with the Company’s auditor
twice during the year and recommended the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor and approved
their remuneration and terms of engagement. The Board confirms
that it has taken no different view from the Audit Committee in
relation to the recommended re-appointment.

As at the end of 2018 and the date of this report, there are no
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2018 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the terms of reference adopted in compliance with the
requirements under the CG Code, include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
business requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. External recruitment agency may also
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter
alia, his/her academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity and
whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the Board as
detailed in the Diversity Policy. The procedure of appointing and re-
appointing a Director is summarized as follows:—

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may nominate
or invite a Candidate for appointment as a Director for
consideration;

2. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall evaluate the
personal profile of each of the Candidates based on the criteria
as set out under the above section;

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each Candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;

4. (for a Candidate whom may be nominated as an independent
non-executive Director) the Board should assess the
Candidate’s independence under Code Provisions A.3.3
(Best Recommended Practice) and A.4.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code under the Listing Rules (“CG Code”), and
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
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5. (for a Candidate whom may be elected as an independent
non-executive Director at a general meeting) the Board should
consider the following pursuant to Code Provision A.5.5 of the
CG Code:

a) reasons why the Board considers the Candidate to be
independent and why he/she should be elected;

b) if the Candidate will be holding his/her seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board believes that
the Candidate would still be able to devote sufficient time
to the Board;

c) the perspectives, skills and experience that the Candidate
can bring to the Board; and

d) how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

6. (in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors) the
Board shall review the Candidate’s overall contribution and
performance, including attendance of committees, board and
general meetings, and level of participation and performance
on the Board, and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and to the Shareholders for re-election at the
general meetings; and

7. the Board will convene a meeting for discussion of
appointment or re-appointment of the Candidate as a Director.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung
and Mr. Kui Man Chun, an Executive Directors, and Mr. Leung Wai
Man, Roger, an Independent Non-Executive Director, will also retire
at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

As Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger, being appointed as an Independent
non-Executive Director in September 2004, and have served the
Company for more than 9 years during the term of his appointment,
his further appointment shall be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by Shareholders in accordance with the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee has recommended the re-appointment
of the said Directors standing for re-election to the Board, following
which the Board, after due consideration, has recommended their
re-appointment for the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
Annual General meeting.

The Company’s circular dated 20 March 2019 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee
were set out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with
the requirements under the CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
whose remuneration will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the
annual remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for collection and administration of
the human resources data and making recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Board about
these recommendations. The Remuneration Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2018 to review and
recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the company, to establish a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy for the remuneration of the
Directors, assessing performance of the Executive Directors and
approving the terms of their respective service contracts.

The remuneration, including employee incentive programme of
subsidiaries, payable to the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration band £ FE
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000
HK$51,000,001 — HK$52,000,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 and note 39
to the consolidate financial statements.
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Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee comprises a minimum of four
members and shall have at least three Directors.

The main duties of the Risk Management Committee include the
followings:

(@) to review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls) and internal audit function, to ensure that effective
and adequate risk management and internal control systems are
established and maintained and that sufficient resources are in
place for the Group's internal audit function;

(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain
the Group's risk management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls)
for the Group and adequacy of resources of its internal audit
functions.

The Risk Managements Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employee and Directors and (v) to review
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.
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The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 80 to 91.

Senior Management

The senior management have provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior
management to all members of the Board to enable proper
discharge of duties by the Board a whole or each member
individually by giving them balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospectus
in sufficient details.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and has overall responsibility
for reviewing and maintaining an adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It evaluates
the effectiveness of the systems at least annually to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training

programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate
risks, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. We have adopted a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across functional areas.
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Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine
risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of the risk
event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements, attention
and risk treatment effort required.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner of
departments and major subsidiaries is required to capture and
identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of its
objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk
matrix. After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk of
each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee, evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and report to the Board. The highest
category of residual risks is subject to the Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Internal Control Department of the Company (the “Internal
Control Department”) has performed ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems throughout the year (during which an external independent
consulting firm was engaged to offer assistance) for the period
from 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, according to the
scope of review covering the Group’s material controls in financial,
operational and compliance aspects agreed and approved by
the Risk Management Committee and in compliance with the
requirements under Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code.
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The Internal Control Department reported to the Risk Management
Committee and the Risk Management Committee was satisfied
that there had been no major deficiency noted in the areas of the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems, following
the implementation of recommendations against the internal
control defects revealed. The Audit Committee cooperates with
the Risk Management Committee to ensure the Risk Management
Committee has access to information necessary to fulfil their
duties and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk
management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems to
be effective and have been implemented with adequate resources
during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has already established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The policy stipulates the obligations of the Group, in
respect of the restriction on disseminating non-public information,
handling of rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and wavier to the disclosure of inside information, and also
compliance and reporting procedures. Senior management must
take all reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist
to prevent a breach of any disclosure requirement from time to
time, promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside
information to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his
delegates, who will notify the Board timely and accordingly for
taking the appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate persons
to decide the course of actions for rectifying the problem and
avoiding recurrence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$4,080,000.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS
(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting

(b)

(o)

Shareholder(s)” holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition for a special general meeting, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies)
signed and deposited in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the
Directors to call a special general meeting for the transaction of
business specified in the requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

Communication with shareholders and investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum
of communication between Shareholders and the Board. At
the annual general meeting held on Friday, 20 April 2018
(the “2018 Annual General Meeting”), the Directors were
made available to answer questions in accordance with the
requirements under the CG Code. The Company’s external
auditor also attended the 2018 Annual General Meeting to
answer any questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies applied and their independence.

Notices of the 2018 Annual General Meeting was sent in
accordance with the requirements under the CG Code.
Separate issues were proposed as separate resolution for
approval by the shareholders at the general meetings, to avoid
“bundling” resolutions and shareholders were provided of
explanation of the detailed procedures for voting by poll and
given sufficient changes to raise questions in relation thereto.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year.
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To the Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 92 to 227, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
¢ Impairment of trade and bills receivables

e Impairment of loan receivables

e Impairment of inventories

e Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

Key Audit Matter

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(a) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 23 (trade and bills
receivables) to the consolidated financial statements for the related
disclosures.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade and bills
receivables of HK$159.6 million and provision for impairment of
trade and bills receivables of HK$10.5 million. Provision is made for
lifetime expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected credit
losses. Trade and bills receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection of trade
and bills receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining trade and bills receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and applying
expected credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the trade and bills receivables. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on historical credit losses experienced up
to 3 years and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the trade and bills receivables.
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We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade and
bills receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the trade and
bills receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on provision for impairment losses of trade and bills receivables
included:

— Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures on
periodic review on aged receivables and assessment on
expected credit losses allowance of trade and bills receivables;

— Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile of
trade and bills receivables by checking to the underlying sales
invoices;

— Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of trade
and bills receivables against bank receipts; and

— Obtained management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses allowance of trade and bills receivables. We
corroborated and validated management’s assessment based
on the historical settlement pattern, correspondence with
the customers, evidence from external sources including
the relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market research
regarding the relevant forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors used in management’s assessment.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and judgement
made by management in respect of the expected credit losses
allowance and the collectability of trade and bills receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
Impairment of loan receivables

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(b) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 19 (loan
receivables) to the consolidated financial statements for the related
disclosures.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gross loan receivables
amounted to HK$569.1 million, and a provision for impairment of
loan receivables of HK$32.8 million was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet. The credit impairment losses on loan
receivables in the Group’s consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$34.1 million.

The balance of provision for impairment of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at the balance sheet
date of expected credit losses under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments expected credit losses models.

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan receivables
have increased significantly since their initial recognition, and apply
a three-stage impairment model to calculate their expected credit
losses. The measurement models of expected credit losses involves
significant management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the following:

—  Selection of appropriate model and determination of relevant
key measurement parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default and exposure at default;

- Criteria for determining whether or not there was a significant
increase in credit risk or a default; and

—  Economic indicator for forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and weightings.

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the loan receivables
and the significant estimates and judgement involved in determining
the expected credit impairment losses allowance on the loan
receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for impairment losses of loan receivables included:

— understood and tested the key control procedures performed
by management, including its procedures on periodic review
on overdue receivables and the assessment of expected credit
losses allowance on the loan receivables;

— understood and evaluated the modelling methodologies
for expected credit losses measurement, assessed the
reasonableness of the model selection and key measurement
parameters determination;

— for the historical information, discussed with management
to understand the management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit-impaired loans,
corroborated management’s explanation with supporting
evidence;

— for forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection, economic
scenarios and weightings application, assessed the
reasonableness of the estimation by comparing with industry
data; and

—  checked major data inputs used in the expected credit losses
models on sample basis to the Group's record.

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and judgement
made by management in respect of the expected credit losses
allowance and the collectability of the loan receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of inventories
Refer to Note 4(c) (critical accounting estimates and judgements)

and Note 22 (inventories) to the consolidated financial statements
for the related disclosures.
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The Group held inventories of HK$162.3 million as at 31
December 2018. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value (“NRV”). The cost of inventories may not be
recoverable if those inventories are aged and damaged, if they
have become obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The
provision for inventories amounted to HK$37.0 million, majority
of which was attributable to inventories of the electronic power
meters and solutions segment.

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of inventories
by considering the ageing profile, inventory obsolescence and
estimated selling price of individual inventory items.

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based on
the estimated selling price less selling expenses, which requires
significant judgements and assumptions to be made to determine
the estimated selling price of individual product, including historical
experience of selling products of similar nature and expectation of
future sales based on current market conditions.

Management consistently applies a provisioning methodology for
slow moving inventories based on inventory ageing and makes
specific provision for long aged inventories. Management also
conducted periodic review on inventory obsolescence, including
performance of periodic inventory counts and review of holding
period for individual inventory items.

We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision for
inventories involves significant judgement and various uncertainties
as a result of changing technology, customer demand and
competitors actions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
NRV and obsolescence of inventories included:

— Understood and validated the control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures in estimating the NRV
of the inventories and conducting periodic review of inventory
obsolescence;

—  Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether there is
any damaged or obsolete inventory;

— Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile
of individual inventory items by checking to the underlying
procurement correspondence and invoices;
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— Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of significant
inventory items, obtained through the usage report subsequent
to the year end as basis to identify inventory obsolescence.
Where there are no subsequent usage of the respective
items after the year end, we discussed with management
its assessment on estimated future utilisation, corroborating
explanations with the inventory ageing, sales orders and
marketability of the relevant finished goods by using
our industry knowledge and external market analysis, as
appropriate; and

—  Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items,
by comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end,
against the carrying values of these individual finished goods.
Where there are no subsequent sales of the respective finished
goods after the year end, we discussed with management as to
the realisable value of the products, corroborating explanations
with the inventory ageing, sales orders, historical margins, and
current market conditions by using our industry knowledge and
external market analysis, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to the provision for inventories were
supportable by available evidence.

Key Audit Matter
Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

Refer to Note 3.3 (fair value estimation), Note 4(d) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 18 (financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss) to the consolidated financial
statements for related disclosure.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held interest in (i) an unlisted
investment fund of HK$129.9 million and (ii) certain unlisted
convertible preference shares of HK$141.9 million; which have
been classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

These unlisted financial instruments are stated at their fair values,
classified under level three in the fair value hierarchy.

— S AHERFERFRR ZERER
FRBMEFEREOEARS AR HERFE-
WAEFERFRELERE HMASEEERE
A EE AR F ERRER R L 2 FHE - B8
BT ENR BN TS DT (WER)
EFEARTEER HERFE LA M EH
BEEVEREE: I

— MBS ARAEEFERA ZIERFE &
RIS ERI S RN FE RN EBREREE
TE— LB SR FRIR I B SRR R & -
BB BE R E WL Em A SIRE  WEB
BT ENR BN TS DT (AEA)
kEEEREEFH HETE BEENERRR
(L)

RIBFTAER MR EREEMFER B 2 A5t

BASHRER T
BARETER

JELMERTARFE

FRMERFENNE S2HAKAMBRERME3
(AFE-E) IR (RS RHERT K HIET) KA
H18RAFEFABRRZERMEE) °

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H ESEFEOIEL
T &E 129,900,000 7T M (i) T IE £ A AR 8
Jeh%141,900,0008 7T : DAL AT EF A BT 2
RhEE-

ZEFLTEMTAREXFEIR 2SOBRAF
FRBETZFE=M-



The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was determined by
applying a portfolio discount to the audited net asset value of the
unlisted investment fund as at 31 December 2018, which had
already taken into account the fair values of the fund’s underlying
investments. The discount rate was determined based upon the
relative shareholding and rights of the Group and the marketability
of the investment.

The Group engaged an independent external valuer in determining
the fair value of the unlisted financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss by using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions used in the valuation include pre-tax discount rate,
compound annual growth rate and terminal growth rate.

We focused on this area because the carrying amounts of these
financial instruments are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and selection of valuation methodologies and
determination of key valuation assumptions requires the use of
significant judgement and estimates.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination of the
fair value of these financial instruments included:

For the unlisted investment fund:

—  We tested the accuracy of the net asset value of the unlisted
investment fund by checking to its audited financial statements;
and

- We also involved our internal valuation expert in our discussion
with the management to understand the rationale for applying
the portfolio discount, reviewed relevant agreements or
documents to understand the key terms of the subject interest
and assessed the appropriateness of portfolio discount by
referencing to relevant research studies and market practices on
various discounts commonly considered in valuations.
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For the unlisted convertible preference shares:

- We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer by considering its qualifications,
relevant experience and relationship with the Group;

- We also involved our internal valuation expert in our discussion
with the external valuer to understand the rationale, and assess
the appropriateness and the consistency, of the methodologies
used and the key assumptions and estimates applied;

- We also assessed the reasonableness of the input data used by
evaluating:

e the pre-tax discount rate by considering the weighted
average cost of capital and the risk profile of the investee;
and

e the appropriateness of the compound annual growth rate
and the terminal growth rate based on market research,
historical performance and the business plan of the
investee.

- We also compared the fair value of the unlisted convertible
preference shares with recent transaction price.

Based on the procedures described, we found the methodologies
used and key assumptions applied in the valuations to be
reasonable and supportable by available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019

BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

Gh e W &

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
B 5E FHET FHET
Revenue WA 5,6 4,661,954 2,909,978
Cost of sales 5 R A 7 (3,404,203) (2,165,949
Gross profit E2Y 1,257,751 744,029
Other income Habug A 5 43,894 46,721
Other (losses)/gains, net EHih (EE), WS FE 5 (16,922) 21,139
Selling expenses SHE R 7 (96,829) (113,394)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (687,992) (461,580)
Employees’ incentive programme of MB w2 &8 R &
subsidiaries 28 (201,447) -
Credit impairment loss EEREERE 7 (39,954) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries =N E=NG g - 63,262
Operating profit FeS— Pl 258,501 300,177
Finance costs BLE KA (89) 9)
Share of result of an investment accounted ~ F& i LA#E 255K A BR 2
for using the equity method —IEREZFE 21 171,753 134,531
Gain on dilution of interest in AR EARZ —1E
an investment accounted for WE R EE =
using the equity method 21 - 113
Profit before income tax MRETE B AR R 430,165 434,812
Income tax expense PIS BB < 10 (92,875) (45,298)
Profit for the year FREF 337,290 389,514
Profit attributable to: PEAL AR :
Owners of the Company RARERA 278,175 346,144
Non-controlling interests FEFRR M 21 59,115 43,370
337,290 389,514
HKS$ per HK$ per
share share
BRET BB T
Earnings per share for profit attributable ~ 72 A A E{REF 2
to the owners of the Company: BRER:
Basic AR 12 0.100 0.125
Diluted e 12 0.095 0.124

The notes on pages 99 to 227 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

f By 4 T A R

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER TET
Profit for the year FEREF 337,290 389,514
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax ~ Hth2E Wz~ (EE)
(HBRTEIE)
Items that have been reclassified or may be EZ 7 HAH A5
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss BT B IHH
Exchange differences arising on translation of M E G I A R B B Rk
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EXCEHREE (78,517) 78,739
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of EMAEREAR —THIREZ
an investment accounted for Hip2m (B518) s
using the equity method (38,567) 54,179
Release of reserves upon dilution of interest in an  #£58 LA#Ez A AR 2 — 1A
investment accounted for using equity method REER BB 2 #E
— exchange differences arising on — BRI B D R S R
translation of the financial statements of EEZER 5
foreign subsidiaries - 315
Change in values of available-for-sale AfEESRMEEY
financial assets BEEE - 61,635
Release of reserves upon disposal of subsidiaries & B R REEL 2 FE# - (1,699)
Release of reserves upon HH #E1 — el B /&8 & =14%
deregistration of a subsidiary B2 #E - (4,782)
Items that will not be subsequently BETEREHHEE
reclassified to profit or loss BEm2HE
Change in value of a financial asset at fair BATVESAEMEEWE 2
value through other comprehensive income THEEBEEY (14,384) -
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of EMAERIEARZ —BIRE 2
an investment accounted for using Hth2EKE (EBE)
the equity method 461 23)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FRAZEWSAE (NRHIE)
net of tax 206,283 577,878
Attributable to: FE4h
— Owners of the Company —RRREEAA 156,406 528,126
— Non-controlling interests —JE R R 49,877 49,752
206,283 577,878

The notes on pages 99 to 227 are an integral part of these — £899%227H Z It iz Shra Wi Hac 2 HRIH
consolidated financial statements.
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Consolidated Balance Sheet

0 E O R R

As at 31 December

BR+=ZHA=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo FET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 13 1,575 1,906
Property, plant and equipment IE BTN 14 715,193 507,024
Leasehold land THE T 15 30,490 31,974
Intangible assets BEEE 16 1,884 1,985
Investments accounted for using NEREARZRE
the equity method 21 1,931,188 1,823,245
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ESREE 17 - 178,385
Financial asset at fair value through BAFESAREMEE
other comprehensive income Wz eREE 17 895 -
Other financial assets at amortised cost HHEKNEGTEZ
Hih e @MEE 24 12,807 3,028
Loan receivables JEULE 5k 19 479 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss TRLEE 18 271,741 93,485
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 2,966,252 2,641,032
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 162,275 95,407
Other current assets HEMRnsEE 25 68,988 31,696
Other financial assets at amortised cost LR HER AT E 2
HEthemEE 24 49,830 32,166
Amounts due from investments accounted JEWAEZAEAR ZIRE 2
for using the equity method ;A 36 15,116 16,289
Loan receivables FEWE K 19 535,816 2,205
Trade and bills receivables JE U BR 30 K W 23 149,178 278,319
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss TRLEE 18 2,004 2,702
Short-term bank deposits WEIR 1T 26 1,583 16,153
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 27 2,681,475 2,541,482
Total current assets REBEEAE 3,666,265 3,016,419
Total assets EERAE 6,632,517 5,657,451
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to RATDEBEARGERER
the owners of the Company #E
Share capital [EEN 28 6,942 6,942
Reserves 1 29 4,371,271 4,052,400
4,378,213 4,059,342
Non-controlling interests JEERR R 193,062 104,203
Total equity BB 4,571,275 4,163,545

The notes on pages 99 to 227 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

W EEREE (M)

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FHET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHAE 32 109 163
Other payables H At T RIA 30 983 -
Total non-current liabilities EREBEEHEE 1,092 163
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables & BR X B JE N R 4R 30 251,043 239,199
Payables for payment processing solutions 2 <732 5 BRI 2 /R 75 5
business ES vl AN 30 266,710 292,587
Other payables and accruals H b S FRIE K BT B 30 1,375,891 848,409
Amounts due to investments accounted for JEfT AREZSEABR 2
using the equity method & 278 36 114,190 57,755
Current income tax liabilities EHRIBEE 42,069 46,197
Borrowing fE 3K 31 10,247 9,596
Total current liabilities REAEEHE 2,060,150 1,493,743
Total liabilities B8R 2,061,242 1,493,906
Total equity and liabilities ERkEEHEE 6,632,517 5,657,451
The financial statements on pages 92 to 227 were approved by the — $RFE27B 2 WBHEABAEEEN S —NEF=A

Board of Directors on 6 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

XU WENSHENG
B E
Director

EZE

The notes on pages 99 to 227 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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3
Director

EF
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
O RSB R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—-HILEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KRFAREARLE
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total

Ba  RGEE  EAR®  HUEE  SERE  REEN  FERER ait
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TER TER TiEn TiER TER TiER TiEn

Balance at 31 December 2017, W=E-tE+-A=+-Rz&H

as originally presented #E%25) 6942 1063153 168434 577,088 111754 2131971 104203 4163545
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.7.7) GHURED (Wi211) - - - (76,197) - 76,197 - -
Total equity of 1 January 2018, as restated RZB-NF-A-BZREER

EE5 6942 1063153 168434 500891 111754 2208168 104203 4163545

Comprehensive income PEUE
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - 278,175 59,115 337,290
Other comprehensive loss At 2EER
Exchange differences arising on translation of the ~ REFINHBER AN HREFLL

financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - - (69,279) - (9,238) (78,517)
Share of other comprehensive loss of an investment ~ /LA EZE AB 2 —BRA Z

accounted for using the equity method At 2EER - - - (1,943) (36,163) - - (38,106)
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value R ATFEFAEMZENG 2

through other comprehensive income SHEEBEEY - - - (14,384) - - - (14,384)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (BB) /hBE8E - - - (16327)  (105,442) 278,175 49,877 206,283
Employees’ incentive programme of MEBARRR LR (M)

subsidiaries (Note 28) - - - 162,465 - - 38,982 201,447
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+-A=t-Azft 6942 1,063,153 168,434 647,029 6312 2,486,343 193,062 4,571,275

The notes on pages 99 to 227 are an integral part of these 29922278 2 Wi %S e Mgz 2 R o
consolidated financial statements.



BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
Ol (H)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LYNGIEZ PN L
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve eamings interests Total

A BhEE  EREK  KtRE NERE  RERN  H2RES ast
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER TEL TR TER TER TEL TER TER

Balance at 1 January 2017 RZB-tF-A-B2k&k 6,942 1,063,153 168,434 517,504 (10,644) 1,785,827 54451 3,585,667
Comprehensive income EEYEH
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - 346,144 43370 389,514
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Eth2ENE/ (B8
Exchange differences arising on translation of the ~ REFIHERAHHREELL

financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EXER - - - - 72,357 - 6,382 78,739
Share of other comprehensive income(loss) of BUENEREAR - AREZ

an investment accounted for Efr2EdE/ (BB)

using the equity method - - - (2,051) 56,207 - - 54,156
Release of reserve upon dilution of interest in BENERE R RRERER

an investment accounted for Btz FE

using the equity method - - - - 315 - - 315
Change in values of available-for-sale IfhECREE BER

financial assets - - - 61,635 - - - 61,635
Release of reserves upon disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBEAAEEL 2 &6 - - - - (1,699) - - (1,699)
Release of reserves upon deregistration of A M—RRBARGEL 2 &6

a subsidiary - - - - (4,782) - - (4,782)
Total comprehensive income 2ERFLEE - - - 59,584 122,398 346,144 49,752 577,878
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-B-tE+ZR=t-B2EH 6942 1,063,153 168434 577,088 11,754 2,131,971 104203 4,163,545

The notes on pages 99 to 227 are an integral part of these — £899%2278 2 Wizt Tha4EiFa Mk A Eo -
consolidated financial statements.



HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

maBlaeiia®

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
iFsd FTHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBCRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ~ #X&F715,/ (FTA) R & 33(a) 793,819 (116,323)
Overseas income tax paid B X EINRER (94,776) (37,124)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBIE/ (FA)
operating activities WEFRE 699,043 (153,447)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment #E B ¥ % - liE & &1 (481,298) (429,067)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTVEE (128) (214)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - WE K& B
plant and equipment FRiS5RIA 33(b) 1,014 312
Net cash inflow arising from HEWBRAREEZ
disposal of subsidiaries WEMAFE - 98,668
Acquisition of an investment accounted for B8 A## 5 A BR 2
using the equity method —ERE (3,416) -
Purchase of a financial asset at fair value B8 —IRIE A FEFTA
through profit or loss BRzZoHEE (39,000) -
Dividend income from an *E—FEBERRZ
associated company s 24 A 21 29,120 29,120
Interest received B U F 8 23,717 27,807
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTARE F5 (469,991) (273,374)
Cash flows from financing activities METBH2HETRE
Proceed from bank borrowing RITER TS E 33(c) 10,247 9,258
Repayment of bank borrowing BRERITER 33(c) (9,065) -
Interest paid for bank borrowing BT IRITERF S (89) 9)
Decrease in short-term bank deposits Z HRIRTTFRUR 14,278 3,559
Net cash generated from MELTHSRSFHE
financing activities 15,371 12,808
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReERRESEY28M
and cash equivalents (RD) 35 244,423 (414,013)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHReRRECEED
beginning of the year 2,541,482 2,804,978
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and BeEkReEEBYWIER
cash equivalents (E18) M (104,430) 150,517
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRAERBEEEY
the year 2,681,475 2,541,482

The notes on pages 99 to 227 are an integral part of these 29922278 2 Wi %S e Mgz 2 R o
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), are principally engaged
in the provision of payment processing solutions, provision
of financial solutions, sales of electronic power meters and
solutions, sales of information security chips and solutions and
provision of platform operation solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), available-for-sale
financial assets (“AFS”) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”), which are measured at fair
values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

f B T 985 A B
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for current reporting period. Of
these, the following are relevant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and

e HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The other standards did not have material impact
on the Group's accounting policies and did not
require any adjustments.

The below explains the impact of adoption
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B
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BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B T 985 A B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 MBEE (F)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B KRR BELE (&)

(Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (@) REBRMWZHET MEIBETE
Group (Continued) Al (&)
The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have any RNE BB EENF1557 LT
material impact on the Group’s consolidated HAEE 2 SR A BTSRRI RE
financial statements. EN-Z -
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 HEMBERELEN LSRR EE
that relate to the recognition, classification and SETAERIZE395R A BRER - D 5E
measurement of financial assets and financial STECREENSRBE KRIHE
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, REMTEA SRVEERENET
impairment of financial assets and hedge EEDEZIEX
accounting.
The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 B \F—HA—RRBRNEE
resulted in changes in accounting policies and BA R 2RI SOk B BT P
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the BRI RNGE SRR T
consolidated financial statements as described RE SRR - RIFE B BR
below. In accordance with the transitional = 22 R 5957 1Y 38R 1 63 ER AN
provisions in HKFRS 9, HKFRS 9 was generally EEMBRMEERFH —RBA
adopted without restating comparative B EE B o - #RE T B
information. The reclassifications and the PRSIV EHT 9 ¥ M B S —
adjustments arising from the new impairment T—+tF+-A=1+—RAHEE7|
rules are therefore not reflected in the restated mAaBERBERARE MR-
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December —N\F-A—BORIGEEEER
2017, but are recognised in the opening BERATER

consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2018.

Impact of adoption R T E

Classification and measurement of financial 2B T AN D HE R E
instruments

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application R-E—NF—H—R (ERER
of HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has EEMBHRELENFESFER) K
assessed which business models apply to the SENERED HAAKEFA
financial assets held by the Group and has B Rl E AR EBER jiﬂ%fé%ﬂi
classified its financial instruments into the TASEER BB MELERSE
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. SR EE R
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Group (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the

Impact of adoption (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

2.1 RBEE (&
211 B IBERKIE

31 December

2 BERETEHERME @)

)

(@) ANEBERMZHR] REIERTE
8l (&)

Rz e (&)

T A 7ER

afS'E (%)

Reclassify from
available-for-
sale financial

asset to financial
asset at fair value

Reclassify from
available-for-sale
financial asset to

2017, through other  financial asset at
as originally ~ comprehensive fair value through 1 January 2018,
presented income profit or loss as restated
(Note (i) (Note (i)
BTftHESR
BEENIEE AUHLESR
RZB—tF BAVEFA EEEHIEE RZB-N\F
+TZRA=+-8' HittZEKEHEZz - RLTVERFA -B-8
REXE5 tRHEE BRZEREE gE5
(Hzt) (Hritain)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Available-for-sale AfHELREE
financial assets
— Unlisted equity security - EFRAES 15,536 (15,536) - -
- Unlisted investment fund —FEMREES 162,849 - (162,849) -
178,385 (15,536) (162,849 -
Financial assets at fair RAVEFABEZ
value through tHEE
profit or loss
- Unlisted investment fund ~FLHREES - - 162,849 162,849
~ Unlisted convertible —FE EmATARE LR
preference shares 93,485 - - 93,485
— Listed trading securities ~-tWEEEH 2,702 - - 2,702
96,187 - 162,849 259,036
Financial asset at fair BATEFARMLRZE
value through other KEzEeRER
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity security —F EHRAES - 15,536 - 15,536
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAE:HEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 MBEE (F)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B KRR BELE (&)
(Continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (@) ANEBERPN 2 HE] RS F] 4
Group (Continued) Al (&)
Impact of adoption (Continued) R E (8)
Classification and measurement of financial THT AN ERE (&)

instruments (Continued)

Financial asset

at fair value

Available-for-  through other
sale revaluation  comprehensive Retained
reserve  income reserve earnings

BATEHA

THHE Htt2EREZ
Efffi SREERR REBH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FEL
Balance at 31 December 2017, R-E-tF+=ZA=1+-H
as originally presented &R BREZS 84,369 - 2,131,971
Unlisted equity security FEHRAES
- Reclassify from available-for-sale BN EERHEEEHD
financial asset to financial asset at fair BERAFEFAE D2
value through other comprehensive ARG EREE
income (Note (i) (Hrsta) (8,172) 8,172 -
Unlisted investment fund FEMBRERES
— Reclassify from available-for-sale -BUEEELHEEEND
financial asset to financial asset at fair BERATEFABRZ
value through profit or loss (Note (if)) CREE (M) (76,197) - 76,197
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated R=F-NF-A—HZ
gk RED - 8,172 2,208,168

103



104

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)
Impact of adoption (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)
Notes:

@

(i)

Reclassification of available-for-sale financial
asset to financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income - unlisted equity security

The Group elected to present changes in the fair value
of its equity security (previously classified as AFS) in
other comprehensive income as it is a long-term and
strategic investment that is not expected to be sold in
the short to medium term. As a result, the AFS with
fair value of HK$15,536,000 as at 1 January 2018
was reclassified to financial asset at FVOCI and the
related cumulative fair value gain of HK$8,172,000
was reclassified from available-for-sale revaluation
reserve to financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve on 1 January 2018.

Reclassification of available-for-sale financial asset to
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss -
unlisted investment fund

The unlisted investment fund of the Group with fair
value of HK$162,849,000 at 1 January 2018 was
reclassified from AFS to financial asset at FVPL. It does
not meet the HKFRS 9 criteria for classification at
amortised cost and FVOCI, because its cash flows do
not represent solely payments of principal and interest
and the unlisted investment fund has a definite life.

Related cumulative fair value gains of HK$76,197,000
were transferred from the available-for-sale revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on 1 January 2018.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, fair value
loss of HK$25,660,000 relating to the investment was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2 BERETEHERME @)

2.1 REEE (8)
211 BFHE R R FEZE ()

(@) AEBERMAZHA MEETE
al (&)

AT E (E)

AT A 7B RAE (F)

it

@

(i)

BAMHHELREEENRIEZE
RATFEFARMEZEREZS
MEE-FLTRAES
AEEERENEMEEREANZTE
RAFEH (LaipEAAELESE
BE) 2 A HEZE REABRK
MNEEATEHTERETHAEESN
REIREIEIRE Ul RZT— N\
F—A—B2Z22AER15,536,0007%5
TZAHEESHEER=Z—N\
F—A—HOEFHEZRATE
SPAHMEEREZ SREERA
25T A FERS,172,0008 T
HAHEESREEZ BGHESE
PP BERATEFAEMBR2ER
W ERMEEZ -

BAHHESREEER 2 BE
BRATVEFABRRZSMEE -
FETREES

AEEBR=_Z—N\F—A—BZA
F{E A162,849,000/8 7T 2 IE E iR
BESEHAIHEECREEEN
PEERATEFABRZE/ME
B W T HEBBUBHREERE
OSRIRER SHAK AN IR A S ERT A E At
2EWESE LR REAAEBR
EREWIHEEALRE RFERM
ARIEETIREES BBREFH-

RZZE—N\F—A—H8 @R
NFEWEE76,197,0007 T2 B AT
HEEeMEECEHRFRER
ERBEF -BHE_T—)/\Ft+=
A=1+—H1EFE RiralkaER
PHEREKRERRZ AT EEER
7#$25,660,000/8 7T ©
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 REEE (B)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B KRR BELE (&)

(Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (@) REBRMWZHET MEIBETE
Group (Continued) Al (&)
Impact of adoption (Continued) R E (8)
Classification and measurement of financial THT AN ERE (&)
instruments (Continued)
There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for HRNFTRE B EBIEERA T ER

financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at FVPL and the Group does not
have any such liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has two types of financial assets that

are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss
(“ECL") model:

— trade and bills receivables

— other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these
classes of assets.

While cash and cash equivalents and short-term
bank deposits are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified

impairment loss was immaterial.

ABENERBENSERIE M
AEES T FHAZERE Bt
AEETRAENSITRERTE
XEE-

AEEEMECREEERNE
B H IR E LR BRI TE
HEEER ([RREEEBER]RE

pil

- BUERFREERERE

— REERARTEZEME
B

BE

REBBREE B EREERE
SRIEE RS SR EEMREN
he

BRERE MASEEYMAREHR
IERINBB T BB ISR E %R
FEOFHURERT B HRRRE
BB TEK-
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

Impact of adoption (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) _Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected
losses for all trade and bills receivables.
ECL are estimated by grouping the trade
receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for
likelihood of recovery, taking into account
the nature of the customer and its aging
category. The expected loss rates are based
on historical credit losses experienced up to
3 vyears and are adjusted to reflect current
and forward looking information on factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and the collectability of the trade
and bills receivables. The adoption of the
simplified ECL approach under HKFRS 9 has
not resulted in any additional impairment
loss for trade and bills receivables as at 1
January 2018. As at 31 December 2017, the
expected loss rates are up to 12.4% applied
on different groupings, which does not have a
material impact to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

2 BERETEHERME @)

2.1 REEE (8)
211 BFHE R R FEZE ()

(a)

REBERPN 2 5] RAEERT £
Bl (%)

EMeEE (8)
EHEERE (B)

@

FEWIR R ERE S

AEE BB BV RS ER
SIS PTR] AR LT AL TR
HEEBRELRE ZRE
SRFE TR IR AR S B IR
B2 B IEREIE - [E
BEHMEEEETREENE
BB R EOR e MRk 1R
AR E BRI E R

— AR E AT
flr o FEEIB B R TR T HEE
=FRALRMBEEEER
U EHARARREER
PrERMRRENRZ 2R
B M ATRE 1 E Y o

EREBEEREREYIRR R
BREREZEEEERRAE
-2 —NF—H—
B RABEM BRSNS

ORI TE M B (LTEEE B IR
T3 A A R FEUR 2 % FE LR
FIREAFMREINAERERE -
HE-Z—+tF+-A=1—
B TEo/HEER B EIE
KBS A124% HIWEEAK
KEEZ A RIEKEXR
FEo
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 REEE (B)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B KRR BELE (&)
(Continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (@) ANEBERPN 2 HE] RS F] 4
Group (Continued) Al (&)
Impact of adoption (Continued) R E (8)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (&)
(i) _Other financial assets carried at amortised (i) ZEBEA AT EZR M
cost BE
For other financial assets carried at BRI ANGT 2 2 B2 it
amortised cost, including other financial BE (BitRaBEREBRT

assets at amortised cost,

from investments accounted for using the
equity method and loan receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet, the ECL is based
on the 12-month ECL. It is the portion of
lifetime ECL that results from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECL. Management has closely monitored the
credit qualities and the collectability of the
other financial assets at amortised cost and

amounts due

EVIRBE R ANET B 2 B S F
BE  RYIAER ﬁ)\ﬁEZ&
B2 IR R EWE ) T
EHEEEEN12(EA E’ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
EEBEBMEE - 1218 AR
HEEBRASRTANRE
B H3R 1218 A AT BB A 032
HBHTERTEERZ D FH
MEHERER A 8%
EREER R EZIE N -
%ét%ﬂﬁuiﬁﬁmtﬁﬁmu,ﬁﬂﬁ
REE -BEEERERINE
ﬁﬁ)ﬂ%ﬂiatEZEtﬂﬁFﬂéEE@
ERERRAKENE YRS

considers that the ECL is immaterial. As at TEEEEBBEY TN EHE
31 December 2017, the ECL is immaterial to T—+F+=-A=+—8"
the consolidated financial statements of the i‘ﬁﬁﬂfm,\ﬁfﬂ HAREE ZIFE
Group. MM s L AEKR-
(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet applied by (b) EEMEREE N RERAHE
the Group Alm &

FEMBREERF165EE

HREVEHREENFIHRN_F
—NF— A B EEET T
BFRERABATERAEERBR

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet by lessees, as the

distinction between operating and finance leases WHER REA /K EHEH AN
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset B2 8B MR - RIRRZHE] 2

8- BE (RHERB REME) &
SRS 2B A ERHER  ME—
pIoNE mEEMEEERE -

(the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.
HHAASTREER T EEERE
change. ER

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet applied by

the Group (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$69,614,000, see Note
35. However, the Group has not yet determined
to what extent these commitments will result in
the recognition of an asset and a liability for future
payments and how this will affect the Group’s
profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements
that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption. Right-
of-use assets for property leases will be measured
on transition as if the new rules had always
been applied. All other right-of-use assets will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability on
adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued
lease expenses).

There are no other standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be expected
to have a material impact on the entity’s
consolidated financial statements.

2 BERETEHERME @)

2.1 REEE (8)
211 BFHE R R FEZE ()

(b) BRMEAREEHREMHE

Az (&)
BB HREEAFIHEEE

(&)
ZERABFEZBAEBRKSE
HEMSTEE -RikE B E
NEBER T HHC L HE&AE
/469,614,000 7T * RHI5E35 A
i AEEEARBEZETRELTE
EERRARRNFTEE 2 ERE
LA R B i an ] 5o 22 AN S5 8 2 v 1) e

REemENe-

BB AR B N e R EEAE Y
ZBIIME S - Ak A R AT g
TR ERIEAB BV B RELER
F165RFTIEEE 2 B AR -

AEEHR _E-NE—H—HB#
SR B BRANEZE R - AN SR B 5 R R
LBETTE B NS E B RERNA
MFEEEILBRIBR-MEEEE
EEE SRR BT &
BIFRTRA— B ER - A A
B EE RSN RRRZEE B
BEREITAE (RIBERTENK
B ERTEEMETTRE) -

B LA MR A B TR R
B AR BRRENEAT B
E TSR



BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 o W e 2 Bi B
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXS:BEHEE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

22 HEAEANRREZEEEA
(a) W1EZ A]

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

(b) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (see (c)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.

MEBARAAEERAEEZMER
B-EAKER2HERZEMES
REREAENEDR WiLHERE
EEERBXBZEIZE LR K
SENSZEREEHE -MBRRA
EREBEEAEEE DE2HEAA
B X ESIERIEE BETBEAA
BEo

AEBERBEBEEHEBEBEHA
BE o

SERRMZ ARMAR S iR AR
BRZWes TIAL - REREB IS
TAEH  BRIFERR B TAEBEE
ENRERR -MEBQRZEHERD
BRBREE  ARRENEEIRN 2K
REH—Z

ST SRS R A TS 5
BB 2T AR A 2 ER
HE GAREEDERGAAEARE
xKo

(b) BERF]

Bt N EIE A BEEAEATE M
i sy KRR HE 2 e EEE - AN
EEBEFH20%E50%2 FKRKE R
B AR ERE  RIE QR ZIRE
FRESESHEAR (R T3X0) -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(c) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associated
companies are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

2 BERETEHERME @)

22 BEANERREZSHERA (8)

) Bm@ilx

RiF#ESFHE REV T IR AR
R BRETRBUANRG ARG RNE
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HER ARRE 2 EREERE D
HREHREMEEEENES 2R
SRS N R SRR A A RRE
EF0IR,

EARE N (hiRREEHEARNRE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 BEANERERSTHERA (&)
(Continued)
(d) Changes in ownership interests

() BERESZE

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

AEEG RIS R RS (LTE
BRI HIEE ) QIERA S EES H
BAZRS - AEEDE B ERIE]
REan B IR AR 2R EEEEZF?ZDH%
PARBRIZE MY B A B 2 AR e« 3F
Rl Fatak CEE G DR PR G
BREZEAZRNARAEG AEHE
s 2 B R -

WAEETERE R EIERTE
7 EBEABEA ARSIEESSTA
ABRIEE  ENZERZ AR BER
E LAFEENTE MEEEZEA
PR A MR NER - LE B ABRYIE
BENT SECERSREEZIRE

W EAFEAAIREE Lol - 5k
AR E M2 EREEREZ B ER 2
TS5 BENAEECERELES
MEENXAEZ HRAAR I ATEEER
SR EAM 2 SRR 2 S REfTiE A
EEMGHREEAFTER, N2 TE
oAl R R E SR
5851

THETEE S A R 2 A R B R
BERTZEN AN 2ElE
%EZi%E&%MEﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁé%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration payable is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.

f B T 985 A B
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2.5
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within
‘administrative expenses’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at FVPL are recognised in the profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial asset at FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 SNEBRE (&)
(©) AZEEE T2 A]

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associated companies
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

5-10%

20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter
18%-33%

10%-33%

18%-25%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and equipment
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term vyields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5%

f B T 985 A B
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
upfront prepayments made for the rights to use the land
for periods varying from 40 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land is expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

2.10 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued) 210 B EE (8)

(b) Brand name, customer list and contracts, patents
and capitalised software development costs and in-
progress technology
Separately acquired brand name, customer list
and contracts, patents and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology are
shown at historical cost. Brand name, customer
list and contracts, patent and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology
acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair values at the date of acquisition. They have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of them over
their estimated useful lives (1.5-5 years).

(c) Software
Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs associated
with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Assets that are subjected to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in the consolidated income
statement or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEREFTHEME®)

QNBRERHEMESRMEE (B)
(c) itZ (#)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(1) Amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income, except for interest income generated from
loan receivables which is included in revenue,
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

(2) Fair value through other comprehensive income
Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount

are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
(3)__Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
the consolidated income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement as ‘other (losses)/gains,
net" when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial asset at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the ECL associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)

POLICIES (Continued)

QNRERHMERMEE (B)
(e) BEZ —_FE—+F+_H=+—HF

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with the
Group's previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its
financial assets in loans and receivables, financial
asset at FVPL and AFS. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Reclassification
Reclassifications were made at fair value as of
the reclassification date. Fair value became the
new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date were subsequently
made.

(i) Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did not
change on adoption of HKFRS 9, see description
above. Financial asset at FVPL and AFS are
subsequently carried at fair values. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Changes
in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as financial asset at FVPL and
AFS are recognised in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, respectively.

When securities classified as AFS are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)
(iii) Impairment

The Group assesses at each of the balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered an
indicator that the assets are impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continued)
Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment
for AFS, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in the
consolidated income statement — is removed
from equity and recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments that were recognised in the
consolidated income statement are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement in a
subsequent period.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work-in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and related
production overhead (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against ‘credit impairment loss’ in the
consolidated income statement.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Trade and other payables 2,18 FEAY BR R I HL{th FE 45 FRIE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated income statement as other income or finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXS:BEHEE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2208 RIEEFEH (8)
(b) FEEFFH (F

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Group is able to control the
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timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and EHIEEBENREE-
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

(©) Offsetting (c) By

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees” basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)
POLICIES (Continued)

221{EEER (&)
(c) BF7Z RIEALGZ

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.22 Share-based payments
(@) Equity-settled share based payment transactions

Subsidiaries of the Group operates an equity-
settled share-based compensation plan, under
which the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share based payment transactions
(Continued)
When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods

The Group engaged in sales of information
security chips and electronic power meters. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customer has accepted the
products, the collection of the related consideration
is probable and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Provision of services

The Group engaged in provision of platform operation
solutions services and financial solutions services.
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based
on the actual service provided using the percentage
of completion method, because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion, estimates are revised. These
revisions may result in increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by management.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Provision of services (Continued)

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such
as the provision of financial solutions and related
maintenance services. The related maintenance
services are accounted for as a separate performance
obligation. Where the contracts include multiple
performance obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation based on
the stand-alone selling prices. If contracts include the
maintenance services, revenue for the maintenance
services is recognised based on the actual service
provided, using the straight-line basis over the terms of
contracts, because the customer receives and uses the
benefit simultaneously.

If the contract includes a monthly fee, revenue is
recognised in the amount to which the Group has a
right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly
basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solution business when services are
rendered which generally coincide when the
underlying transactions of the merchants (customers of
the Group) have been acknowledged by the relevant
banks and financial institutions, by which contractual
right of the Group and the merchants to receive cash
flows from the financial institutions is established and
the Group has present right to payment. Revenue
from early settlement services is recognised when the
services are rendered, which generally coincide when
the settlement has been completed.

The Group is also engaged in a micro-lending
business. Interest income is recognised and accrued
using the effective interest method. When a loan
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan receivables are recognised
using the original effective interest rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAS:BEHEE (%)

POLICIES (Continued)

224 ATER (E)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) Contract liabilities — receipt in advances

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.

2.25 Other income

(a) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(b) Lease income — operating lease
Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

2.26 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial asset at FVPL and
financial asset at FVOCI (2017: financial asset at FVPL
and AFS). Dividends are recognised as other (losses)/
gains, net in the consolidated income statement when the
right to receive payment is established. This applies even
if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in
other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment
measured at FVOCI. However, the investment may need to
be tested for impairment as a consequence.

2.27 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

2.29 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised
as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will
be a success considering its commercial and technological
feasibility, and costs can be measured reliably. Other
development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The Directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

2 BERETEHERME @)

2.28 BUF & Bh

i 8 & R A W BT & B B AR E IR
BEEITIRAMSEE  HRRREE 2R
FEBERE R HERGE Wat R [Hib
AL HER

2.29 FF 3

FTRS R E AR S8 - & B E R 3 R il
AITTIE T A8 A% T8 B AT A RCAN BE AT 52
WEER RERBEELZZRAN (FHER
SRR EMK AR ER) BRABTE
7 o Bt B R B ST EE AR B S 8K o SR FERR
RAXZBRAATENERBRERRE
o

230 RE DK

AARBIBRRD K Z BB RARFIRRAE
£ (RERBERME) HERB A A E
BEARBPBEHREAERREE-

MR EREE

31 MBEBEE

REE 2R EE LR KRR : Ti5ER
(BREERRR AFENERR RERE
MEEBEERRR) FEERRERBE
R AEE 2 BER R ER SR
BTG EIATER 2 Bt - YR BRI
RRZBERETE-

E=g8
&

RBRER EFEBENEEE
BEUEEE

1 55 B st B S g o

=
=1



=fEEH (FED BRAR

ZE-N\FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

0]

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$,
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars (“US$”). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, JPY and US$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other than
HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the
Group. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign currency exposure.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. The exchange rate of RMB
to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates.

For companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,175,000
(2017: HK$2,847,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on

translation of RMB denominated current accounts
with group companies.

As at 31 December 2018, if JPY had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,932,000
(2017: HK$1,888,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of JPY denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2018, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$4,546,000(2017: HK$6,615,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange

difference on translation of HK$ denominated
current accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2018, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$213,000(2017: HK$213,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of US$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents as well as the current
accounts with group companies.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly
from short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are non-interest-bearing and are
measured at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on
interest-bearing short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been approximately
HK$26,828,000(2017: HK$25,574,000) higher/
lower due to interest income earned on market
interest rate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MKERER(®

3.1 EKREZ (&)
(@) THEE (E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowing
is all issued at fixed rates which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. Management
considers the fair value exposure of the fixed rate
borrowing is insignificant to the Group (2017:
same).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, trade and bills receivables,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

The carrying amounts of other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, trade and bills receivables,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

(i) Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to reputable and creditworthy customers with
an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure the
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

0]

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

For its micro-lending business, the Group
leverages on its proprietary credit risk
management and fraud prevention system while
it also has established a comprehensive credit
risk management process which include credit
origination, credit review, credit approval,
disbursement, post-disbursement monitoring, and
collection.

Management considers the credit risk for amounts
due from investments accounted for using the
equity method to be minimal after considering the
financial condition of the entities. Management
has performed assessment over the recoverability
of the balances and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
entities.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the largest customer
accounted for 5% (2017: 6%) for the total
revenue, and top five customers constituted 10%
(2017: 15%) of the Group’s turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables for sales of goods of
the Group and from the provision of services
and loan receivables are subject to the ECL
model. While cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits, and other financial assets at
amortised cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance for all trade and bills
receivables. The Group measures the ECL on a
combination of both individual and collective
basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MKERER(®
3.1 BEREE (&)
b) =EEE (8)
(i) ©BEERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. The
Group also estimates the provision for ECL on a
collective basis by grouping the trade receivables
based on shared credit loss risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer
and its ageing category, and applying ECL rates
to respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables. The ECL rates are based on historical
credit losses experienced up to 3 years and are
adjusted to reflect current and forward looking
information on factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. As at 31
December 2018, the ECL of these collectively
assessed receivable balances was HK$10,463,000
based on expected loss rates up to 36.9% applied
on different groupings.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as ‘credit impairment loss’ in the
consolidated income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B¥ERERE (8
3.1 RAKREZ (&)

b) FEmE (&)
(i) ERMEERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade and bills
receivables was assessed based on the incurred
loss model. Allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in
payments are considered as indicators that the
receivable is impaired.

When a trade and bills receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account
for trade and bills receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018 (date of adoption of HKFRS 9) as a result
of applying the expected credit risk model was
immaterial.

Loan receivables

The Group estimates the ECL under HKFRS 9
ECL models. The Group assesses whether the
credit risk of loan receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and
apply a three-stage impairment model to calculate
their ECL, the management assesses impairment
loss using the risk parameter modelling approach
that incorporates key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default, with the consideration of
forward-looking information.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MKERER(®
3.1 BEREE (&)

b) =EmE (&)
(i) ERMEERE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)
Loan receivables are categorised into the
following stages by the Group:

Stage 1
Loan receivables have not experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment recognised on the basis of 12
months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2
Loan receivables to customers have experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of
lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3
Loan receivables that are in default and

considered credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit
impaired).

In assessing whether the credit risk of a loan
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the loan receivables assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is past
due for more than 90 days. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Loan receivables (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a loan receivables’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.

As at 31 December 2018, the provision
for impairment of loan receivables was
HK$32,807,000 based on expected loss rates up

to 100% applied to different stages.

Cash and cash equivalents and other financial

assets at amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2018 (2017: same).
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3.1 EKREZ (&)
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowing. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group maintained cash and bank balances of
HK$2,681,475,000 (2017: HK$2,541,482,000) that
is expected to be readily available and sufficient to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence
management considers that the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total available
banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$18,217,000 (2017: HK$19,192,000) of which
HK$10,247,000 (2017: HK$9,596,000) has been
utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

BRERBEZRDECRARER ~EE
BOMRRRZRAE MRS FEY
wEBFEANHARESHE (BREEH
RITEFOBRBERES - AREHE
B ZB1EE  ARE 2 HEIFIE A
HRARZRE MRS FEEMUALASY
ARERRERES 2 BEEE-

KEEREBRAEEESEEMEL
ReRtk BEARGHEHR 2R
RITERAESIEERE RESES KR -
R-BE—-NF+-A=1+—8 K&£E
2R & RIRTTEREEA2,681,475,00078 70
(= Z—+4:2,541,482,000/8 7T) ' 8
HENENESRAEZEEME -
b ERENA AEEMEZNRE
BEREBITTEA

R-E-N\FE+-_A=1+—8 K&E
AT ARITRLVE R 418,217,00078
T (=T —+t%:19,192,000/7T) * H
10,247,000 TEWE A (ZE—+
19,596,000/ 7C) °

TRIBBEEFHEANIHA TR
DT EAREZHTESRBED B
BRTHMBARN R BEBESERE
WAMBRRSRE - ARRRZZED
R BR+ B AAE 2 SaREER
HERM 4R

145



146

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

BIERRER (&)

3.1 RAKREZ (&)

© nEELER (&)

Less than
1 year Total
PRA—F et
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 31 December 2018 R=-ZB-NF+=ZA=+-—H
Trade and bills payables FERT BR X N BN R 4R 251,043 251,043
Payables for payment processing SNRHERIBHIRT RE
solutions business 2 FERT SRR 266,710 266,710
Other payables and accruals H b A< 5B M BT FR0R 1,182,518 1,182,518
Amounts due to investments FEfS AR E AR 2
accounted for using the BREZFIA
equity method 114,190 114,190
Borrowing a3k 10,784 10,784
Total &t 1,825,245 1,825,245
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—tH+=-A=+-—H
Trade and bills payables JERTBR A S BN B4 239,199 239,199
Payables for payment processing XN R BEIBIRIRTT RER
solutions business 2 FEATRIB 292,587 292,587
Other payables and accruals Ffth & 5 R IE I 5T R IE 819,031 819,031
Amounts due to investments JERT AREREAIRZ
accounted for using the BEZ A
equity method 57,755 57,755
Borrowing &R 10,034 10,034
Total A&t 1,418,606 1,418,606
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes borrowing of the Group. Total capital
is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet plus total debt.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the gearing ratio was
as follows:

f B T 985 A B

BIERRER (&)

3.2 BEXERERE

AEEEEERZ B RREREEFEL
B ARBERR R m R A R R E A 2548 7
FERHRNE W REBENEBARKE

RER AR ERGERE A RE A FHE R
RIXMZBBEHE MBRELORA %17
R EEENR B

AEENERNBBLREREEERNZE
o ZL KRB BRBRABELSE A
1§%@%§@tﬁ$%Zt%¥i°ﬁ@§$ﬁiﬁ/*\ﬁ
ERBERMAUR (] e EeEAE

RZE-N\FR=ZE—tF+=ZA=+—
= §$Q%ETWT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R-ZB-N\F RZE—+F
t=RA=+t—-8 +ZA=1—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Borrowing (Note 31) &k (Hfat31) 10,247 9,596
Total debt BfERsE 10,247 9,596
Total equity M ARRE 4,571,275 4,163,545
Total capital BEKR 4,581,522 4,173,141
Gearing ratio BARBELE 0.2% 0.2%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3 PBEREEE)

3.3 AF¥EME

(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) RFEER

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREA SR EZHERMAARA

instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December BB B DMAEER T —/\F

2018 and 2017 by level of the inputs to valuation R_F—tF+_A=t—HBEAVE

techniques used to measure fair values. Such inputs FIfRz R T E - BB ABIRIIZT

are categorised into three levels within a fair value MFTtm A S AR T EEERNZ =F

hierarchy as follows: B

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o MHREEXBBZERTSHRE
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (REEAE) (F—4) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within o BRBEERE—RBEIN EENL
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, BEZAEEERE (BER) M
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that % (BUREERE ) MAER (£
is, derived from prices) (level 2). &) e

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o WIFRIEFTBEMGEIEMEE 2
on observable market data (that is, unobservable BEXBEZBAER (AITATE
inputs) (level 3). HZBAER) (B=R) -

The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREIFEEZN _Z— \FT_H

were measured at fair values at 31 December 2018. =tT—HAFEHSECEE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& EZR BE=ZR st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET FET FET
Assets BE
Financial asset at fair BAVESAHMEE
value through other Wz eREE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity security —JEETRAE - - 895 895
Financial assets at fair value ~ ERAFEFTABZZ
through profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted investment fund —JELMREES - - 129,869 129,869
— Unlisted convertible —3F T AT MR AR B S AR
preference shares - - 141,872 141,872
— Listed trading securities - FE&EES 2,004 - - 2,004
Total &t 2,004 - 272,636 274,640

*  See Note 2.1.1 for the reclassification following the

adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

* BERMESYBREERESEE/MT
BRMEFHHE  FRME2.1
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

f B T 985 A B

BIERRER (&)

3.3 AFEMEF (E)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2017.

() AFEER ()
TREIARERR -F—LF+=A
=t -RAFEHEZER:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EFE—R F& F=M 1z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Assets EE
Available-for-sale AtHEeMEE
financial assets
— Unlisted equity security — I L TIRAE S - - 15,536 15,536
— Unlisted investment fund —EFMEREES - - 162,849 162,849
Financial assets at fair value & AFEFF ABzEZ
through profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted convertible —JE E T AR E IR
preference shares - - 93,485 93,485
— Listed trading securities —FTEEES 2,702 - - 2,702
Total &t 2,702 - 271,870 274,572

There were no significant transfers of financial assets

between the fair value hierarchy classifications during

the year (2017: same).

(@)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded

in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and trading and equity securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current

bid price. These instruments are included in level

1.

R ATEBERSEHL S REE
EAWE (=5 R -

F—HRzeMmIA
EERMBEE T A (flin
NHABEBITETEMEE RRAE
FIZATE RELEEHZTS
WEFNE -AKEFFERMEEL
MEBREREREAB-AHLA
FTAE— e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(1)

(i)

(ifi)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
(b) Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

(c) Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity security, unlisted investment fund and
unlisted convertible preference shares.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

Specific valuation techniques used to value level
3 financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques
during the year (2017: same).

3

BIEREMER (&)

3.3 AFEMEF (E)

(i)

RFEER(E)

b)) F_MzEeMmTA
WIHNERTEANEEZ &R TR
(AEIMTET A ) EERIEE
ANFHE ERERAAUBRMSH
& WERERMAKBEERZEFER
e BITAZATVEMEEMREE
RBABRORAIBREE A4
TEFTASE e

) F=HFzesmITHE
BEIENZEERBABRILIEL
ABRsMEHEAE BETIA
BEtAE =R LiEARIELT
BAFES FELTREESNIEL
A R ARB R

(i) BEE R FERAHZGERMN

(ifi)

AEEVBARE AR BHRER
BFrm e EEME (BRE=RAQF
1B) 2E5 - A ERET  ZEREE
MR E SR - WA B ER RIS
BB ERD -

[EMBRIRIR S MEBLRME - BEIEEE 5
RASEE@WBARGEERRETAN
hET 2R BEF AR FHIREE
RAARIL - W38 RGN & M B AT ff
SRR RERE R ENREMGHE
H R BRER AL T ARG E B eVER
RV

RHEX T A BRI B 152 2 F
EitE (F=/R)
RURE=feR T AKEZREME
RiBEEBRAEREDT NEEF
ERAF M - FAMERMIL EEE
(ZZ—CF48R) -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHEREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEE (8)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant (iii) EHEXT A B A BIRZ N F
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) EitE (F=&) (&)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TE&E2NHE—_ZE—N\FE+_A=+—
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December AIlrEES=femTEy&:
2018:

Financial asset

at fair value

Financial assets at through other

fair value through comprehensive

profit or loss income

BOYE

STARMEE

BOVEARSZ Wiz

SREE THEE

- unlisted

convertible - unlisted - unlisted

preference investment equity
shares fund security Total

kL -kt —kLwm
THRRELR REES RAxES G

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER

Balance at 31 December 2017, R-ZE-tF+=ZA=+-H

as originally presented & BRREZS 93,485 - - 93,485
Change in accounting policy S HREY (WiH21.1)

(Note 2.1.1)
— Reclassify from AFS -BAfHESRERE

ENDE - 162,849 15,536 178,385

Balance at 1 January 2018, RZE-NF-A-BZ

as restated wen REJ| 93,485 162,849 15,536 271,870
Addition RE 39,000 - - 39,000
Fair value losses on REMZAREERZ

revaluation recognised in ERATEEE

other comprehensive income - - (14,384) (14,384)
Fair value gains/(losses) on REEaRERERLZ

revaluation recognised in the SHATENRS/ (B8)

consolidated income statement 9,387 (25,660) - (16,273)
Exchange realignment I 5030 % - (7,320) (257) (7,577)

Balance at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NF+=ZA=+-H
P30 141,872 129,869 895 272,636

Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised ¥ &5 EIRF A BHIE(L 2

in the consolidated income iﬁ/\uﬁl SR EHER

statement attributable to balances ~ KREB U/ (EE)

held at the end of the reporting

period 9,387 (25,660) - (16,273)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEERREE@
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AR EME (B)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant (iii) EHEXT AR AEIRZ N F
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) EitE (F=#&) (&
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRENNBE-Z—tF+-A=1—
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December HIFEFE=fcsRIAZ#%:
2017:
Financial

asset at fair

value through Available-for-sale
profit or loss financial assets
BATE
FtARHZ A&
TREE TREE
- unlisted
convertible - unlisted - unlisted
preference equity investment
shares security fund Total
— L —FLm LW
JRRELR A E 5 REES &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THAL TR TEL

Balance at 1 January 2017 RZZB-tF-A-B2&H 76,880 14,664 91,449 182,993
Fair value (losses)/gains on REM2ERERERLZ

revaluation recognised in SEATE (B8) /s

other comprehensive income - (278) 61,913 61,635
Fair value gains on revaluation el & ER L

recognised in the consolidated Eft R FEYS

income statement 16,605 - - 16,605
Exchange realignment [E 5% - 1,150 9,487 10,637

Balance at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—-t&+-A=+—H
P - 93,485 15,536 162,849 271,870

Unrealised gains recognised in the ¥R Bi RSB &M BN 2

consolidated income statement BAENRRIEHER
attributable to balances held at the W
end of the reporting period 16,605 - - 16,605
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss/available-for-sale financial asset — unlisted
investment fund

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted investment fund as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are:

Asat As at
Valuation 31 December 31 December
techniques Unobservable inputs 2018 2017
Net asset value NA N/A N/A
(Note i)
Note:

(i) The Group has determined that the audited net
asset value approximates fair value of the unlisted
investment fund after applying a portfolio discount
10% (2017: 10%).

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted convertible preference shares

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted convertible preference
shares as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 are:

As at As at

Valuation 31 December 31 December

techniques Unobservable inputs 2018 2017

Discounted Pre-tax discount rate 23.0% 31.5%

cash flow Compound annual 36.2% 44.8%
analysis growth rate

Terminal growth rate 0.0% 3.0%

As at 31 December 2018, the pre-tax discount
rate used to compute the fair value is 23.0%
(2017: 31.5%). If the discount rate shifted
upward by 1%, the impact on the consolidated
income statement would be HK$960,000 (2017:
HK$2,717,000) lower. The higher the pre-tax
discount rate, the lower the fair value.

3 BiRE

f B T 985 A B

BE®)

3.3 AREMEF (8)
(ii) {EHEAX T A BRI A S 152 N F
EiFE (F=4H) (&)

(i)

(i)

BAFEFABEZEREE
AR ESMEAE—ELET
KREES
RZE—N\FR_ZE—+tF+=A
—t—H - ELrmREESZHE
FRZ EBZRAEREBRMT

“F-\F T

FIEER 128 2R

HERE  BAHE =t-8  =t-8

BERE  TER TER TER
(W)
Hat

() AEEHET CERBREHEGITE
10% (ZF—+F 1 10%) 1%  -EZ
BEFEMENIFELMRERES Y
AFE-

BAFEFABRCSRE
EE—FE LT AT IR AR B SR AR
R N\FRZE—tF+=A
=+—H LT BRELR
HERABZEEN]BRKRHRD
T

—E-\E ZT—+F

ENIE kS +=A +=A

fEERN BABE =+-B Z=1-H
BRRS WAARE 23.0% 31.5%
MENN BAFER 36.2% 44.8%
B R% 0.0% 3.0%

R-_E—NF+_A=+—8"
BEtE R FEZFHAIMRE A
23.0% (ZF—+HF:315%) °
HERIR R 1% AKX
960,000 L (ZE— L5
2,717,000/ 7T) ° B ATAR IR R =
Al A EBIEK -

153



154

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.4 Financial instruments by category
The Group holds the following financial instruments:

BIERRER (&)

34 RERESsZEHMI A
AEEBEBUTSMIA:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE - 178,385
Financial asset at fair value through R AFEFTAEMEEKZ 2
other comprehensive income TRIEE 895 -
Financial assets at amortised cost/ REBER AT EZ S REE,/
loans and receivables B3 e OR
Other financial assets BEHEN A ECEMSREE
at amortised cost 62,637 35,194
Amounts due from investments FEW A R IEA R 2 1B 2 5RIB
accounted for using the equity
method 15,116 16,289
Loan receivables FERE K 536,295 2,205
Trade and bills receivables Ui B 0 K Lk 2R 4 149,178 278,319
Short-term bank deposits MHIRITIER 1,583 16,153
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 2,681,475 2,541,482
Financial assets at fair value BEATEFABSZ SRMEE
through profit or loss 273,745 96,187
Total &5t 3,720,924 3,164,214
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ#EKX AT EZ SR B E
Trade and bills payables P BRI BN R 251,043 239,199
Payables for payment processing XNRGEBBRTREBZ
solutions business FETFRI8 266,710 292,587
Other payables and accruals H b B K ST FIB 1,182,518 819,031
Amounts due to investments FER AEREARZ
accounted for using ®EZHIA
the equity method 114,190 57,755
Borrowing B 10,247 9,596
Total &5t 1,824,708 1,418,168
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of trade and bills receivables
The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates (Note 3.1(b)(ii). The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s historical
credit loss as well as current and forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.
(b) Impairment of loan receivables
Impairment loss on loan receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

4

f B T 985 A B

BASEE R A Et & I

RN RELER A M IS IME 2 At RAE - TOER B
ERBIAMRR SEEHRREREBERT
BEAREHIR 2 EMHMmIEL -

AEBFHARAR A RBR-BREE
FrfEgstAst RV RARZ BERERER -FE
REBAEEH T —EAMRFEHEERBE L
BREEFHERNFE Z T RBRREFIAT

(@)

(b)

FEW AR B B W RiB R B
AEEREEBENRRMARBEEENE
R A H U IRBUE B (Aa23. 1)) °
REREPRR ARERBEBEEEBE
AN & B BRI HIEN L %
R EEREFTEZBABUR-

BWEFRE

RWER ZREBREEIEBREEMER
ERERSRE QRN ETESELNER
Z MG - EREFARKRER ZEER
REHEYPEREECREEN LEA=
PREORERLGEERMEEER -HE
EFORERR (BREMBRERES NG
AARKBEREHR A ERD 2 ATBEY
BIA KRR E AT BT AERE A LR B R
REREHE L BIREER) S NEBEAETT
8 - (EHRRAR K fhEt e
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

(c)

The measurement of the ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key measurement parameters,
criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was incurred,
economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain
factors not covered in the models and the estimated future
cash flows in stage 3.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is written down to
net realisable value when there is an objective evidence
that the cost of inventories may not be recoverable.
The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those
inventories are aged and damaged, if they have become
wholly or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices
have declined. The cost of inventories may also not be
recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred to make
the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying value
and net realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable, significant
judgement is required. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration
and extent by all means to which the amount will be
recovered.

4 BAEERTHHETRHE (@)

(b) BRERRE (&)

(o)

BHEEER T ESRERNETEEHE &
RR TEREREQERELE AR
RAB28 EEEERBETAREMZ
SE-NEELRLY B 2R
B RERKERRNIMEE  AEEHR
BEZERATEEMERAREHZEREER
ARkFIERZ2EARSRE-

FERE

T8 TR AN B B3 E 2 BURE DR
T A BB R IE RN F BRI E - B
T ERANHOR 2= AT 230 M E - T B IR E
KB 2R A D B REE T AR
REETBEREIFERA - HETTIHER TEL
ZABETECAIE N - JRAT e E BT e R TF &
AR o

RiFEWERRME 2 2R AT EREERER
BRFEILMZER - REEAIRRZEFE
A VE L A HET - VB B BT RS - K
SEehE (EPaeR) MEASTRAKE S
FREVESFE S B0
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

The fair values of the unlisted financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market, including financial asset at
FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL, is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each of the
balance sheet date. The Group has used discounted cash
flow analysis and net asset value model for the unlisted
financial instruments that are not traded in active market
(Note 3.3).

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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WA - B AR H Ath (B518), Wz
et -t

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5
(LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

RERTRZ A B R R bt (B518) /K
WEEMT

Revenue, other income and other (losses)/gains, net recognised
during the year are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+Z-BA=+—HLEFE

158

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Turnover =§ 301
Provision of payment processing solutions 4 (32 B EE AR R 5 3,744,922 1,979,939
Sales of information security chips HWEREBLERA RBRAER
and solutions 291,567 177,224
Provision of platform operation solutions 2t & iE & fF R 5 & 208,569 206,527
Provision of financial solutions RESBBAGTR 311,549 295,328
Sales of electronic power meters HEBRABEERNBARN R
and solutions 105,347 250,960
4,661,954 2,909,978
Other income Ht A
Interest income B A 23,717 27,807
Subsidy income ARG A 16,423 12,513
Rental income HalA 2,419 2,210
Others HAb 1,335 4,191
43,894 46,721
Other (losses)/gains, net Hit (B58) W& FE
Fair values gains/(losses) BRAFEFABRZCREELZ
on financial assets at FVPL NEEWRE (EE)
— Unlisted convertible preference shares ~— —3E =70 A] #AR B %L I% 9,387 16,605
— Unlisted investment fund —JFEEMRERES (25,660) -
— Listed trading securities —FHEEES (698) (248)
Dividend income earned from BRATVEAABG CREE
financial asset at FVPL Fr 15 2 B B 49 -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B 7 M — Fel Bt B8 & Rl & - 4,782
(16,922) 21,139




BERH (FE)ARAF ZB-N\FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group
from a product perspective.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports:

(@) Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services, merchants
recruiting and related products and solutions;

(b) Information security chips and solutions — principally
engaged in the provision of information system
consultancy services, the sales of mag-strip card security
decoder chips and related products and solutions;

(c) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication and mobile payment
platform operation services and operation value-added
services;

(d) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks; and

(e) Electronic power meters and solutions — principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters, data collection terminals and related
products and solutions.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings/
(losses) before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”).
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 2EER(E
An analysis of the Group's revenue and results for the year by REBFANZ WA RERZEEDEDWWT

operating segment is as follows:

Information Electronic

Payment security Platform power
processing chips and operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group

xf -} SRR

RERE REEAR  TREE £ Emk
BARE  BRER  BRAR  BRAR BARAR Hft  KEAF

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TER  TER TR TR TR

Year ended 31 December ~BE=-FE-N\&E+=AH

2018 Zt-BLEFE
Segment turnover NEEEE 3,744,922 291,567 209,636 311,549 105,347 - 4,663,021
Inter-segment turnover NEHLER - - (1,067) - - - (1,067)
Turnover from external RENBEP 2 EXE

customers 3,744,922 291,567 208,569 311,549 105,347 - 4,661,954
Segmental EBITDA (excluding 7 ¥2EBITDA (T &%

fair values losses on BRATERABRZ

financial assets at FVPL SREELATES

and employees incentive ~ ERHBRFZEE

programme of subsidiaries)  #£E)513]) 884,448 26,475 (24,148) 12,054 (23,920) (12,262) 862,647
Depreciation nE (292,147) (629) (2,131) (278) (2,214) 97) (297,496)
Amortisation B - - (144 - (290) - 434)
Fair values losses on BRATENABRZZE

financial assets at FVPL BEEZATEER - - (16,273) - - - (16,273)
Employees’ incentive WEARZESEE

programme of subsidiaries & (195,300) (6,147) - - - - (201,447)
Segmental operating PREE R/

profit/(loss) (B8) 397,001 19,699 (42,696) 11,776 (26,424) (12,359) 346,997
Unallocated other income K2 BE & I A 5,145
Unallocated corporate APEEERX

expenses (93,641)
Finance costs BMAEKAE 89)
Share of result of an JEIE AR EARRZ

investment accounted for ~ —IBREAZEE

using the equity method 171,753
Profit before income tax B P15 150 31 4 A 430,165
Income tax expense FERAX (92,875)
Profit for the year FRE 337,290
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEEFR (#)
Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing  chips and operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group
S35} ER Biite
R5ERR RECRR  FREZ £ Emk
BANR  BAZR  BRNE BRIR BRAIE Ay KEAF

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000
TET TR TR TAT TAT TET TET

Year ended 31 December EHZ-ZE—+%£+=H

2017 =t-ALFE
Segment turnover DEEER 1,979,939 177,224 209,683 295,328 250,960 - 2,913,134
Inter-segment turnover NEREEE - - (3,156) - - - (3,156)
Turnover from external RENBEP 2 EEE

customers 1,979,939 177,224 206,527 295,328 250,960 - 2,909,978
Segmental EBITDA (excluding ##EEBITDA (F8#E#

fair values gains on financial AT (BT AB#.Z

assets at FVPL) SREEZLTEK

) 432,375 26,867 (9,346) 23,942 1,692 (948) 474,582

Depreciation e (171,718) (477) (3,075) (525) (3,126) (119 (179,040)
Amortisation B - - (141) (8,555) (254) - (8,950)
Fair values gains on financial 22 FEFABEZ &

assets at FVPL HEEATERE - - 16,605 - - - 16,605
Segmental operating AREEET

profit/(loss) (B#) 260,657 26,390 4,043 14,862 (1,688) (1,067) 303,197
Unallocated other income K2 Be & I A 5,161
Unallocated corporate AAREERX

expenses (71,443)
Finance costs BEKK 9)
Gain on disposal of HENE R A

subsidiaries 63,262
Share of result of an EEAEREAEZ

investment accounted for ~ —TBIRE 2 ¥4

using the equity method 134,531
Gain on dilution of interest in JAE# %A AR 2 — 18

an investment accounted for 1% & 1 5 858 i

using the equity method 113
Profit before income tax BR 715 150 A1 4 A1 434,812
Income tax expense e % (45,298)
Profit for the year FRRF 389,514
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used
for all segments, including depreciation of property, plant
and equipment of HK$1,981,000 (2017: HK$1,640,000),
depreciation of investment properties of HK$198,000
(2017: HK$212,000) and amortisation of leasehold land of
HK$760,000 (2017: HK$760,000), respectively.

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2018 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December
2018 are as follows:

Information
Payment security Platform
processing  chipsand  operation
- - it

6 DEER(®

AOMEEATIERBRTEIBZHRA 55
BIEME  WE &EEITE1,981,0008 T (=
—-£4F 11,640,000/ 7T ) ~ 1% & ¥ % 37T £198,000
I (ZF—14F 212,000/ 7T) & E 1 0 #
§4760,0008 7T (ZZF—+4F : 760,000/ 7T)

KRB \F+-_A=+—B2ZOBREEHREE
MEZE T \F+_A=+—HILFEFRH
BEZRNEWT:

xff =)
REEE ZR2ERR  THEE
BARR BRRE  BARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERL TR FET

Electronic
power
Financial ~ meters and Total
luti luti Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
BHiTE
£ EmRk

BRATR  BRAR it AAE EH  REAG
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
FTER TER TR TER TER TR

339,802 249,455 102,338 3,169,150 (962,061) 6,632,517

As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

+ZA=t+-H
Segment assets NRAE 2,848,317 248,240 637,276
Segment liabilities PERE (1,768,738)  (193,738)  (318,483)

(321,434)  (175311)  (158290)  (87,309) 962,061  (2,061,242)

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE=-F—\§

TZB=t-BLEE
Additions to non-current assets ~ FRFEEZRE (T8
(excluding investments DEREAEZRE -
accounted for using the BRATESAEBRER

equity method, financial asset ~ #2 SFEE  BEEN

at fair value through other RtgzHeREE.

comprehensive income, other  FEWE T R EA BT

financial assets at amortised MNERZEMEE)

cost, loan receivables and

financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss) 537,266 2,612 1,647

161 296 6 1,311 - 543,299




=fEEH (FED BRAR

ZE-N\FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B T 985 A B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEEF (#)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2017 and REB—+F+-A=+—HBzZHBREEHRAE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December MEZE T+ F+ - A=+—HILFEFRY
2017 are as follows: BEZRNENT:
Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing  chipsand  operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions ~ solutions solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
S =S Bt E
RPRE R2ERR  TRER eR EmRk
BRAR  BATE  BRIR  BRIE  BRAR ) RAR E#E  £EA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER FEL TR TR FEL FEL TR
As at 31 December 2017 RZB-tF
+=A=1+-H
Segment assets PEEE 1,888,946 146,695 772,790 346,121 362,179 72,020 3,154,717 (1,086,017) 5,657,451
Segment liabilities AEAE (1,263,715) (110,624) (380,191) (315,595) (261,928) (170,130) (77,740) 1,086,017 (1,493,906
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F-tF
T-A=Zt+-HLEE
Additions to non-current assets ~ #RBEEZRE (TBIE
(excluding investments NEREARZRE
accounted for using the equity ~ ATEHESMAE -
method, available-for-sale RRERAHEY
financial assets, other financial ~ Eft & BEER
assets at amortised cost and BATEFARRZ
financial assets at fair value EREAE)
through profit or loss) 388,523 287 2,099 1341 464 4 - - 392,718

Unallocated assets mainly include investments accounted
for using the equity method of HK$1,927,772,000 (2017:
HK$1,823,245,000) and cash and cash equivalents of
HK$561,845,000 (2017: HK$527,339,000).

During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly
comprise additions to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (2017: same).

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

AOHEETEBRUEREZARZERE

1,927,772,0005% 7t ( ==& —+ 4 : 1,823,245,000

HITL) AR IR € IR & FE 561,845,000 7T
T —+%:527,339,000/87T) °

FR-IRBEEIANETBRERENE  BE R
REBANEVEEZRE (ZF—LF (HR) -

MEZSRHZENRARESMERR —2
HEE REFEERABRIBZEB IR

P ER 2 HE R R R NEFRE
HESNPES 2 ARG A R B2
e T
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 TEER(E
The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China and REBEFZEMERTBRREREE(ZT—+
Hong Kong (2017: Mainland China, Hong Kong and Japan). FAPEIRRE - BB RAR)  REEIZMEE S
The Group’s turnover by geographical locations, which ZEHER (RREEREEE ZERETE )& W
is determined by the locations in which the turnover are B

generated from, is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+T—-HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Mainland China B AR 4,556,117 2,844,322

Hong Kong HB 105,837 55,651

Japan SN - 10,005

4,661,954 2,909,978
The Group’s non-current assets (excluding other financial assets REBZWEE D 2 IERBEE (T EELHH
at amortised cost, loan receivables, investments accounted for A2z HMbemEE BIWER  LUERE
using the equity method, financial asset at FVOCI and financial ANERZIRE BAVEAAELE2ERE 2/
assets at FVPL (2017: AFS)) and current assets by geographical BEMMRATHEFABGZZEREE (ZT—+
locations, which is determined by the geographical locations in FrAHHEEREE) ) MR EE (IRIERE

which the asset is located, is as follows: EFEMETE) ST

As at 31 December

Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—B-\F T —tfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Mainland China B K B 747,475 542,071
Hong Kong BB 1,667 818
749,142 542,889
Current assets RBEE
Mainland China Fh B K Bz 2,880,301 2,293,956
Hong Kong i 783,310 719,766
Others HA 2,654 2,697
3,666,265 3,016,419
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7 HUMEEDZHX

administrative expenses are analysed as follows: HranT

ZE-N\FFH

RIFERA  IHERS MITRERF A 2R

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FHER
Auditor’s remuneration ZEHET &

— audit services —ZE R 3,103

— non-audit services — R BARTS 977
Depreciation of property, plant and M- B RRBITE (Bit14)

equipment (Note 14) 299,477
Depreciation of investment properties REMEITE (Bit13)

(Note 13) 198
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 15)  TAE T3 B85 (A7a115) 986
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) fEFZEE# S (MiiF16) 208
Employee benefit expense (excluding BERAMZH (TEEMBARZ

employees’ incentive programme BERES BRESFHS)

of subsidiaries, including directors’ (B1:t9)

emoluments) (Note 9) 697,934
Costs of inventories sold (including EHFERAN (BEREEE

write-back of provision/provision FEEE) (Kit22)

for inventories) (Note 22) 298,082
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REF 2 EEROES

land and buildings 37,144
Research and development costs R RFERAR (BFEEIKA)

(including staff cost) 322,752
Credit impairment loss EEREERE

— trade and bills receivables (Note 23) — JEWRR R W R 1R
(Htit23) 5,125

— loan receivables (Note 19) —EWER (HiE19) 34,829
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant &Y% BE LEE 2

and equipment (Note 33(b)) (Wezs) /118 (H15233b)) (45)
Provision for inventories (Note 22) FERE (H7F22) 1,253

2017
—ET—tF
HK$’000
FHET

2,950
800
180,680
212

981
8,729

513,482

315,022

31,980

185,609

302
783

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSS)/GAIN

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
HK$13,788,000 (2017: gain of HK$21,626,000).

8 SME (B51B) W FE

HE-Z—)\&+_A=+—HLLFE W1TK
& FER 2 INE B 18 /F 58 A13,788,0008 7T (=
T —41F R FE21,626,0008 7T ) ©
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS)

9 EEREAMAX (BEESEHE)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Wages and salaries I&EkFS 597,007 442,760
Pension costs and social security costs R RA R & RERA 100,927 70,722
697,934 513,482

Employees’ incentive programme of )= PNCIPA = d g
subsidiaries (Note 28) (H15#28) 201,447 -

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 included two
(2017: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 39. The emoluments payable to the
remaining three (2017: one) individual during the year are as
follows:

IEEeHFAL
AEBHEZT-\F+_A=+—RHLFE
hEERmATREME (ZT—+F UK E
FoHE e E MO ITP R - KFE
ERS T =% (ZZT—+F: —&) AT ZH&w
T~

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E ZE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #r& 2B N EWF 9,320 2,612
Pension cost — defined contribution plan R IRE A — EEE 12l 443 61
9,763 2,673

Employees’ incentive programme of MLz E 8BRS
subsidiaries 195,300 -
205,063 2,673
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9 EEFEMBEX (EBFEEEMHML) (&)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) hEBREHFAL (E)
The emoluments fall within the following band: B2 F T 548 R -

Number of individuals
AE
For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017% 7T — 3,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$51,500,001 — HK$52,000,000 51,500,001/ 7T — 52,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$52,000,001 — HK$52,500,000 52,000,001 7T — 52,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$101,000,001 — HK$101,500,000 101,000,001 7T — 101,500,000/ 7T 1 -

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FrEHiBA

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax B HIA

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEHR - -

— Overseas taxation — /BN TE 92,925 45,344

Deferred tax RIER IR (50) (46)
Income tax expense FiS B H < 92,875 45,298
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BB RIS TR IAFE AR TS R 5 &
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the 16.5% ( ZF—+H4F 1 16.5% ) 5T & < GINGFIBIE
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the AIASF AEFTEARTUR M AR B 2 E R
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation RERZTHRETE o
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax P E A BRSSP B EPTSRUEBMN
(“CIT") in accordance with the PRC CIT Law. According to FTSHE ([REERATISH) < ARIRH B2 PREEUA
the PRC CIT Law and the relevant regulations, the CIT tax rate FAARER - RIFEER R EARME R RIfE
applicable is 25% unless preferential rates are applicable in the T BRI RS TE B R25% ©

cities where the subsidiaries are located.

167



168

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is
15%. If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as Software
and Integrated Circuit Enterprise (“SICE”), the applicable CIT tax
rate is 0% for the first two years of being qualified and 12.5%
for the next three years.

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal
subsidiaries

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions Information
Technology Limited (“ABS”) was renewed as HNTE in 2015
under the PRC CIT Law. Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology
Limited (“Hangzhou Electronic Technology”) was renewed as
HNTE in 2018 under the PRC CIT Law. BEfT14 2 (B R A A
(“VBill OPCO”) was renewed as HNTE in 2017 under the PRC
CIT Law. Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited (“HN Mobile
Pay”) was re-qualified as HNTE in 2017 under the PRC CIT
Law. As such, the applicable corporate income tax rate for ABS,
Hangzhou Electronic Technology, VBill OPCO and HN Mobile
Pay was 15% for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
same).

Megahunt Microelectronics Technology (Beijing) Company
Limited (“Megahunt Microelectronics Technology”) was
qualified as SICE in 2015 under the new PRC CIT Law. As
such, the applicable corporate income tax rate for Megahunt
Microelectronics Technology was 12.5% (2017: 12.5%) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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10 FRrBHMAX (40)

fH—FEMBARAREREEMSHIRERE
B ARIEMEE ([HHkidx]) - RiE
REEMSHRERI5% - H— BB A REE
RZEMERZRERABRK BT REK
BROXE (TR REKREREE])  AIREER
FHAGEMESHHRER% BR=ZFHRER
12.5% °

TEMBRARAZEREEREHRE

tREEEEEERMARAR ([REEERE
BNR-ZE-RFRETECEMSEEN R
BHFERMEE - N EEEFRMERAE (T
MEBFRIMDR -_Z-NFREPHREEMRS
BOEEF BB MR - BITN N ERAF
(BT DR =B —FRBH R EMSTUA
B REHIRIMEE R EEBERRINA
RAR (DHRRERE] R T —tFREF
BEEAEHEBRAEBRABIRMEE -H
- BE—F-\F+_A=t—HLFE &
BEEES MMEFRMN BTN RAEEE
B AR EEMERERIS% (ZF—LF:
R ©

A BEME TR (b)) AR AR ([JKEE
EMEFEM )N - E—RFERETR B ¥R
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HE-_Z-/\F+-_A=+—HIFE ks
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

11

The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the
respective jurisdictions as follows:

f B T 985 A B

10 FrSHiBAY ()

REEERATSBATE M 2 BIR B AL A R 2R A
ERNG A BN 2 IR R et 32w
TRz R

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Profit before income tax R PSR A 430,165 434,812
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates TR E BB RE A HF < iE A
applicable to profit in the B ERAE 2 HIR
respective countries 40,529 65,712
Tax effects of: pinks=Z 0
Income not subject to taxation HEFRHRUA (48,382) (46,958)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  BLaRFr M & AT F0HE 2 F 2 72,956 4,662
Utilisation of previously unrecognised PRBERERZHIEBRE
tax losses 4,758) (718)
Tax losses for which no deferred W R TS T ISR 2
income tax was recognised HiIAEE 32,530 22,600
Income tax expense Frisfim 92,875 45,298

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 9.4% for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 15.1%). The change
is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group's
subsidiaries in the respective countries.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

11

HEZZT—)/\F+ZA=1+—HILEFE" im%éfr
BEAREA9.4% (ZE—+F :15.1%) o &

RETDAEEZ B A 73@*@%!%2&%% B

HEeELRBEHMB-

RE

BE_Z-/\F+-A=1T—RLFE ~QF
Iﬁﬁxfﬁﬁig/ﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂx% (ZZT—tF |-
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

12 BRER

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(@ B
TRREAR BTN TR AR A AL R TR
FREFTL BB IETSEEE -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1T—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—LF
Profit attributable to owners of ZAYNIEZ ¥ DN X Ehbl
the Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 278,175 346,144
Weighted average number of ordinary 2 317 & BRI FHE
shares in issue (thousands shares) (F8) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Basic earnings per share attributable to AR RI¥EAE AEEBREREF
owners of the Company (BRET)
(HK$ per share) 0.100 0.125

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
net income and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
five categories (2017: three) of potentially dilutive shares:
share options issued by an associated company — PAX
Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), share options
and convertible preference shares issued by an associated
company — Cloopen Group Holdings Limited (“Cloopen”)
and share options issued by subsidiaries — VBill OPCO
and Megahunt Microelectronics Technology (2017:
share options issued by PAX Global, share options and
convertible preference shares issued by Cloopen).

(b) #F
SRS AT R AR AR
R TR AFE R BTSN B
OB

BE_ZT-/\Ft-_A=1t—HIEFE &K
SEERE(ZZ—+5 : =8F) AEnlE
Wz By —RBE AR - B BERERH
BRAR([AERM]) BT ZEEE —
k& 2 ] —Cloopen Group Holding Limited
([Cloopen |) 877 2 BB 1 No AT AR 8 S Ak
KoMt & 2~ B — BETT T RIK B B F #ly
BT MR (T —+F B EIRIRELT
2 Fi R4 I Cloopen®& 1T 2 B AR 8 I T HA R%
BER)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise
of the share options of PAX Global as they would have an
anti-dilutive impact to the basic earnings per share.

Dilutive effects arise from share options issued by PAX
Global for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the exercise of
the outstanding share options in PAX Global would have
a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share options in PAX
Global would be dilutive if the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company will decrease as a result of
the decrease in the Group’s share of profit of associated
company and reduce in gain on dilution of interest in an
associated company. A calculation is done to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual fair value of the
associated company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options of PAX Global. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options of PAX Global.

For share options and convertible preference shares issued
by Cloopen, as at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of the interest in Cloopen was zero (2017: same). As at
31 December 2018, the Group’s share of loss exceeded
its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, the exercise
of the abovementioned share options and convertible
preference shares would not have any impact on the
diluted earnings per share (2017: same).

f B T 985 A B

12 BREAER (&)

(b) #8 (%)

BE_T—)/\F+_A=1T—HULHFE &
BEEE RN DREER A F RN BRIER
ErrrmatE REASESSHESRERR
NMEERESTE-

BERFREBE_T—tF+-_A=1t—H
I FEETRREES BT E-

RBE-Z—tFT_A=1—RLFE"
TREBAEERRZATTERBRENEAGEE
R o (W AN SE B R B 2 X R MR A Bt
B N R 2 RN KSR A QR
BEANEEENFRRD  AITEEERR
ZERERAEEEYE BENRATE
Wi 2 RDBR (B2 R BN 2 FHF
ERAHEEE) HIREE BRI RITEE
IR REFAF 2 REB R E W EER E - LAt
B2BOBA TNERREERR BIEE
TEZ B BT B R R

#Cloopend 17 2 B I% # 2 A] #2 JR 18 55 iR
mE RZB-N\F+ZA=+—B"K
CloopenZ # &= REERT (ZT—+F: 4
RA) RZTE—NE+_A=+—H &~&H
JE 15 518 48 38 2 7 Cloopen i iR 2 #E % -
BATHE DA NPT A RR B IR T
FREFRMEREMNTE (Z2—LF:
R
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 BRER (%)

(b) Diluted (Continued) b)) #BE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the exercise of the
outstanding share options in VBill OPCO and Megahunt
Microelectronics Technology would have a dilutive effect.
The exercise of the share options in VBill OPCO and
Megahunt Microelectronics Technology would be dilutive
if the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
will decrease. A calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual fair value of the
subsidiaries” shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options of
VBill OPCO. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options of VBill
OPCO and Megahunt Microelectronics Technology.

BE_T—)/\F+-_A=1T—HLFE 1T
(ERETTI BIKABE R E TRl 2 RIT
PR REABHERE AR B AR
EENFER D BITTERET TN RIKAIEE
MEFRMBRERRERETE BT
EAFEREZ RHEE (RHTBARR
2 FHEREAHEEE) HIREETTNZ
RTEBBIEFRH 2 BB REEREETE -
EXFETEZ BRin BB THERRARRBET T Bk
FISEME TRz BRI T 2 2 %17
PR BE fEELEL

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-—A=+—BHLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Profit attributable to owners of EANNCE7 2 DN el
the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) 278,175 346,144
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BRABRKEITZ
dilutive share options issued by FRT A R AR AT {50 8 i i
PAX Global (HK$'000) BT (F8T)
— Decrease in share of profit of —RBEERKZENL
PAX Global it ARk > - (89)
— Reduce in gain on dilution of —REERKR#E
PAX Global W g - (2,316)
Assuming exercise of all outstanding RERBETT RIKARIEEME T
dilutive share options issued by VBill R EATZ A M ARTTE
OPCO and Megahunt Microelectronics ~ #H I IR &1 T(F
Technology (HK$'000) (F%&7T)
— Decrease in net profit attributable to —ARREER AEERF
the owners of the Company REERL D (13,728) -
Adjusted profit attributable to owners RNETEREERN
of the Company used to determine ARNEHER ALK
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) @& (FA&T) 264,447 343,739
Weighted average number of ordinary BREERN 2 B
shares for diluted earnings per share nwEFHE (TR
(thousands shares) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Diluted earnings per share attributable X2 Al#EH A EE TR
to owners of the Company wEHEAN (FRET)
(HK$ per share) 0.095 0.124
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 REY=
Buildings
BF
HK$’000
FTHER
At 1 January 2017 R=-ZB—tHE—H—H
Cost BN 4,125
Accumulated depreciation R E (2,071)
Net book amount BREFE 2,054
Fair value (Note) NE (BaE) 11,017
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZF—+tHF+-A=+t—HLEFE
Opening net book value FHREFE 2,054
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 74) B Y%  BRE L& (f1iF14) 64
Depreciation e (212)
Closing net book value FREEFE 1,906
At 31 December 2017 R=-FB-—t&+=-RA=+-—H
Cost BN 4,256
Accumulated depreciation R E (2,350)
Net book amount BRMEFE 1,906
Fair value (Note) NEE (M) 11,989
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE-N\F+-A=+—-HLFE
Opening net book value FREFE 1,906
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 14) ~ BEZEY)% - B E M&E (Hat14) (133)
Depreciation e (198)
Closing net book value FREREFE 1,575
At 31 December 2018 R-EB-N\H+Z-A=+—-H
Cost BN 3,960
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (2,385)
Net book amount BREFE 1,575
Fair value (Note) NE (B E) 10,343
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note:
Fair value measurements using significant other observable inputs (level 2)

The investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu Building, No. 67
Fu Cheng Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC (1t R T/&E & F 8567
SRR E15-1742 ) . The fair value as at 31 December 2018 was assessed
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Asset Appraisal
Limited.

The valuation was determined using the direct comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2017: Nil).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to administrative
expenses (2017: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement:

Ha WA

Rental income

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

13 REY= (8

Bt :

UEBERTREEGABBEAQITVENE (E=
&)

REWMELNPBEIE RS EREKIR7IRREAE5-17
B-R-ZB-N\F+ A=+ RAZATFERBIEES
AREER P EEETERFARARRE

HEDRAERLEOAETE - BRI LR 2 8
EERGRIEBE (PINYEETE) 2 ZREHFE It
HETEZEEABAERGFHRE-

RZFE-NF+_A=+—HB AKEHREEHEBRERE
RREMAEREZEOEE(ZT—LF &)

FAMEBFERXE ATRER (Z2—+1F:ER) -

UT 2B R RA SR AR

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+t—-HLFE

Direct operating expenses arising from investment S HEMHS WA Z IR EMEREEZ

BEEEERX

property that generated rental income

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,419 2,210

@17) (434)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment property that did not generate rental income during
the year (2017: same).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases ranged from 1 to 2
years (2017: same).

At 31 December 2017 and 2018, the future aggregate

minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

Not later than 1 year

FAAHEHSWAZRE WL BEEER
HEEERX (ZE—L5F /) -

AEERBLLEOEBERENE AR F
122 (Z2—+F R) -

RZZE—+tFR_T-N\F+ZA=1+—HB"1&
B PR SR 2 R SAEE YA S 42 5E N
¢

As at 31 December

BR+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
433 1,378
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g )
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y% BERRZRE
Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE BAE
BF MEEE RARRE HBERRE RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER THT TER TET
At 1 January 2017 R=B-tF-A—H
Cost % 37,812 25,700 127,341 377,835 30,138 598,826
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (17,136) (21,305) (109,117) (153,248) (24,241) (325,047)
Accumulated impairment loss REPRERE - - - (6,665) - (6,665)
Net book amount REEE 20,676 4,395 18,224 217,922 5,897 267,114
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+tF
+-A=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 20,676 4,395 18,224 217,922 5,897 267,114
Additions RE - 187 12,528 377,244 2,545 392,504
Transfer to investment properties BERBNE (M213)

(Note 13) (64) - - - - (64)
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & (Hzt330)) - - (467) (147) - (614)
Depreciation nE (1,801) (2,143) (10,924) (162,952) (2,860) (180,680)
Exchange realignment [E3 1,528 276 1,513 25,058 389 28,764
Closing net book amount FREEHE 20,339 2,715 20,874 457,125 5,971 507,024
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tFE+=ZA=+-H
Cost KA 40,587 26,860 139,520 797,705 32,274 1,036,946
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (20,248) (24,145) (118,646) (333,390) (26,303) (522,732)
Accumulated impairment loss ZiREREE - - - (7,190) - (7,190)
Net book amount RHEEE 20,339 2,715 20,874 457,125 5,971 507,024
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-Z-N\F

+ZA=t-RALEE
Opening net book amount FMRmFE 20,339 2,715 20,874 457,125 5,971 507,024
Additions RE - 290 18,045 522,723 2,113 543,171
Transfer from investment properties BERENE (Mi213)

(Note 13) 133 - - - - 133
Disposals (Note 33(b)) & (Hzt330)) - - (792) 177) - (969)
Depreciation e (1,079) (2,096) (11,480) (281,781) (3,041) (299,477)
Exchange realignment ERRE (975) 71) (1,305) (32,138) (200) (34,689)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 18,418 838 25,342 665,752 4,843 715,193
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+=ZA=+-H
Cost A 38,867 26,042 145.916 1,260,382 31,998 1,503,205
Accumulated depreciation ZEHiNE (20,449) (25,204) (120,574) (587,806) (27.155) (781.188)
Accumulated impairment loss ZiHREREE - - - (6,824) - (6,824)
Net book amount REFE 18,418 838 25,342 665,752 4,843 715,193
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14

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$283,607,000 (2017:
HK$164,844,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$240,000 (2017: HK$520,000) in selling expenses and
HK$15,630,000 (2017: HK$15,316,000) in administrative
expenses respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, banking facilities of approximately
HK$18,217,000 (2017: HK$19,192,000) were secured by
buildings with a net book value of HK$7,530,000 (2017:
HK$9,000,000).

LEASEHOLD LAND

The movement of the net book amount for leasehold land is as
follows:

14

15

YD - R R Rk ()

W& X 283,607,000 L (—ZF —+ 4

164,844,00078 7T, ) B SHE AN 3285 - 240,000
BT (ZZF— -+ :520,0008 7T) RIS E R H
2§ %15,630,00078 7T ( =Z —+4F : 15,316,000
EIL) B RITHE AR S8

R-E—NF+-_A=+—8 RITEEY
18,217,000 7C (=& — £ : 19,192,00078
7C) A BREJE(E7,530,0008 7T ( Z & — 4 ¢
9,000,000/ 7T ) Z EEFVEHE A

HE T i
BEL 2 REFEZ BT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+Z-BA=+—HBLEFE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER FET

Opening net book amount FYIREFE 31,974 32,215
Amortisation # 35 (986) (981)
Exchange realignment bE 54, 38 B (498) 740
Closing net book amount FRREFE 30,490 31,974

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$56,000
(2017: HK$55,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$930,000 (2017: HK$926,000) in administrative expenses,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, banking facilities of approximately
HK$18,217,000 (2017: HK$19,192,000) were secured
by leasehold land with a total net carrying amount of
HK$2,862,000 (2017: HK$3,098,000).

FEREEE R T56,0008 7T (- —+F:
55,0007 7T, ) . 7 $555 A 78 AP 32 85 12930,00058 7T
TE—+H1F 926,000/ 70 ) T ERR i

R-ZZE—-NE+-_A=+—8B HRITEED
18,217,000/ 7T, ( =ZF — -+ 4 : 19,192,000% 7T.)
B AR FE42582,862,0008 7T (—ZE—+ & ¢
3,098,000/ 7T ) 2 T E T fEH R o
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16 BREEE

Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand ~ development In progress Computer
Goodwill  Brand name contracts costs  technology software Total
EVil)d
EFEER BERRELZ
B g BH BERERE  WERORE  EKEH EEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TER TR TER TR
At 1 January 2017 R=Z-t5-f-H
Cost 2% 104,686 4,446 4,646 22,456 5,942 30,978 173,154
Accumulated amortisation R - (4,446) (4,446) (22,438) (5,942) (22,245) (59,517)
Accumulated impairment loss ZERERE (103,171) - - - - - (103,171)
Net book amount REFE 1,515 - 200 18 - 8,733 10,466
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-E2-t%
TZB=t-RLEE
Opening net book amount FUREEFE 1,515 - 200 18 - 8,733 10,466
Additions NE - - - 214 - - 214
Amortisation charge s - - (105) (32) - (8,592) (8,729)
Exchange realignment BB - - 3 8 - 13 34
Closing net book amount FREMEFE 1,515 - 108 208 - 154 1,985
At 31 December 2017 R=F-t#+t-A=1-A
Cost 2% 114,008 4,798 5014 24,454 6,411 30,992 185,677
Accumulated amortisation S5t - (4,798) (4,906) (24,246) (6,411) (30,838) (71,199)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitHESE (112,493) - - - - - (112,493)
Net book amount REFE 1515 - 108 208 - 154 1,985
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-E-N\F
TZA=Zt-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 1,515 - 108 208 - 154 1,985
Additions RE - - - 128 - - 128
Amortisation charge s - - (106) (63) - (39) (208)
Exchange realignment EHRE - - @ (13) - (6) 21)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 1,515 - - 260 - 109 1,884
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+t-A=1-H
Cost AR 107,546 4,554 4,759 23,335 6,085 30,982 177,261
Accumulated amortisation Sy - (4,554) 4,759) (23,075) (6,085) (30,873) (69,346)
Accumulated impairment loss ZERERE (106,031) - - - - - (106,031)
Net book amount FEFE 1,515 - - 260 - 109 1,884

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$144,000 (2017:
HK$8,697,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$64,000 (2017: HK$32,000) in administrative expenses,

respectively.

ERCHEERT144,0008 T (ZE—+ 5
8,697,00078 7T ) B 72§ & A AR 7R 37 88 164,000
BT (T4 : 32,0008 7C) RITHREBAF X
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17 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Financial asset at fair value through other

comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial asset at
FVOCI included unlisted equity security outside Hong
Kong which is not held for trading, and which the Group
has irrevocably elected at initial recognition in this
category. This is a strategic investment and the Group
considers the classification as equity instruments at FVOCI
to be more relevant.

17 BAVEFAEMBEZEARE 2 EME

E/MHHESREE

@ BEAVERAHMZEARSEZEREE

W=B—\E+ A=+ B AEEEA
FHEE AR M2 E 2 S AR RIS
YERE 2 BAFINE L TRARS - AR
RS RRE T A B TR - Ut
HHEERA  BARERASRARATHE
AR 2 ERE 2 BAAE AR

HK$'000
FTER
Balance at 31 December 2017, as originally RZZT—+&F+_-_A=+—HB2#
presented RIRF275 -
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1) GETHREE (Hat2.1.1)
— Reclassify from AFS to financial asset at —BRHHESREEET RS
FVOCI BAFEAAREMEAREGE CSREE 15,536
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated RZE—N\F—HA—H2Z&EH K& 15,536
Fair value losses on revaluation recognised REMEPEWFER BE AT EEE
in other comprehensive income (14,384)
Exchange realignment PE H 8 (257)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F+A=+—B2H#&#® 895

The carrying amount of the financial asset at FVOCI is

denominated in RMB.

EEIAAREE.

BAFEF AR MRS 2 EREE R
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17 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17 BAFEtAEME2EKREzZEME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/AVAILABLE- E/AHHESREE (8
FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets b) AIHHESHEE
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s AFS included RZB—tF+-A=+—80 FcEEZT
unlisted equity security and unlisted investment fund with HEEeREERBIF LTRARTSRIEL
following details: MIREES  FEm T
HK$'000
FER
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZE—tF—A—HZ&ER 106,113
Fair value gains on revaluation recognised in R E At 2 W m R 2 Efh A FENE
other comprehensive income 61,635
Exchange realignment bE 54 3 B 10,637
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZF—LF+ZA=+—B2Z&H 178,385
Unlisted equity security outside Hong Kong & E N2 IE TR AE 5 15,536
Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong ~ &BHEINZIEEMREES 162,849
178,385
The carrying amounts of the AFS are denominated in RMB. AftHESREEZRRERARKIIE-

179



180

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL represent investment
in unlisted investment fund, unlisted convertible preference
shares and listed trading securities (2017: unlisted convertible
preference shares and listed trading securities). These financial
assets are mandatory measured at FVPL and with following

8 BAFEFABHEZEMERE

AEERAFHEF ARG SBMEERNIFLT
KEES FLmAakERER EHEBRES
ZHRE (R-T—tF  JFETARBRELER R
EHEEFES) -ZFeREEIRFIZATE
FPABHEAEREEFBN T

details.
HK$'000
FET
Balance at 31 December 2017, as originally RZE—+tF+_A=+—"Hz&&%"
presented RIR% 275 96,187
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.1.1) SR EE (Hat2.1.1)
— Reclassify from AFS to financial asset at FVPL —BRAMtHESREEENDESE
BAVEFABRZEREE 162,849
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated RZZE—NEFE—A—Hz&EH &F5| 259,036
Addition = 39,000
Net fair value losses on revaluation recognised RGN RKREREMATEEEFE
in the consolidated income statement (16,971)
Exchange realignment M 5,5 B (7,320)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE-—NF+_A=Z+—HZ&& 273,745
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZB—tF—A—HZ&ER 76,880
Addition NE 2,950
Net fair value gains on revaluation recognised iR a WEs R B AT EYEFE
in the consolidated income statement 16,357
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—tF+_A=+—HZ&H% 96,187
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

=fEEH (FED BRAR

ZE-N\FFH

18 MAFEFABEZEMEE (8)

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—H
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Unlisted investment fund outside ERBIZIELITREES
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (Htet(@) 129,869 -
Unlisted convertible preference shares FBIEINZ FE T AT AR B S AR
outside Hong Kong (Note (b)) (K17t m)) 141,872 93,485
o ___________ 27174 9348
Current assets REBEE
Listed trading securities in Hong Kong EELWEEI S (Witw)
(Note (c)) 2,004 2,702
273,745 96,187
Notes: Hit -

(@ Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong

The carrying amount of the unlisted investment fund is denominated in

RMB.

(@ BERHIZHFLTREES
SELMERERAS ZREETIAARKEE
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(©

Unlisted convertible preference shares outside Hong Kong

On 10 June 2016 and 28 February 2018, the Group subscribed
7,443,326 Convertible Series C Preferred Shares (the “Convertible
Series C Preferred Shares”) and 2,434,015 Convertible Series D
Preferred Shares (the “Convertible Series D Preferred Shares”) of
Cloopen, respectively. The considerations for the Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares subscribed
by the Group were approximately HK$78,000,000 (equivalent to
US$10,000,000) and HK$39,000,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000),
respectively.

The Group, as the holders of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares
and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares have:

(i) options to request Cloopen to redeem the Convertible Series
C Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares
at the prices equal to the greater of the issue prices with an
8% compound interest per annum return plus any accrued but
unpaid dividends or the fair values at the dates of redemptions
after the earliest of 10 June 2020 for Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares and 28 February 2021 for Convertible Series
D Preferred Shares or the occurrences of other conditions as
provided for under the definitive subscription agreements; and

(i)  options to convert the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and
Convertible Series D Preferred Shares into ordinary shares of
Cloopen at the conversion prices based on certain conditions
on the dates of conversions as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreements.

The Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D
Preferred Shares, together with the abovementioned options, were
classified as financial assets at FVPL and recognised at fair values. The
fair values of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and Convertible
Series D Preferred Shares were valued by an independent valuer at the
date of initial inception and on 31 December 2018.

The carrying amounts of the unlisted convertible preference shares are
denominated in US dollar.

Listed trading securities in Hong Kong

The fair value of the listed trading securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market and their carrying amount is
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recorded in
‘other (losses)/gains, net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Hret

(b)

(©)

BAFEFABERZEREEZR

i
A&

o

8 RAVEFABRZEMEE (1)

S (#)

EBENZELTARBRELR

R-F— /\EF/\H +EE-_ZE—-N\FE_A=1+NB"
NEE D RIFRHE7,443,3260% Cloopen 2 CE I ATHAAR
R ( (C%ﬁl AR E 5T AR ) 122,434,0150% Cloopen
2 DEF| AR E AR ([DRFIARREER]) o &
EEMRECRIIAIRREB LR RDRSATRRE L
% 2 RAE D BII# /478,000,00078 7T (A58 710,000,000
Z71) £39,000,000/% 7T (#8E 725,000,0005 7T ) °

AEE (ERCRIIRARELR R DR AR ES
BRAAN)E

(i)  HEFIZSKCloopen* =T =FFXA+H (BCE
HARREER NS ) R=T=_—F A=+
B (BDRF| AR ELRM T ) HBERKR
B AT T A 2 HAth Ik (AR B R B1%
BER TR EE 2 ERERCRSRAREL
B& RDF 5| AT AR SE % - B8%tE & FFIEE
IMERIEETHERNRE 2 BITESNIER B
W2 ATE R

(i)  EFRREREHATR 2 SR E BIREE
TFIRHZBIREECRY T RRE LR RDRY
AJHAARAE ST AR EE IR A Cloopen 2 E Ak o

CRI AR RE ST B R DR S AT B S g [ it
BN ERBEATHEFARSZEMEE WRA
FEMR - CRFI AR IRE LR RDRY AT E %
Bz AT ET BB GEEMRERXARBESRR-F
—NF+ZA=+—HBETHE.

FE b AR E ST RR 2 BREE TYAETIIE -

ERELTEERS
EHEBEESNAFHEDRBEEANERT S ZRTE
NERE HEREENETIIE-

AT ERETY
AR A [Eh (B18) KT8 7
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19 LOAN RECEIVABLES 19 BEREXR
Loan receivables are amounts due from customers in the JEWER AN/ NEERAEERBRETRERE
ordinary course of the micro-lending business, unsecured and FPHRIE BREEREERREIZUAARKE
primarily denominated in RMB. Be
(i) Aging analysis of loan receivables () BRERZKRERIN
The aging analysis of loan receivables based on the RIERHA R B 2 R E SRERER AT 20T

payment due date is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHER FET
Current BV 553,676 2,059
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z=1EA 9,365 146
Over 3 months past due BEA={E A LA & 6,061 -
Loan receivables, gross JEUR EFh 4858 569,102 2,205

Less: Provision for impairment of loan  J& : JEUE SR E B &

receivables (Note (a)) (Kiatia)) (32,807) -
536,295 2,205
Non-current portion SERNEAED 479 -
Current portion BVERER 53 535,816 2,205
536,295 2,205
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19 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19 WA (&)
(i) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) () BHRERZERRD T (E)
The analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount B B W B T BRI E S AR B B S 5K
and the corresponding provision for impairment of loan BEREBZESH 2 DT :

receivables in relation to loan receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December 2018
R=-ZF-NF+ZA=+-—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-HER F-BR F=ER EE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
FER FEx FEx FEx

Loan receivables, gross JEW S R4 s 468,532 84,419 5,558 558,509
Less: Provision for impairment of & : J& W B 5R (B 7 &
loan receivables (827) (26,422) (5,558) (32,807)
Loan receivables, net PR E BT 467,705 57,997 - 525,702
Interest receivables JiE I FI) B, 10,593
536,295
Movements for gross carry amount of loan receivables: JEWE R 2 eBREEZ SN T -

As at 31 December 2018
R-FE-NF+ZA=+-—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-EBR F-BR SB=KER L
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
FER FEx FEx FER

As at 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 2,201 - - 2,201
Addition/transfer NE B 971,411 131,172 7,864 1,110,447
Repayment EBR (487,244)  (43,509) (1,331)  (532,084)
Written off I 85 - - (761) (761)
Exchange realignment P 5 FA (17,836) (3,244) (214)  (21,294)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F

+=-A=+—8H 468,532 84,419 5,558 558,509
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19 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19 BRERR (#)
(i) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) () BRERZKREDN (B)
Movements for provision for impairment of loan RN EFREREEEINT

receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December 2018
R=FB-NE+=H=+—8H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-HR FE-BR E=ER e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET FTET THERT

As at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—N\F—H—H - - - -
Addition/transfer B (859)  (27,437) (5,772)  (34,068)
Exchange realignment bEE 34 2R B 32 1,015 214 1,261
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZT—N\F
+=ZA=+—H (827)  (26,422) (5,558)  (32,807)
Note: Byet:
(@) Impairment and risk exposure (@ RBERBEBREE
The Group applies HKFRS 9 to measure the ECL. The Group REBEEREBYHREERERTERME
assesses whether the credit risk of loan receivables have increased BEE - AREFHERER 2 EERRB V5
significantly since their initial recognition, and apply a three- HERAE R D AR IN - I8 A = P BB EAR AL 5T
stage impairment model to calculate their ECL, the management EERAEEER ERECReHRTES
assesses impairment loss using the risk parameter modelling B (BREEOIAR  ZHBKRKRENRRR
approach that incorporates key measurement parameters, 1) R 2 BUREL AN E BATHE I E R - 7T
including probability of default, loss given default and exposure RERE-

at default with the consideration of forward-looking information.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, based on HE_Z-N\FT_A=+—HILFE REE
management’s assessment, the Group recorded credit impairment BENRE AEERGESRRARTHEEE
loss of HK$34,068,000 (2017: none) in the consolidated income (B ET1E34,068,000/8 7T ( —ZZF —H4F 1 ) o &
statement. Loan receivables of HK$761,000, which are still E2T - )\F+ZA=+—ALFE EKE
subject to enforcement activity, were determined as uncollectible 761,00087C (DERNEHHITES)) KET
and were written off against loan receivables during the year AR S AR PRI E SRR s (=2 — 15
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: none). ) o
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19 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(O]

(i)

Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)
Management applied a three-stage impairment model to
assess the credit quality of the loan receivables. The loan
receivables are categorised into the following stages by the
Group:

Stage 1
Loan receivables have not experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since origination and impairment
recognised on the basis of 12 months ECL (12-month
ECLs).

Stage 2

Loan receivables to customers have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment is recognised on the basis of lifetime ECL
(Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3

Loan receivables that are in default and considered credit
impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit impaired).

The loan receivables are not collateralised.

Effective interest rates on loan receivables

The effective interest rates on loan receivables are normally
as follows:

Loans to individual borrowers

19 EWER (&)

@

(ii)

W E Rz Rk 2T (&)
B EE M = BRI E R AR E R 2

FEEE R ANEERRKERD BRI T
B
FIEER

BRI R RREERI2E R BREEER
(12{E AFEHEERIR) E1THER BN E
R EE R BEREIE N -

FER

RPN IER R EERERREEER (&
FEERENEHBENEEER)ETER.
BREFREZ BREER 2 EERRIEZEE
e

F=ER

BRHARBREERE (EERENEH
BHEEER) WEKER-

JRE B SR SRR 47
BWE Rz BRFR

R E SR 2 BFRFIR—RT

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

5% to 36% p.a. 15% p.a.
FRE FHEI5%
5%%Z36%
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20 SUBSIDIARIES 20 MIEBAT

R tFR-F—\E+=A=+—8 =

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2017 and 2018: ZBRRIZBENT
Proportion
Particulars Proportion of ordinary
of issued of ordinary shares held
share capital/ shares directly by non-
Place of incorporation Principal activities and registered held by controlling
Name and type of legal entity place of operation capital the Group interests
(%) (%)
r& FFERER
AR 3L 3t B R BRARE/ ERRAZ BEZ
B EEERER TEXBREXMY TMERFE EERLAH EERLH
(%) (%)
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced The PRC, limited Provision of financial solutions, HK$100,000,000 100% -
Business Solutions Information liability company services and related products in PRC 100,000,000/ 7T
Technology Limited hE BRAE ERERESRBAFER KB
EREBEEEERNARAR RAREER
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay The PRC, limited Provision of platform operation solutions RMB42,435,000 100% -
IT Limited* liability company in PRC AR
HEERARESRNERA FE ARAT ERRRETAELRATR 42,435,0007C
Hangzhou PAX Electronic The PRC, limited Manufacturing and sales of electronic RMB53,400,000 100% -
Technology Limited liability company power meters and solutions in PRC N
MMNEEEFRITBERAR FE - BRAR EFRLERHESHIRER 53,400,0007C
REBRARR
Megahunt Microelectronics Technology The PRC, limited Sales of information security chips and HK$15,000,000 100% -
(Beijing) Company Limited liability company solutions in PRC 15,000,000/ 7
KAEEMEFEE (LR FRAF HEBRAA HEERR2ERRBARR
BTN ARAG" The PR, limited Provision of payment processing RMB199,900,000 80.04% 19.96%
liability company solutions in PRC AR®
HE BRAT ERRREX MRS REHRT R 199,900,000 7T
*  BETT M AMRAF and Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited are BT A ARD R RN = 5 m S S R A IR

REREELETRIDEBEARRR ([EELT)Z

NBAR - AR EREEERE TS ZEAEHRE
T o AT - IRIEEEBITHMAEB A - RARHEARF]
HiHB AR 2 BT A& OHE  AARBBIE

the subsidiaries of BEE#ATTEBEHAR R F] (“Just-In Mobile”). The
Company does not have legal ownership in equity of Just-In Mobile.
Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements enacted among the
registered owners of Just-In Mobile, the Company and the Company’s

other subsidiary, the Company controls Just-In Mobile by way of
controlling more than one half of the voting rights of it, governing
its financial and operating policies and appointing or removing the
majority of the members of its controlling authorities, and casting the
majority of votes at meetings of such authorities. In addition, such
contractual agreements also transfer the risks and rewards of Just-
In Mobile to the Company. As a result, they are presented as the
consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

HERATAYRERE ZHEMBREEREK E
REERHEBZ RBORE  URRZE BB EH
FRARZHE  WMIEHBELSTT - s BRSO
IS EE AT 2 B K RS T ANE - it
WERIHEARR ZERE B AT
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MIBAT (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (@ ERFEZERER

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2018
is HK$193,062,000 (2017: HK$104,203,000), of which
HK$215,455,000 (2017: HK$124,776,000) is attributed to
VBill OPCO and its subsidiaries (“VBill OPCO Group”),
which is considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$1,535,894,000 (2017:
HK$1,376,159,000) of VBill OPCO Group are held in
PRC and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the VBill OPCO Group.

Summarised balance sheet:

RoE—N\F+-A=+—H 2 I
B FA 193,062,000 L (—ZE—tF ¢
104,203,0007% 7T) + H #1215,455,0007% 7T
(ZZ—t5:124,776,0005 70 ) EEEETT( %
HEWB A ([HBITRNEE]) B HEEER
HASEBEKN-

HHEANZE R B L] FE
R &

BETTI SR B 2 3R & K A2 BB 3X1,535,894,000
BT (- Z—+4:1,376,159,00078 7T ) JHFE
PRI A I RN E HINE B BIESR - 15
EHNEE BLER AR E R ZE R L EAR (I
EBEBEBILE) 2R

HHBAZERE R Z B LR 2T
AT EIIBETN RB M ERBE
EEAEBERME:

VBill OPCO Group

BETHEE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current FERE
Assets B 699,531 474,267
Liabilities aE (983) -
Current "B
Assets BE 2,148,640 1,407,883
Liabilities aE (1,767,755) (1,257,020)
Net assets EEFE 1,079,433 625,130
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MHEBAR (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued) (@ ERFERER (B)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with FBEEANHE R Em o W E R FZ
material non-controlling interests (Continued)) BHE (&
Summarised income statement: W R E

VBill OPCO Group
BITNRE
For the year ended
31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Revenue LN 3,744,922 1,969,933

Profit before income tax B FT 1S A& A 397,001 259,874

Profit for the year F A% A 309,404 220,003

Other comprehensive (loss)/income HEiam (FE) W (50,401) 37,116

Total comprehensive income SR EBRE 259,003 257,119
Total comprehensive income attributable ~ JE%2 % 1 25

to non-controlling interests JEAE 2 W s 4 51,697 51,321
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MEBAR (&)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (Continued)
Summarised cash flows statement:

@ EBEARFZRER(E)
HEEAHZERERZHE L 72
BEHHZE (&)

HRenegikMe:

VBill OPCO Group
BITNRE
For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BLEE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TETT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBHREIRE
Cash generated from operations KEFBRE 729,347 134,615
Income tax paid EXAEH (92,127) (32,818)
Cash generated from operating activities EEXBAFAE ¢ 637,220 101,797
Cash flows from investing activities = RAABLREAR @s5271) (366,941) _
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESEEYZ
cash equivalents ', (D) RE 181,949 (265,144)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHReMECEED
beginning of the year 1,376,208 1,530,075
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash RekReEEMZ
and cash equivalents &5 (E5i8) W (22,226) 111,277
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRAESEEYD
of the year 1,535,931 1,376,208

The information above is before inter-company

eliminations.

A EER REBARRBEHERT AR
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 21 UREFHRZEZABREZRE
EQUITY METHOD

The balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as REFEEERBRBER ZAEHNT
follows:

As at 31 December

Rt+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER TET
Associated company: /NS
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BERK (Wita@) 1,927,772 1,823,245
- Good Chain (Chongging) Technology —ifiE (BB ) RHEBR AT
Co., Ltd. (“Good Chain”) (Note (c)) ([a7s8]) (Mite©)) 3,416 -
1,931,188 1,823,245
The amount of share of result recognised in the consolidated REFEWERERNEB ZBIESROT

income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAT

Associated company: /NG
- PAX Global (Note (a)) —BERK (Mit@) 171,753 134,531
The amount of gain on dilution of interest recognised in the RiFARERER 2 Ea W am S EIT

consolidated income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Associated company: NGB
— PAX Global (Note (a) —BEIB (K@) B 13
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at
31 December 2018, which, in the opinion of the directors,
is material to the Group — PAX Global. PAX Global has
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are

held directly by the Group; its principal places of business

are in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United States of America

and ltaly.

Name

=1

31 December 2018
—2-N\E+=ZB=t+—-8H

PAX Global (Note i)

BERK (M)

31 December 2017
—Z2-tF+-A=+-H

PAX Global (Note i)

BERK (M)

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
ST AR 3L 3t B R
EEEE SR

Bermuda, limited
liability company
BRE BRAF

Bermuda, limited
liability company
BRE BRAF

Particular of issued
share capital

BRTRAFHE

1,100,194,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each
1,100,194,0003%
BREE BT
ZEEk

1,100,194,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each
1,100,194,0005%
BREEET
ZEEk

21 URERZEARZKRE (8)

(@ REERRZRE

TX&#IR -_ZE-NF+-_A=+—H
EER/EAREMEBERZASE
BERA]-AERN ARRMEAHA
SEEERFAENEBRBR B
HIBLX WA ATE 78 XBELE

KA e
Nature of Effective
relationship interest held
gz
BEEE BRER
Note 36 33.09%
fi5t36 33.09%
Note 36 33.09%
fi5t36 33.09%

Measurement
method

SEEE

Equity

&
i
I

Equity

&
i
I
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

21 R ZEARZKRE (8)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@) REEBRRZBRE (&)

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group's spinoff
of PAX Global to be separately listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, PAX Global became an associated
company of the Group. On the date when control ceased,
the Group's retained interest in PAX Global was fair
valued, and this give rise to the difference between the
carrying value of investment in an associated company of
the Group and its share of net assets value of PAX Global.

R-F—FF+-A-+R BRAK
AN E S B LT 2 B
STl o
ULRME L R
REZ RN AT B B
BB R DA E GRS
BRAEFEMEHELRER

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBT FHET

At 1 January R—HA—H 1,823,245 1,663,250
Share of profit JE 4k Y42 ) 171,753 134,531
Share of other comprehensive income  J&{l H b 2 M U 25 (38,106) 54,156
Dilution of interest (Note ii) R EEE (A1) - 428

Dividend received B E (29,120) (29,120)
At 31 December ®wt+=—A=+—8H 1,927,772 1,823,245

Impairment test for interest in PAX Global

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global
at the balance sheet date is less than its carrying value. An
impairment test is performed to determine the recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount, which
was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use
basis calculated by a discounted cash flow model, exceeds
the carrying value as at 31 December 2018.

RE FRZ #as Z R 1E R
R-ZB-N\F+_A=1t—RH REZLQ
FEZEEABRBHAERRZEM
BEANEAE PREREE - ETTRER
AEEEEREZAMBESE - R-F
—N\E+ZA=+—8 ABIAEM
REREEEEFHARABRREDR
EBRAFH A E S EBEBRAE-
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)
Impairment test for interest in PAX Global (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s interest in PAX
Global was 33.09% (2017: 33.09%).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in PAX Global.

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment
Terminals”) products, provision of payment solutions
services and maintenance services (collectively, the
“E-payment Terminals solution business”).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share
options were exercised. During the year ended 31
December 2017, certain employees of PAX Global
exercised their share options granted pursuant to a
share option scheme set up on 1 December 2010. A
gain on dilution of interest in an associated company of
HK$113,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statement, including release of reserve debited to the
consolidated income statement of HK$315,000. The
Group’s interest in PAX Global decreased from 32.86% to
32.70% accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no ordinary
shares were repurchased by PAX Global (2017: repurchase
of 13,000,000 ordinary shares) on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The Group’s interest in PAX Global
remains at 33.09% (2017: increased from 32.70% to
33.09%).

21 URERZEARZKRE (8)

(@ REEBRZRE (B)
REBREZ #Ees Z HEE (4
R_ZE—NF+ZA=+—8 r5£E
RABRKZEZRA33.09% (ZF—+
£ :33.09%) °

BEABASENAEERRZERZK
REME-

Miiti: BERREEXFRRRHETTIIHE
Bisn (BT X)) B DRIRHE
NERRTRIRI R R (5078 (BT %
NEHRRTRER]) -

Mt BE_Z-NF+_A=1+—BILFE %
EEREIRITE - BE_T—+F1+=
B=+—HILFE BERFETEETE
BER-E—TF+ B —ARIZER
TERT IR 2 BERRAE - A — Rl & A R 2 #E
HEESEIRES113,0008 LB RER A s &R
R BENREGRERER 2B LS
315,000/ 7T - At - NEER B EIRIR 2
25 F132.86% K £32.70% °

Miazii - BEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFE B
BERBEBBHARIMERARMER
ElIE @R ( —Z—+4F : B5113,000,000
REBR) AEEREERRZERHE
FF1E33.09% (=T —tF : 32.70%E =
33.09%) °
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

21 R ZEARZKRE (8)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@) REEBRRZBRE (&)

Extracted financial information set out below are the
summarised consolidated financial information of PAX

Global which is accounted for using the equity method.

TXhEZHEERIRERAEREA
RBERMEAMBERGE-

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current TE
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 2,160,192 2,165,224
Other current assets (excluding cash) HRBEE (TEIERE) 3,183,544 2,673,949
Total current assets RBEELE 5,343,736 4,839,173
Trade and bills payables FERT IR R R BT =98 (1,190,447) (953,084)
Other payables and accruals H fth JEA sRIB X JE 5T B A (259,120) (281,585)
Other current liabilities HitmaE (83,171) (68,291)
Borrowings [EE7S (8,244) (14,367)
Total current liabilities BB EERE (1,540,982) (1,317,327)
Non-current ERE
Assets BE 431,818 393,043
Liabilities BE (21,964) (17,823)
Net assets BEFE 4,212,608 3,897,066
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)

USING THE 21 UREZHZEARZKRE (&)

(@ REERRZRE (H)

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F “E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Revenue WA 4,415,409 3,591,080

Profit for the year F R A 515,398 336,566

Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hizm (E18) WS (111,840) 162,137

Total comprehensive income T HKRERE 403,558 498,703
Dividends received from the BERA=VNCIE Gl 3

associated company 29,120 29,120
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21 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in Cloopen

(c)

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at
31 December 2018 — Cloopen. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying value of Cloopen is nil (2017: same) which
is not considered as material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Cloopen has share capital
consisting of class A ordinary share, class B ordinary share,
series A convertible preferred shares, series B convertible
preferred shares, series C convertible preferred shares and
series D convertible preferred shares.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s effective interest in
the ordinary shares of Cloopen, calculated based on all
issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Cloopen which
are held by the Group, is 50.51% (2017: 50.51%).

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group's interest in Cloopen.

The interest in Cloopen was initially measured at fair
value. The carrying amount was increased or decreased
to recognise the Group’s share of the profits or loss and
movements in other comprehensive income or loss of the
interest in Cloopen to the extent the carrying amount of the
interest in Cloopen reduced to nil due to losses, after the
initial recognition. As at 31 December 2018, the Group's
share of loss of Cloopen exceeded its interest in the
ordinary shares of Cloopen, there are no overall financial
impact on the consolidated income statement from the
investment for the current year. As at 31 December 2018,
the unrecognised share of loss of the interest in Cloopen is
HK$413,475,000 (2017: HK$270,658,000).

Investment in Good Chain

Good Chain was set up on 15 June 2018. The Group holds
30% equity interest in Good Chain. It does not have any
material operation during the year ended 31 December
2018.

f B T 985 A B

21 R ZEARZKRE (8)

(b) ACloopenz&E

(c)

TXHIN - N\F+_A=+—H
A& @ 2 B & X B —Cloopen e R =&
—N\EFE+ZH=+—H"Cloopenz i H
ERE(ZZT—LF A HAEE
ZIRE UM ETIBENX © Cloopent#E B
ZRABARE B  BRE B AR
AR ST BRI AT AR B R C
F 5| AR 8 ST IR B DF B AT #R AR 8 5
PR ©

RZZE-N\F+ZA=1+—H #&4FE%
& F#%5 Cloopen® & 2 317 R BTSN
L@ ETE - A& E R Cloopen B
LB IR R50.51% (ZF —+F-
50.51%) °

AR E B Cloopen 2 EaiE & &
ZRAREE A

R CloopenZ RN HHE N TEAE - £
VIR HERE » i Cloopen 2 #z 2 BRH
EREERES RHESRERAEE
FE{E A Cloopen 2 s 2 a7 B8 LA IR H
b2 E M RSB R B ML INsoR D o
RZTE—N\F+-ZA=1+—0 F&&HE
J& {5 Cloopen 2 & 18 it 8 H 1A Cloopen &
B R ZERENARFEIL &Y
FAaBRRBREBIBLE-N_F
—NFE+ZA=+—H REREMER
CloopenZ # 7 7 [E18 /3413,475,000/%
7 (ZZ —+%:270,658,000% 7T ) °

Rz RE

N —E— \FRATHAMKL K
SEFH TR Z30%RE AREE
- N\F+ZA=+—HILFELEE
M ERE -
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22 INVENTORIES 22 8

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Raw materials =41 16,985 7,053
Work-in-progress R m 129,896 65,956
Finished goods K 15,394 22,398
162,275 95,407

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales amounted to
HK$298,082,000 (2017: HK$315,022,000), which included
provision for inventories of HK$1,253,000 (2017: which
included provision for inventories of HK$783,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$36,982,000 (2017:
HK$37,689,000) as at 31 December 2018. Full provision has

7 5H B A AN FE IR 2 17 & K AN ##£298,082,000/% 7T
—E—+4F:315,022,0008 7T ) - BIEF & B
%1,253,0008 T (T —+F : BREFEEE

783,000/ 7T ) °

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—08 L& FE
BR 2 7 E48%E4)536,982,0008 T (—F—+HF:
37,689,000/ 7T ) -+ I B #L it S 45 R 1B S 2 B

been made with regard to these balances. e
23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 YRR ERRE
As at 31 December
Rt+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current portion BNSAE8
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEUREBR X (Hit(a)) 148,173 270,240
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEW R (Hfatm)) 11,468 13,902
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : & W Z IR R (B 2
(Note (c)) (Htetc)) (10,463) (5,823)
149,178 278,319
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The

carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The

carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

&5 o W e 2 Bi B
23 BEWRARKEWRELE (£)
B {21 B L A (AR o KRR 2K R e M 24 >

FREETIATIIERESIE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
HK$ AT 7,086 1,687
RMB AR 139,941 275,555
us$ eV 546 -
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) RPTHE 1,605 1,077
149,178 278,319

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group's credit terms to trade debtors range from 0
to 180 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

@ EWERRK
AEEGETESEFEAZEEHRAR0E180H
o X RIRE R A MEL 2 USRS

DT :

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current to 90 days BIEAZ=90H 109,685 188,974
91 to 180 days 912180H 2,919 27,060
181 to 365 days 1812365H 8,335 19,564
Over 365 days 365H A F 27,234 34,642
148,173 270,240

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$18,767,000 (2017:
HK$50,513,000), which represents approximately 10%
to 20% (2017: same) of the relevant contract sum granted
to certain customers in the PRC that have a retention
period of normally one year. As at 31 December 2018, the
retention money receivables aged over 365 days primarily
based on invoice date amounted to HK$14,786,000 (2017:
HK$25,766,000).

R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8 BREXR
BLHE ERE 418,767,000 7 (— T —+
:50,513,00087C) R TETHEER
1R A B IBLT10%E20% ( —F —+F
HR) ZERPZREHR—ME—F -1
—E-)\F+-_A=1+—8 FTEBREZEH
BRETEBREA B30 A A E 2 EIIRE S A
14,786,000/ 7T ( ZZ —+4F : 25,766,00078

JT) e
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Bills receivables
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with
maturity dates within six months. The maturity profile of
the bills receivables of the Group is as follows:

23 FEWERA R EWERE (&)

(b) BUWRE
AAESRIERH A RORNER ZIRITEAR
B AEEREEERZBIMBIERINT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THETT
Falling within 90 days 90H N 4,636 13,902
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91£180H 6,832 -
11,468 13,902

(c) Impairment and risk exposure

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and bills receivables. To measure
the ECL, trade and bills receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. Future cash
flows for each group receivables are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience, adjusted to reflect the
effects of current conditions as well as forward looking
information.

Movement on the provision for impairment of receivables
are as follows:

(© REKRR

JEW AR R SR 1R

AREBERMAEBMERELEANESRETT
FRTEREMEREE  SATA USRI E
WEEEREHENEERE - At EEH
EEER BRURRLERERCRIERR
EERBRE D - & B USRI R RIR
ERETRIBE L BRLRME LIELH
B RRE FIORA R ATIE B2

JENGRIR R E R B INT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—BLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F ZE—tF

At 1 January ®—A—8 5,823 5,397
Credit impairment loss EERERRE 5,125 -
Exchange realignment bEE 3, 8 BE (485) 426
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 10,463 5,823

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

RS BHMEY 2 ZAEERRT) L&
SRR WA 2 BR T B - AN SR B30 45 6 (A
HARIERER-
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24 RBERAHECHMERMEE H

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current portion REBD
Deposits and other receivables e N EH A B RIR 49,830 32,166
Non-current portion FRE D
Rental deposits Hemse 12,807 3,028

The carrying amount approximate their fair values. The
discounting impact of non-current portion is insignificant. The FELTER - REBHKAFEZ HME R
BEZREEATIIEESE:

carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are

denominated in following currencies:

BREEREQFERE - JFRBE D HEER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—EB-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHET
HK$ BT 9,878 1,008
RMB AREE 52,759 34,062
MOP SR P - 124
62,637 35,194
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25 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

25 HttRE&EE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Prepayments TR FRIE 17,540 19,857
Value added tax receivables JFE U IE (B F 51,448 11,839
68,988 31,696

26 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Short-term bank deposits of HK$1,583,000 (2017:
HK$16,153,000) represented bank deposits of the Group with
original maturities over three months which are placed as
guaranteed deposits for bills payables and are denominated in
RMB.

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

26 SEHASRITER
B HAGR 1717 7X1,583,0008 T ( — T —+F:
16,153,000/ 7T ) FE AN B phFE S IR M T 1EIR B
B REEIHBEAZM@ANU L ZRITER I
AARMETIE -

27 HeERBEEEY

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFERS 1,718,417 1,804,392
Short-term bank deposits (original maturities %2 B8R 1717 3¢
of less than three months) (REEHBLR=MEA) 963,058 737,090
2,681,475 2,541,482

Included in short-term bank deposits were HK$751,166,000
(2017: HK$681,238,000) bank deposits with original maturities
within three months and effective interest rate of 0.0% (2017:
0.5%) which are placed as guaranteed deposits for bills
payables, tenders or deposits designated for settlement of
certain payables in relation to the payment processing solutions
business and are denominated in RMB. The remaining balance
of HK$211,892,000 (2017: HK$55,852,000) were fixed bank
deposits with effective interest rate of 2.6% (2017: 2.1%) and
with average maturity day of 51 days (2017: 86 days).

5 SR 1TIE 2 R 751,166,00078 7T ( — T —+H4F

681,238,00078 7T ) 5 AN 55 B gk FE S RAB TR 1EIR
B WIEN ARSI NRSERERRTRE
B ETRNFIBEAREARE TR ZRITE
FHZERTEREREYHAA=EAUNARE
BHZEA0.0% (ZF—EF:0.5%) WAARE
BB - 82 T A5 82211,892,0008 T (— T —+4:

55,852,000/ 70) BEERITFER BERFE A
2.6% (ZZE—+F:21%) M FHREH A51H

—ZE—+F:86H)
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$1,923,022,000 (2017: HK$1,845,541,000) are kept in
the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

f B T 985 A B

27 BERBEEEEY (%)

NEBEE S 4/51,923,022,0008 7T ( —F—+
i 1,845,541,00078 7T ) 7 AR BISRT THIRR 2 3R
P EHESAIINEESH-

e kRS FEYRATERIE:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
HK$ AT 380,307 317,918
RMB AR 1,909,570 1,820,718
us$ e 195,776 211,457
JPY B IE 193,179 188,824
MOP P 2,643 2,565
2,681,475 2,541,482
SHARE CAPITAL 28 IR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
BREE0.00258 T 2L AR
No. of shares HK$'000
25 FHET
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R-_ZE—+F—HF—H"
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —E—+tF+HA=+—H"
—E-N\F-HA—HK
ZZE-N\F+=ZA=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHR:
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R-ZE—+F—H—H"
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —E—tF+ZA=+—H"
—N\F—A—HK
—\F+=-A=+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942
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28 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

Share options of the Company

28 BRA (&)

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for

the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees

in order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and Executive and non-Executive Directors. The Scheme
became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or

amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from

that date. No share option was granted under the Scheme.

Issuance of share options of subsidiaries
(i)  Share option of VBill OPCO

(@)

(b)

ARAZ

B

ARREE—B-T——FHREE ([&t8))
EERS BREMHBES #2ES U AREER
BRERRBEAER L HZAER2RERENE
B2 2REBARPITRIFMITES -Zat8IRN =%
——FOAZTARER BRI BISITRURRE
71 BRI mZ R T FREDAB R R AR
EIRE & B AR AR -

BITHE

DEZERE

i) FETIIZBRE

On 15 January 2018, the directors and shareholders of VBill RZE—N\F—ATHB BEOTHESERR
OPCO have passed a resolution to conditionally grant options FRBRFRE UABTHNZEEEE ([
to several management (the “Grantees”) of VBill OPCO pursuant BADBGHRHBRE RIBRETNERE
to the terms of a share option scheme for VBill OPCO (the sHEl ([BETT AR 81)) M fisk B T
“VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme”) a right to subscribe up to PRI R R B BAE = FF BAR A IRRBETT RS &
approximately 12% of the enlarged registered and paid up capital BRBATFAREL0TIEEARKI12517T
of VBIill OPCO at the exercise price of RMB12.51 for every EVTTIE(E - REERETT (T A ARE M R R B A
RMB1.00 in the registered and paid up capital of VBill OPCO R&H12% °
within a period of 3 years from the date of grant.
Number of
Number of Share Options
Share Options Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercised held as at during during during 31 December
Date of grant price 1 January 2018 the year the year the year 2018
R-B-N\F R-B-N\F
—A—H tZRA=t—~H
RHAH TEE FEBRERE FRERH FRAEBITE FRELN FAEBRERE
(RMB)
(AR¥®)
5 February 2018 12.51 - 27,259,000 - - 27,259,000
—ZE-N\¥ZAARA
The share options are full vested as at 31 December 2018. The KRB N\FFZA=+—H BEREZHR
validity period of these share options shall be 3 years from the B-ZSBREN AR AERE BB =
date of grant. Fe
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28 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Issuance of share options of subsidiaries (Continued)

@)

(i)

Share option of VBill OPCO (Continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

f B T 985 A B

28 BRA (&)

Hiet: ()
(b) BT
()

BB 2 0 oz AR ()
BT 2 B HE (41)

R T S BRARAE  ELARRR AN T 47T S R
BT

Average exercise

price in RMB per Options
share option (thousands)
SBERE
Fig4TEE B
(AR®) (F4)
At 1 January 2017, R-_ZE—+F—HF—H8-
31 December 2017 —ET—+F+ZA=+—H
and 1 January 2018 r=—F-N\&FE—A—H - -
Granted B 12.51 27,259
Exercised 11 - -
Lapsed KR - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—8H 12.51 27,259

Up to the date of this report, no option is exercised. Employee
share options expenses of HK$195,300,000 were fully recognised
in the consolidated income statement during the period as all
these options were fully vested on grant date (28 February 2018).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the
period determined using the Binomial valuation model was
HK$7.16 (equivalent to RMB5.76 per option). The significant
inputs into the model were exercise price shown above, volatility
of 64.89%, zero dividend yield, exercise multiple of 2.80 times,
post vesting exit rate of 0% and an annual risk-free interest rate of
3.62%.

Share option of Megahunt Microelectronics Technology

On 4 July 2018, the directors and sole shareholder of Megahunt
Microelectronics Technology have passed a resolution to
conditionally grant options to several management (the
“Grantees”) of Megahunt Microelectronics Technology
pursuant to the terms of a share option scheme for Megahunt
Microelectronics Technology (the “Megahunt Microelectronics
Technology Share Option Scheme”) a right to subscribe up to
approximately 16.67% of the enlarged registered and paid up
capital of Megahunt Microelectronics Technology at the exercise
price of RMB13.33 for every HK$1.0 in the registered and
paid up capital of Megahunt Microelectronics Technology. The
Megahunt Microelectronics Technology Share Option Scheme
will be vested through tranches in 3-year time from the date of
grant.

(i)

BEEARREBH WEBRIEETE AR
BREREREEAREASH(ZE—N\EZA
Z+N\B)EEEE  MHARGE RS RBE
R (= B B AR 425 52195,300,00078 7T

BRI BN NETEAFETIRA IR
AHEEREE R7168 T (HHERSHBER
BARYS767C) - EANBRHALER L
SFRITEEE - M 1R64.89%  WEE R T - 1T0
212,801 ~ 138 12 71 25 0% A N M 2L B 4F )
3.62% °

KR IEEME FH M ERE
RZT—/\FtAWB - JKNEEMEFRITH
EERE-RFBARER  UAKAIEENE
FHMNZAERE ([EARA) BEERHE
R&AE - AR IBIKT BN E TR ATREAR AR T &) ([Jk
B EME TR RE 8] M fEsk 2
FREF A iR KA M E T R AT R R A
AARE10BTTIEEARBI3IZTHTEE R
BRI E M E F RSB RS R A
B #116.67% ° KN IBEME T BT B AR AT
ZBA R AR = ERE RO HRE -
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28 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28 BRA (&)
Notes: (Continued) Mt ()
(b) Issuance of share options of subsidiaries (Continued) b) BITHBATDZBERE(E)
(i) Share option of Megahunt Microelectronics Technology (i) BAIEEMEFHMZERE (E)
(Continued)
Number of Number of
Share Options Share Options
held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercised 1 January during during during 31 December
Date of grant price 2018 the year the year the year 2018
R=ZZF—NF R=ZZB-N\F
—A—H +=HA=+—H
wEBH THEE FFsBRERE FRERE FRETE FREEN FEBREHKE
(RMB)
(ARH)
10 August 2018 13.33 - 3,000,000 - - -

—ZE-NFENATH

The validity period of these share options shall be 5 years from ZEBBENARHRERE AR E-
the date of grant.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their AR e RSB B e HARRE I 97T (R B
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EFHmT :

Average exercise

price in RMB per Options
share option (thousands)
BHBRE
PITEE BB
(AE#¥) (F14)
At 1 January 2017, R_ZFT—tF—H—H"
31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-RA=+—H
and 1 January 2018 r=—F—-N\F—A—H - -
Granted Eih 13.33 3,000
Exercised 171E - -
Lapsed R - -
At 31 December 2018 RZFE-N\FF+ZA=1+—H 13.33 3,000
Up to the date of this report, no option is exercised. Employee BEEARE B BEBAEETTE - R I
share options expenses of HK$6,147,000 were recognised in the =R MR E B BB AR B 26,147,000/ 7T ©
consolidated income statement.
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the HAR SRR A IR TR N TE TR A =8
period determined using the Binomial valuation model was AMERAEERARB7 53T - ZRANEER
RMB7.53. The significant inputs into the model were exercise BABIE R EXPIRITRME  K1850.67%  Has
price shown above, volatility of 50.67%, zero dividend yield, RET - IT{E(E82.8015 - BRBBIMAR0% A M E
exercise multiple of 2.80 times, post vesting exit rate of 0% and [E\B 5 1 %3.52% ©

an annual risk-free interest rate of 3.52%.

2006



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B T 985 A B

=fEEH (FED BRAR

ZE-N\FFH

29 RESERVES 29 A&
Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i)
RAEE ERHES HtRE ERGE  REEF ait
(Hizta)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR TER TET
Balance at 31 December 2017, RZE—+F+=-A=1+—H
as originally presented 2 RREST 1,063,153 168434 577,088 111,754 2,131,971 4,052,400
Change in accounting policy SHBEREY (Hit211)
(Note 2.1.1) - - (76,197) - 76,197 -
Total equity at 1 January 2018, “Z-\$-A-HZ
as restated $ B KE7 1,063,153 168,434 500,891 111,754 2,208,168 4,052,400
Profit for the year FREH - - - - 278,175 278,175
Exchange differences arising on WEBINGE AR R E
translation of the financial EECERZES
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (69,279) - (69,279)
Share of other comprehensive loss ~ FE(E VB A AR 2
of an investment accounted for —ERECEMZEBE
using the equity method - - (1,943) (36,163) - (38,106)
Change in value of a financial RATES AL M2 ERR
asset at fair value through other ZEREEBEEY
comprehensive income - - (14,384) - - (14,384)
Employees’ incentive programme of B2 7] 2 /& 8 Mzt &I
subsidiaries (Note 28) (Hi3228) - - 162,465 - - 162,465
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1+—H 1,063,153 168,434 647,029 6,312 2,486,343 4,371,271
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+F—-A—H 1,063,153 168,434 517,504 (10,644) 1,785,827 3,524,274
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 346,144 346,144
Exchange differences arising on BERINE A RS HRR
translation of the financial EAVERER
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - 72,357 - 72,357
Share of other comprehensive income/ &1 LA & AN B 2
(loss) of an investment accounted for  —HEHEZ EM2E
using the equity method W&/ (BE) - - (2,051) 56,207 - 54,156
Release of reserve upon dilution of ~ WAE&EAR 2 —IBRE
interest in an investment accounted R EEREL 2 Hif
for using the equity method - - - 315 - 315
Change in values of available-for-sale AN ESREE 2
financial assets EBEZY - - 61,635 - - 61,635
Release of reserves upon disposal RHERBARGRLZ
of subsidiaries B - - - (1,699) - (1,699)
Release of reserves upon deregistration EUH - — B 22 Al
of a subsidiary BHZRHE - - - (4,782) - (4,782)
At 31 December 2017 “E—+F+-A=+t—H 1,063,153 168,434 577,088 111,754 2,131,971 4,052,400
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29 RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account
of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in
the circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Other reserves mainly represents the difference between the net
proceeds from issuance of convertible preference shares of subsidiaries
upon their conversion into ordinary shares of the Company in
prior years, the reserves arising from granting employees’ incentive
programme of subsidiaries and the reserves arising from the change in
values of the financial asset at FVOCI (2017: AFS).

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31 December 2018, retained earnings comprise of statutory
reserve fund amounting to HK$121,605,000 (2017: HK$88,466,000).

29 f#fE (®)

(i)

(iii)

ARE B BHENSSERERAR ([RHE
BDBERFEERR-_TZ—F\ANLE ZBHFT
BOREN-—ET—F+ATLRETZEEEA
(=) PR 2 =GR 2 E B E AR
BER BARERMRBZ BHTROEEZER-

Hip AT EENBEFEEER AR SRR
FREEATHIE A R FHARE SRR PRISFORFE - &
MEBRR RS R EIMEL 2 FEE ARRAT
Bt ARLMERREZSRERE (T4 At
HESREE) BEEFELNFHBH I ER

FENBNABARGEHZ10% D RERES B2
ZHESEDRREME AR Z50% A EFESLR
BE RHLER I BNE S RETEB UG INA 7 2 s
B R EES BB N R REMERZ225%
KE-R—B-NE+-—A=+—H0 RBAENSEE
TERES 121,605,000 7T (= —+4F : 88,466,000
FETT)
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30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS

30 BNRARENRE AR5 EEHF
RT5 FREEE 2 e FRIE - HA e FIE

AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS KT FIR
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Current portion BNSAER 2
Trade payables (Note (a)) FETBRFR (HTat(a)) 247,878 218,178
Bills payables (Note (b)) JERTERE (Hfatwb)) 3,165 21,021
251,043 239,199
Payables for payment processing solutions XNRGRIBBRTRERZ
business (Note (c)) FERTFRIE (Mat () 266,710 292,587
Other payables and accruals (Note (d)) o JE SRR R EET R
(B1at(d)) 1,375,891 848,409
1,893,644 1,380,195
Non-current portion FEENHAER 2
Other payables (Note (c)) H o T 5RIB (A et () 983 -
1,894,627 1,380,195

Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing
solutions business and other payables and accruals are

ENERARENRE XNRHEERRTRE
%2 AN TR ~ At FR K A FIRIRIA T

denominated in the following currencies: EH¥5I1E:
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
HK$ BT 63,996 41,537
RMB AR 1,830,631 1,338,658
1,894,627 1,380,195

209



210

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@ Trade payables
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

30 BNURARENRE XN EEHF
SRT5 REEME 2 e TAE - HAt R FE
K ERTREA (4)

(@ ENERX
REF—\ER-F—LF+-A=t+—H IBR
HEA ML 2 B ERER AT T -

As at 31 December

R+t=ZA=+—8
2018 2017
—ZE-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Current to 90 days BIEFZE90H 205,694 141,038
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 2,663 33,096
181 to 365 days 181Z&365H 17,774 30,344
Over 365 days 365H A £ 21,747 13,700
247,878 218,178

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

(b) Bills payables

EHEMRT 2EEENF0E180H 2

(b) EFRE
BRI TARL R

The balance represents bank acceptance notes:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due within 90 days 90 H W X HA 1,099 12,971
Due within 91 to 180 days 91£180H A F|H3 2,066 8,050
3,165 21,021

(c) Payables for payment processing solutions business

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment
processing solutions business. The amounts are generally due for

settlement within 30 days and is denominated in RMB.

(0 XNRZEEMRIREL ZENKA

BRBHERX R IERERAN REBRNES 2
RIE BB RI0E RETHEERIZARKS

{Ho
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30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Other payables and accruals

B (&

H o fE A RO R R RE

30 BNRARENRE AR5 EEHF
RT5 FREEE 2 e FRIE - HA e FIE
RPESTFRIE (&)

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations e B TR ROR K& R 273,934 219,370
Deposits b 84,556 73,932
Receipt in advance (Note i) TS WEFRIE (A ati) 706,402 371,355
Others Hith 311,982 183,752
1,376,874 848,409

Notes: et -

(i) A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. The Group recognised its contract liabilities
under other payables and accruals as receipt in advance from
customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

() AHEEBRAEERDEBRAR REFX
NREREORERLNREL ST T HH
RoAEERGAEERBRTERELAYD
BEREARENFIRRER R T HIRSLUER

BEPHH

AEECHEANTEHESEOEHNER:

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Provision of payment processing REXNZHREBAATT R
solutions 702,945 357,407
Sales of electronic power meters and  #H& B L 5T & & AR &
solutions 2,374 6,787
Others HAth 1,083 7,161
706,402 371,355
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BN A
RITHER

Current
Bank borrowing

31

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

=k
B3 7TA

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
10,247 9,596

As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowing would mature
on 26 December 2019 and bears average interest of annually
5.24% (2017: 4.57%). The interest-bearing borrowing is carried
at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s borrowing was repayable
within 1 year (2017: same).

The carrying amount of the short-term borrowing approximates
its fair value. The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing
as at 31 December 2018 is denominated in the RMB (2017:
same).

As at 31 December 2018, the bank borrowing is pledged by
buildings (Note 714) and leasehold land (Note 15) of the Group
(2017: same).

RIB-N\F+ZR=+—0 RITEFNR=ZF
—NFET A HRBEEE P FERNES 24
B (=T —+F 457 )58 -t BB TR
FXARFI R

E-\F+A=t—R FTEEBZERE
E’\\ FAEE(ZF—tF:HR) -

RBERREEREAFERE - R2F—N\
Ft+-A=1t—R”" ZIK %ﬁzﬁ%@fﬁ)%x/\
REEHE(ZF—tF :8R) °

R=F-NE+-A=+—B BEEREA
% m% (Fiet14) RABE L (i) PRI 17
—E—t AR -



=fEEH (FED BRAR

ZE-N\FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B T 985 A B

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

32 EEEFTEH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

EEAAARHIBMITRNG R B HIREERR
BRIEEEIEEH BIRCEMSTS RE — B
B RAEESHEERBEERERE K

HERIT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 12ME A B TFEE 2
after 12 months EEFIEE E (482) (344)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 12MEARGTEN 2
within 12 months REBIEAE 48 49
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled NMEREG TN
after 12 months RIERIA A & 543 458
Deferred tax liabilities — net REFIBEE—F5 109 163

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

FA - BRRBIRRDERERE 2 AR5 REHEA
EREBREERBEZZEHINT

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEBEAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F e o2
Accelerated  Revaluation Accelerated  Revaluation
tax  of intangible tax  of intangible
depreciation assets Total  depreciation assets Total
miE E: 314 R 517
RERE BEEf At WENE BESH At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THT THT THT
At1 January L 101 406 507 136 430 566
Charged/(credited) to the Mk GtA) FalsR
consolidated income
statement 150 50) 100 (35) (46) 81)
Exchange realignment 0 % - (16) (16) - 22 22
At 31 December W+ZA=+—-H 251 340 591 101 406 507
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

32 IEZEMER (&)

Deferred tax assets EEMRIBEE
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
At 1 January m—HR—H (344) (361)
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated (FEA) /HkiRE Wam &
income statement (150) 35
Exchange realignment bEE 34 B 12 (18)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H (482) (344)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to HK$417,423,000
(2017: HK$377,874,000). These tax losses have no expiry date
except that HK$173,121,000 will expire from 2019 to 2023
(2017: HK$145,556,000 will expire from 2018 to 2022). The
potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to HK$77,044,000 (2017:
HK$67,935,000).

As at 31 December 2018, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$108,054,000 (2017: HK$63,326,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EERIBEEDARABRENRE ISR
A& R Bim M IR Mt AT 8 2 BiTE B 18 1F
RN _E—N\E+_A=+—H0 XEEH
EE DU AR FERBIA 2 RIER T IAE 1B
417,423,000/ 7T ( ZF —+ 4 : 377,874,000/
70) °BR173,121,0008 TR =T — NEFE=-ZF
Z = FEBRE M ( ZF — £ F : 145,556,000/ 70
RZE—N\FE_T__FHEER) I ZEH
TR BRI E W B B - Rz S IR B IERER 2
EBIEIEER B E EE 577,044,0008 70 (—ZF —
167,935,000/ 7T ) °

RZZE—NF+=A=+—8 BARAEEE
IR 2 R B E R E A A N e A
RARNEE AR AERE THREMNE AR
RIEZF 2 FETTEINTR 49108,054,0008 7T (=
—4F 163,326,000/ 70 ) MR A B ISR (EL IR
IEFRIB A -
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 33 ZRERE&RERME

STATEMENTS
(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net @) BRETEBAERELSERE (AR
cash generated from/(used in) operations ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬂE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HBLEFE

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax B BT 15 758 Bl A 430,165 434,812
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, ME BERZETE
plant and equipment 299,477 180,680
Depreciation of investment BREYMETE
properties 198 212
Amortisation of leasehold land THE b 5 986 981
Amortisation of intangible assets BIVEESH 208 8,729
Net fair values losses/(gains) on BAFESABRZ
financial assets at fair value ERMEEATE
through profit or loss BB (W) $5 16,971 (16,357)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR - (63,262)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ BXH T it — 61 & 2 7)Yz - (4,782)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, &% - HE R&E#E 2
plant and equipment (Yezs) /E9E (45) 302
Provision for inventories GFERE 1,253 783
Employees’ incentive programme of {8 A 7] 2 & 8 #Eh 51 &
subsidiaries 201,447 -
Share of result of an investment FEIE AR EAR Y
accounted for using the equity —IERECEE
method (171,753) (134,531)
Gain on dilution of interest in an AEREARY —IHIRE
investment accounted for using o W e
the equity method - (113)
Interest income F B U A (23,717) (27,807)
Finance costs A& A AR 89 9
Operating profit before working EEEREHR 2L ERT
capital changes 755,279 379,656
Increase in inventories FEEM (75,721) (14,781)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills & U BR 5% &2 fE Wy Z= 5500 >,
receivables (3%10) 119,822 (15,288)
Increase in loan receivables JE U SR N (554,729) (2,127)
Increase in other financial assets at REER AT ECEMERE
amortised cost =38 0 (29,957) (9,721)
Increase in other assets Hth & EIE N (24,935) (147,204)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due  JEWAREZR E AR 2
from investments accounted for using & HERD S ()
the equity method 359 (1,913)
Increase in a financial asset at fair BEAFEFABRZ
value through profit or loss TRIEEE M - (2,950)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due to  JET LAEZS ) E AR 2
an investment accounted for using BRE 2 FIEFL, (EN)
the equity method (224) 7,459
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills ~ JEBRFX R JEAT ik - IR
payables, payables for payment BRIBARR TR %WZJ"EﬁMI@
processing solutions business and DA B o Ath & A~ 5008 K B AT 08
other payables and accruals #m, Ord) 603,925 (309,454)
Cash generated from/(used in) rREmE/ (AR
operations 793,819 (116,323)
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 33 HREWREHRERMTE (&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(b) In the cash flow statements, proceeds from disposals (b) RREFTERD  HEWHE BERRE
of property, plant and equipment comprise: FRiERRBRE:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—RHLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Net book amount (Note 14) BREDFE (Hfat14) 969 614
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property, — IHEWE  HE REZEL
plant and equipment Wa,/ (E18) 45 (302)
Proceeds from disposals of property, & ¥ % - HE &
plant and equipment BAEFTE A 1,014 312
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METHEECEBYIER
activities
This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising REHFZ 2N FEREEDES 2 BEE
from financing activities for each of the years presented. Fo
Borrowing due within 1 year
R—FREB2ER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
As at 1 January R—A—H 9,596 -
Cash flows REMRE 1,182 9,258
Exchange difference M 5, 2= 58 (531) 338
As at 31 December Rt=R=+—H 10,247 9,596
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”).
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance

Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee

of a subsidiary of the Group in providing services for a
modernisation project with not more than HK$60,000,000
(2017: HK$60,000,000) and claims of infringement of third
party’s intellectual property right. As at 31 December 2018,
the Company does not recognise any liability in relation to
the Performance Guarantee Agreement as the Directors of
the Company consider the possibility of reimbursement is not
probable.

In 2018, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt Microelectronics Technology and Mega
Hunt Microelectronics Limited (the “Guarantee Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement, the Company agreed
to provide Megahunt Microelectronics Technology and Mega
Hunt Microelectronics Limited with a guarantee to repay
the due and unsettled debts of Megahunt Microelectronics
Technology and Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited payable
to a supplier, should Megahunt Microelectronics Technology
and Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited cease or fail to
honour their obligations, with not more than HK$78,000,000
(equivalent to US$10,000,000). As at 31 December 2018,
the Company does not recognise any liability in relation to
the Guarantee Agreement as the Directors of the Company
consider the possibility of reimbursement is not probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2017 and 2018.

f B T 985 A B

34 RAREE

RITZ—RF ARAE—BEPT 7 RBER
ek ([RIBERBZE]) - BBERBERDGZ
RNEIRAEBMASEE—HNBATIEE R A4
BB RERB CREREILE =T A#ER
R [[Z4RPIRHETZ160,000,00087T (=
Z—+4F 160,000,000 70) 2 FER - R ZZ—/\
FHZA=+—0 BRARAEFTRAR/ELR
Bzl WA ARWEERGBRIE
Rz EREE-

RZT—\F ARFEKIEERE TR
RIKFME FBR ARG L ER B ([ER B
&) o Bt AR R R E MIKIEERE T
NMIKFRME F B R A AR 12 7478,000,0007%8
7T (Z£5210,000,0003E 7T ) BUHE LR » LAERRIKFLE
EREFRM BN ETFERARENT—2
HERR B EIAREEGERS  EWKIEEME T
BRI E T AR AR IS REEBITER
T-R-_E—N\F+_A=+—8 BAREAQF
EERBRERENTEETR  WARRWE
BREBERBZE 2EMER.

T+ ER-F—\F
+— B AEBUMEMEALAA

@ 10
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35 COMMITMENTS 35 7A&iE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had future R )\ FR_FT—+F+-_A=+—H" K
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable SEPNTATREEG EBNIE T 2 RARRERE
operating leases as follows: FABREAT
Land and buildings
T REF
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Not later than one year TNHBBE—F 33,518 25,790
Later than one year and not BBE—FENBBAF
later than five years 36,096 50,293
69,614 76,083
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2018, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held.

(a) Transactions with related parties
Except as disclosed below and elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has no
significant transaction with related parties during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same).

f B T 985 A B

36 BEARS

R NF+-_A=1+—8 REBELHEE
sTMAKSZ 2 Rich Global Limited#EB 7R A T122.22%
A% 1D o 88 R 77.78%M D B ARA TR -

(@ HBEEIZRS
BT X Rir e TSRk D FEE I -
REBEE_Z—\F+ZA=+—HLFE"
ANEE N EREE S EITEREARS (=
T—+FHR) -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+Z-HA=+t—BHLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHET
Transactions with PAX Global, HEENFABRRZR S
an associated company:
~ Rental income (Note i) —HE WA (Hiti) 1,491 1,460
— Purchase of electronic payment —BEEFXMNE®
products (Note ii) (K1atii) 194,221 135,774
— Sales of mag-stripe card security —HEBGRINZRE S
decoder chips (Note iii) (K1 itiii ) 67,587 59,966
— Commission charges (Note iv) —BeRx (Hitiv) - 139
Transaction with Cloopen, Bt A R Cloopen 23X 5
an associated company:
—Technical and support services — B R EREE R
charges (Note v) (Kiitv) 50,116 58,146
— Provision of platform operation — T RELRE (Hitvi)
services (Note vi) 3,318 -
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Rental income from an associated company was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company on 19
December 2012. The terms and conditions of the framework
agreement have been renewed on 31 December 2015.

Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework
agreement entered into by the Group and an associated
company on 31 December 2013. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement have been renewed on 30 December
2016.

Commission fee to an associated company was charged at a rate
mutually agreed between the two parties.

Technical and support services fee were charged pursuant to the
terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered
into by the Group and an associated company on 9 May 2016.
These related party transactions have ceased to be the continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on 19 March 2018.

Provision of platform operation services were transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the contracts entered into
by the Group and an associated company on 28 September 2018
and 1 November 2018, respectively.

36 BEARS (&)

@ HREEFzXRS ()
HsE:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

KE—FHE AR ZESWAT RS TR
7€ 2 Bl E B FUCER -

BEETXNEMDBENER R —BEHER
AV ASA—E——F+-A+ABZIE
ZRABB PTG I EITR B o ZIER %
ZERRIEHFERZE—AF+=_A=+—8

Rl

SHEMIERMBRE A DR AEBE SRR
BEANRR-_ZE—=F+=-A=+—Hilxx
HE B8 175 3% T 1R 3Rk R IR IR HE AT R 5 - AR 2R 1
HZERREHER - E—AF+=-A=1+8

T

e —HBERRNAEBRTIRBETHE L

BEHY-

T R 2 ARG B AR IR A R B — R A
AR - RFRARANBR L2 ERBHEE
BARIGHRR - ZEMEA RGN TN
FZATNBTBERALTRAUE+THARREZ

(o

T BELIRGIIRIEA EELE—fERE AT
? NEARZHNBRZZ—N\F+—

=
—BHRIETSLZ & R PTERTR AR HETT R

S
A
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

37

(b) Balances with investments accounted for using the
equity method

f B T 985 A B

36 BEARS (&)

(b) UEHEZEARZRE 2GR

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—H

2018 2017

—E-N\E —ZET—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET AT
Amounts due from associated JE W Bt 8 N B 5K I8

companies 15,116 16,289
Amounts due to associated JET B L AR FR08

companies (114,190) (57,755)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, these balances
are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
(c) Key management compensation
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’
emolument as disclosed in Note 39.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 12 February 2019, the Company, Shen Zheng, Li Huimin,
Xue Guangyu, Ge XiaoXia (the “Management Shareholders”),
ELECTRUM B.V. (the “Investor”), VBill Limited and VBill
OPCO (collectively the “Contractual Parties”) entered into
the subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
pursuant to which, the Investor has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for an aggregate of up to 15% of the issued
ordinary shares of VBill Limited at a maximum subscription
price of RMB588,000,000. The final subscription price will be
determined based on the consolidated net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018 of VBill OPCO and will be settled
in two tranches. VBill OPCO will remain a subsidiary of the
Company after the transaction.

37

R-E—tER-_F-NF+=-A
=t B ZEEROAAREHE B
BER TR R NEEREE-

FEEERE2HE
HE_Z-N\GFR=-ZF—+tF+=A
=St HLFE FTEEBEZHEM
ERMIAFTIEECESHE -

(c)

HERRSEE

R-E—NF-_A+_H ARQAR -BHEK-
Reg gty BES([EEEBRRE])
ELECTRUM B.V. ([#& & AJ)  VBill Limited
MBI (BRBEA G0 ISR GRE
i (R REHE]) B REAER
EHREZRE=REEARES588,000,0007T
RS HZ%ZEVBIll Limited 15%2 7%
Al R REERZEBEITNEE-_Z—N
FH+-_ A=+ BUEFEZEE G FRAE
ERBOMEBLEE -BITNREZX 5%
TNAEERKARZHBRAR-
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37 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 37 #EHERZEHE (&)

(Continued)

RE—IRIEEFEE TG AR LR
Wi # Ik VBIll Limited#§ A3 & A% T
O] B 4 - Btk - ERAVBIll Limited 2 BT &7
AEETHEEER TN TUAER BB &,

Upon the completion of first capital increase settlement, the
Contractual Parties will enter into the shareholders’ agreement,
pursuant to which, VBill Limited will grant a put option
to the Investor whereby all its shares in VBill Limited can
be repurchased, redeemed and/or cancelled under certain
specified circumstances.

ERNABBEHEDS REAREBRERR
TRETSZPM K - LA TR E B BB 12 FE AR B0 AR
TEALEVE B FRFK -

On the date of the Subscription Agreement, the Investor and the
Management Shareholders also entered a side letter to agree on
the key terms in relation to the exit bonus of the Management

222

38

Shareholders.

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

38 ARARIZEERERRFABEE

FRFzEERER

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—EBE-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties B 2,052 2,310
Leasehold land HE i 21,233 21,992
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE 713,127 713,127
Investment accounted for using NEEREARCEE
the equity method 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 996,182 997,199
Current assets REBEE
Other current assets HEMREEE 800 855
Other financial assets at R HEK AT E Y
amortised cost Hih S FhEE 202 100
Financial asset at fair value BEATFEFAEBRZ
through profit or loss TREE 2,004 2,702
Amounts due from subsidiaries AP NGIE S 467,298 580,112
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 465,816 438,251
Total current assets REBEEHE 936,120 1,022,020
Total assets EEHE 1,932,302 2,019,219
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Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) rPAmzEEERBR (B)

ZE-N\FFH

38 ARRZEERBERRFHABRE (50

As at 31 December

BR+=ZB=+—H
2018 2017
ZE-N\F ZFT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to 72 T #EH A
owners of the Company BaRAR#HE
Share capital [N 6,942 6,942
Reserves & Note (a)  H17(a) 1,318,045 1,406,836
Total equity R 1,324,987 1,413,778
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REIAE
Other payables and accruals H A FE A SRR Ko FEET AR 27,424 25,083
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETBY B A Bl s IE 565,091 565,558
Current income tax liabilities EHIMSHAE 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities REBBBEEE 607,315 605,441
Total liabilities BEARE 607,315 605,441
Total equity and liabilities EEhadEesE 1,932,302 2,019,219

223



224

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 85 A B

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 38 ZATFIZEEEBRNEHRSD (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) rRAmzEEERBR (B)
Note (a): Reserves movement of the Company Miita) - KL A2 A EEE)
Retained
earnings/
Share Contributed Other (accumulated
premium Surplus reserves loss) Total
(Note)
REEF,/
R EE SRR Hivfi e (REER) At
(Hz)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR THT TERT TERL TRET
At 1 January 2018 R=B-NF-A-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 35,339 1,406,836
Loss for the year FRFRE - - - (88,791) (88,791)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZE-NF+=B=1+-8 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 (53,452) 1,318,045
At 1 January 2017 R=Z-tE-A-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 (2,820) 1,368,677
Profit for the year FREH - - - 38,159 38,159
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tH&+-F=1+-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 35,339 1,406,836
Note: Hat
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the KRB Z BEHBHRIERIREEMKE 2 B A RROAF
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the ERBANRBI RIS BBITROEELSE - RIER
reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in RE-NN—FREE RAAEE TIBERA THEZER
exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company Hh B R LA T LB ER A ) )R ©

may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under
certain circumstances.
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

39 EXCREAMRER (BB LQAFA
(58622%) 553831k - 7] (WEESR
BER) RO (F622GE)REEB L™
BRAERELIKE)

@ ESRTHASZHE
BREFERITHAR ZMEHIIMT

BE-2-N\F+-AS+—AILFE:

Emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect of
director’s other
services in

Remuneration - connection with

paid o the management

Employer's receivable  of the affairs of
Estimated ~ contribution in respect of  the Company
Discretionary Housing  money value of ~to a retirement accepting office  or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HESEBEE
ADARENE
REXEE ARER2AM
HftER  BIZEK  REZZEM  BEZEAD
e B BfERA FERN RHEMEE BAUHBAR  JEGHE EUEE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEn FiEn T T FiEn TR T TR
Executive Directors YTES
Cheung Yuk Fung RI# 960 - 1,300 - - - - - 2,260
Kui Man Chun REE
(Chief Executive Officer) (frosest) - 2,280 6,200 - - 18 - - 8,498
Xu Wensheng (3¢ - 2,541 6,000 - - 18 - - 8,559
Li Wenjin FXE - 1,800 6,000 - - 18 - - 7818
Xu Chang Jun %EE - 2176 5,400 - - 18 - - 7,594
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai i 180 - 200 - - - - - 380
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 180 - 200 - - - - - 380
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard 33 180 - 200 - - - - - 380
Total a3t 1,500 8,797 25,500 - - ) - - 35,869
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39 EEZERRER (REB L TEH

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (%£622%F) %#3831% - AT (HBEEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HER)BRH (Fe2GE)REB LT
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE BRAEREHEE) (&)

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ EERTHEARZHME (B)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HBILFE:
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of

director’s other

Remuneration services in

paid or - connection with

receivable - the management

Estimated Employer's inrespect  of the affairs of
money value  contribution  of accepting  the Company

Discretionary Housing of other o a retirement office s or its subsidiary

Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme director  undertaking Total
HEFAMER
ARRHENE

RRREE AAFHZAM
HbRN  BIZEAK  AREFZERN  REBZEMT

[k e Bisfa EERE (RAE%EE  BRHEMT  dENEE ElES R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FhL FAT FAL FAL Fin FAT FAL FAT
Executive Directors HTES
Cheung Yuk Fung RE8 810 - 1,200 - - - - - 2,010
Kui Man Chun FEE
(Chief Executive Officer) (fmes) - 2,190 5,600 - - 18 - - 7,808
Xu Wensheng BYE - 2370 5,200 - - 18 - - 7,588
Li Wenjin E3es - 1,710 5,600 - - 18 - - 7,328
Xu Chang Jun #88 - 2,018 4,600 - - 18 - - 6,636
Independent Non-Executive BUFHGES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai EiRE 180 - 150 - - - - - 330
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 180 - 150 - - - - - 330
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard FE 180 - 150 - - - - - 330
Total At 1350 8,288 22,630 - - 7 - - 32,360
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39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
to indirectly; subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2017: Nil).

f B T 985 A B

39 EXCREAMRER (BB LQAFA
(58622%) 553831k - 7] (WEESR
BER) RO (F622GE)REEB L™
RABRELIKRE) (50

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

)

E=RHKER
FA BEEFCLHHS
M(ZT—LF |-

SUEETR AR

E=EBBER
FA - HEEEC LR G WEUL AR
M(ZF—EF |-

RENESRBEOE=TXT2RE

RBE_Z-N\GFT_A=+T—HLFE"
AAR A ERE SRS MAEAE =77
XNRE(ZF—HF 8\) -

FENES ZESEECIZREEER
BEERLASZAZER EEXRRH
R 5 z2ER

REBE_Z—\F+ZA=1+—HILFE"
BMENES RS EE X EHEE LA
HERAXBAZER EERREMRZ S
ZH (2 —F8) -

ESRRG ZHREGHNZEAES

BRIRBEEIN AR BBER FERIFEREM
BRI AEAARRESNE P ERAME
BEEMEAESZEEARREBEHCE
RS ZHERAH(ZT—LF &)
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements

and restated as appropriate, is set as below:

Results

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable to
the owners of the Company

ES

BB N
wH (BE)

EEREE
BELE
BEEH

ESNGIE 2PN 2
R Ktk

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
TR

278,175

6,632,517

(2,061,242)

4,378,213

M ERECMBHRRIIDERBRES 2 A%

EAEDEMBFEREE ARG %A

HEBEHENT:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017
—Z—tF
HK$'000
FET

346,144

5,657,451

(1,493,906)

4,059,342

2016
“E-RE
HK$'000
FET

283,964

5,499,041

(1,913,374)

3,531,216

2015
“Z—HF
HK$'000
FET

183,486

4,576,515

(1,238,571)

3,308,828

MiFREE

2014
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET

397,071

4,110,752

(896,549)

3,192,381
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